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Cipla (EU) Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

The Directors present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Prinicpal activity
The principal activity of the Cowmpany is (v hold investments and marketing registrations for various pharmaceutical
products and to trade in pharmaceutical products.

Review of the business
The Cipla Group, of which the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary, is a leading pharmaceutical group. Its goal is
to ensure that no patient shall be denied access to high quality and affordable medicine and support.

During the year, the Company demonstrated its strength across key therapeutic areas like respiratory, cardiovascular,
pain-relief and anti-histamines, which in turn helped the Company improve its turnover. Further, capital was infused
in the Company by Cipla Limited, which in turn was used to increase Cipla (EU) Limited's investment in existing
subsidiaries, in line with the Group's overall strategy for growth globally. During the year the capital infused was
also used to fully repay the Company's external debts.

Profits improved in the current year, largely due to the Company having a good growth in sales, control on
expenditure and interest payable reducing due to repayments of external loans.

The Company’s key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows:

2022 2021 Change

$'000 $'000 %
Tumover 23,513 19,963 18
Profit/(loss) after tax 3,782 (1,602) (336)
Investments 670,906 576,694 16
Equity shareholders' fuuds 690,642 530,787 30

Principal risks and uncertainties

The ongoing performance of the business is dependent firstly on the health of sales, and secondly on the success of
its investments. Although the market is tough, the Directors are confident that sales will continue to grow because of
the successful history of the Group as a whole.

The health of the investments is good, having undertaken broad and thorough due diligence on each investment with
the backing and the resources of the ultimate parent Company, Cipla Limited, in India.

The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing risks arising on the Company’s financial statements and they
are summarised below:

Regulatory risk

The pharmaceutical industry in general is highly regulated both nationally and internationally. The Company
ensures adherence of these regulations and its supply chain is also encouraged to do the same.
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Cipla (EU) Limited
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Currency risk
The functional currency of the Company is USD in which a large proportion of its investments and liabilities are
denominated in and hence this brings down the currency risk and volatility for the Company.

Interest rate risk

During the year, the Company's exposure to variable interest rates was removed, as the external loan was repaid
during the year. Prior to the repayment, the Company used derivative financial instruments, such as interest swaps to
mitigate the fluctuations in the interest rates incurred.

Credit risk
The Company has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on customers before sales are made to
minimise the risk of financial loss.

Liquidity risk

In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments, the Directors regularly review cash flow to ensure that a strong cash balance is maintained and
working capital requirements are met.

COVID-19

Following the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic globally, the Company continued to adopt measures to curb the
spread of infections in order to protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal
disruption. Considering that the Company is in business of pharmaceuticals and with the UK starting to return to a
new normalcy, the director's do not foresee long term implications to the company's operations. The Company’s
management has assessed its impact on carrying value of receivables and investments to be minimal, based on
internal and external information available to them. The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from
the estimates as at the date of approval of these standalone financial resuits and the management will continue to
closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

This report was approved by the Board on 9thMay2022 ............ and signed on its behalf by:

Mr A Sultania
Director
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

The Directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Directors of the Company
The Directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Ms S Hamied

Ms G M Latham

Mr N Saxena

Mr A Sinha (appointed 27 August 2021)
Mr A Sultania

Going concern

The Company made a profit before tax of $3.8m for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: loss of $1.6m) and is in a
net asset position of $690.6m as at 31 March 2022 (2021: $530.8m). The Company has a share capital base which
supports its ability to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future as well as sales are growing and
expected to grow on back of new launches and market share improvement which will help drive future profitability
and cash flows. The Company also has access to financial support from its Parent Company. On this basis, the
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments which would result in the inability of the Company to continue as a going concern.

Financial risk management

The Directors' have identified and included the Company's key risks and associated management policies in the
Strategic Report. :

Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2021: $Nil).

Future developments

The Directors have a positive outlook for the future based on Company's recent and upcoming launches in
respiratory and hospital segment as well as robust performance of existing business. They consider that the next year
will show a growth in sales from continuing operations on back of recent launches showing full cycle growth and
upcoming new launches in respiratory and hospital segment while also strengthening the base portfolio. The
Company also expects to see applications for marketing authorisations of Group products to continue. The Group
continues to intend to expand its investment projects looking for new and innovative investments to complement the
Group's expectations for growth and the Directors expect to consider making these investments in the Company.
These shall continue to expand the Group's research and development, product portfolio and entrance into new
geographic markets.

This report was approved by the Board on 9thMay2022 ........... and signed on its behalf by:

Mr A Sultania
Director
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Cipla (EU) Limited
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:
+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any '

relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information. The Directors
confirm that so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by section 418(3) of the
Companies Act 2006) of which the auditors are unaware.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Cipla (EU) Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cipla (EU) Limited (the 'Company’) for the year ended 31 March 2022,
which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of
Changes in Equity, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2022 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the original financial statements were authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Page 6




Cipla (EU) Limited
Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Cipla (EU) Limited (continued)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report for the. financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the Strategic Report and Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities [set out on page 5], the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit is capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
We design our procedures so as to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the financial statements are not
materially misstated due to non-compliance with laws and regulations or due to fraud or error.

We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect noncompliance with all
laws and regulations - this responsibility lies with management with the oversight of the Directors.

Based on our- understanding of the Company and industry, discussions with management, we identified Companies
Act 2006, Financial Reporting Standard 102, UK taxation legislation and the regulation around the pharmaceutical
products sold by the company as having a direct effect on the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
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Cipla (EU) Limited
Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Cipla (EU) Limited (continued)

As part of the engagement team discussion about how and where the Company’s financial statements may be
materially misstated due to fraud, we did not identify any areas with an increased risk of fraud.

Our audit procedures included:

* enquiry of management about the Company’s policies, procedures and related controls regarding compliance with
laws and regulations and if there are any known instances of non-compliance;

» examining supporting documents for all material balances, transactions and disclosures;

« review of the Board of directors minutes;

» enquiry of management of their use of legal firms during the year;

» evaluation of the selection and application of accounting policies related to subjective measurements and complex
fransactions;

« analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

- testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the
preparation of the financial statements;

» review of accounting estimates for biases.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements of the
financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance
with the ISAs (UK).

The potential effects of inherent limitations are particularly significant in the case of misstatement resulting from
fraud because fraud may involve sophisticated and carefully organized schemes designed to conceal it, including
deliberate failure to record transactions, collusion or intentional misrepresentations being made to us.

A further description of our responsibilities is aviatble on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Hygeia Building
Ground Floor
66-68 College Road
Harrow

Middlesex

HA1 1BE
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

Tumover

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Income/(loss) from shares in group undertakings
Interest payable and similar expenses

Profit/(loss) before tax
. Profit/(loss) for the financial year

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 13 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2022
Note $
3 23,513,111

(14,162,513)

2021
$

19,963,265
(10,775,051)

9,350,598 9,188,214

(7,550,478) (8,372,374)

5 1,800,120 815,840
2,871,078 693,877

7 (889,660) (3,111,693)
1,981,418 (2,417,816)

3,781,538 (1,601,976)

3,781,538 (1,601,976)




Cipla (EU) Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
Note $ $
Profit/(loss) for the year 3,781,538 (1,601,976)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 15 534,220 217,026
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,315,758 (1,384,950)

The notes on pages 13 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

(Registration number: 04513292)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

2022 2021
Note $ $
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 12 477,175 218,092
Tangible assets 13 13,010 36,304
Investments 14 670,905,897 576,693,541
671,396,082 576,947,937
Current assets
Stocks 16 16,520,331 7,575,353
Debtors 17 36,398,047 24,193,453
Cash at bank and in hand 18 293,332 9,248,125
53,211,710 41,016,931
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 19 (33,965,323) (43,265,873)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 19,246,387 (2,248,942)
Total assets less current liabilities 690,642,469 574,698,995
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 19 - (43,912,284)
Net assets 690,642,469 530,786,711
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 21 687,695,700 532,155,700
Cash flow hedge reserves - (534,220)
Profit and loss account 2,946,769 (834,769)
Total equity 690,642,469 530,786,711

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 9thMay2022 ..... and

Mr A Suitania
Director

The notes on pages 13 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

At 1 April 2020
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
New share capital subscribed

At 31 March 2021

At 1 April 2021
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
New share capital subscribed

At 31 March 2022

Cipla (EU) Limited

Cash flow Profit and loss
Share capital hedge reserve account Total
3 $ 3 $
367,365,700 (751,246) 767,207 367,381,661
- - (1,601,976) (1,601,976)
- 217,026 - 217,026
- 217,026 (1,601,976)  (1,384,950)
164,790,000 - - 164,790,000
532,155,700 (534,220) (834,769) 530,786,711
Cash flow Profit and loss
Share capital hedge reserve account Total
S $ 3 $
532,155,700 (534,220) (834,76%9) 530,786,711
- : 3,781,538 3,781,538
- 534,220 - 534,220
- 534,220 3,781,538 4,315,758
155,540,000 - - 155,540,000
687,695,700 - 2,946,769 690,642,469

The notes on pages 13 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

1 General information
The company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated in Engiand and Wales.

The address of its registered office is:
Dixcart House

Addlestone Road

Bourne Business Park

Addlestone

Surrey

KT15 2LE

United Kingdom

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is to hold investments and marketing registrations for various pharmaceutical
products and to trade in pharmaceutical products.

2 Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland' (FRS 102), and the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets and liabilities.

The functional and presentational currency is US dollars ($), being the cumrency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates in.

The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions in preparing these financial statements, as
permitted by FRS 102 paragraph 1.12(b), on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and its ultimate parent company,
Cipla Limited, includes these in its own consolidated financial statements:

« the requirement to prepare a statement of cash flows;

« certain financial instrument disclosures;
= the non-disclosure of key management personnel compensation in total.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Exemption from preparing group accounts
The financial statements contain information about Cipla (EU) Limited as an individual company and do not contain
consolidated financial information as the parent of a group.

The company is exempt under section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated
financial statements as it and its subsidiary undertakings are included by full consolidation in the consolidated
financial statements of its ultimate parent, Cipla Limited, a company incorporated in India.

Judgements

(i) Useful economic lives of tangible and intangible assets

The annual depreciation and amortisation charge for tangible and intangible assets are sensitive to changes in the
estimated useful economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are
re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological
advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and in the respect of tangible assets, the physical condition of
the assets. See note 14 for the carrying amount of the tangible fixed assets and note 13 for the carrying value of
intangible fixed assets.

(ii) Inventory provisioning

The company sells pharmaceutical products and is subject to changing consumer demands and market activity. As a
result it is necessary to consider the recoverability of the cost of inventory and the associated provision required.
When calculating the inventory provision, management considers the nature and condition of the inventory, as well
as applying assumptions around anticipated saleability of finished goods and future usage of these products. See
note 17 for the net carrying amount of the inventory and associated provision.

(iii) Impairment of debtors

The company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of trade and other debtors. When assessing impairment of
the trade other debtors, management considers factors including credit rating of the debtor, the ageing profile of
debtors and historical experience. See note 18 for the net carrying amount of the debtors.

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Going concern

The Company has an equity base which supports its ability to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future.
Further, the company experienced year on year growth in sales and it is expected that this trend will continue in the
future, as new product launches and market share improves which will help drive future profitability and cash flows.
The company also has access to financial support from its Parent Company, Cipla Limited.

On this basis, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meets its
liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and have
therefore prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments which would result in the inability of the Company to continue as a going concern.

Page 14
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Turnover comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and provision of
services in the ordinary course of the company’s activities. Turnover is shown net of sales/value added tax, returns,
rebates and discounts.

Sale of products:

For a majority of customer contracts that the Company enters into revenue is recognised from product sales when
control of the product transfers, generally upon shipment or delivery, to the customer, or in certain cases, upon the
corresponding sales by customer to a third party. The Company records product sales net of estimated
incentives/discounts, returns, and other related charges, which are accounted for in the same period the related sales
occur. The methodology and assumptions used to estimate rebates and returns are monitored and adjusted regularly
in the light of contractual and legal obligations, historical trends, past experience and projected market conditions.

Service income:
Revenue from services rendered, is recognised in the profit or loss as the underlying services are performed.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the respective
functional currency of the entity at the rates prevailing on the reporting period date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the initial transaction
dates.

Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences between taxable profits and profits reported in the
financial statements.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Tangible assets
Tangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of tangible assets includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their acquisition and
installation.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Leasehold property Over period of lease

Plant and machinery 20% Straight line

Fixwres und fittings 17% Straight line

Equipment 33% Straight line

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. The consideration for each acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values at acquisition date of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and
equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquired, plus any costs directly attributable to
the business combination. When a business combination agreement provides for an adjustment to the cost of the
combination contingent on future events, the Group includes the estimated amount of that adjustment in the cost of
the combination at the acquisition date if the adjustment is probable and can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets such as intellectual property, technical information, trademarks and marketing authorisations
acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets arising on acquisition of business
are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amortisation
Amortisation commences once the associated products have been commercially launched and is provided on
intangible assets so as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over their useful life, as follows:

Asset class Amortisation method and rate
Intellectual property, technical information and trademarks 10% Straight line
Investments

Investments in equity shares which are both publicly traded and not publicly traded are measured at cost less
disposals and impairment.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established, provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured
reliably.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Trade debtors
Trade debtors are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business.

Trade debtors are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment of trade debtors is
established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables.

Stocks

Stocks are measured at the lower of cost and estimated selling price. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method and includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the stock to its
present location and condition.

Trade creditors

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if the Company does not have an
unconditional right, at the end of the reporting period, to defer settlement of the creditor for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. If there is an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting date, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs. Interest-bearing borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the
amount due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the Profit and Loss Account over the period of the
relevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable and
similar charges.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effect of the time value of money is material). The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and
the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a pension fund and the
Company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. If
contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as a prepayment.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Classification

The company enters into basic and non-basic financial instruments transactions that result in the recognition of
financial assets and liabilities like current assets held at fair value, trade and other debtors and creditors, loans from
related parties.

Recognition and measurement

The fair value of financial .instruments that are actively traded on organised financial markets is determined by
reference to market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. If the mark for a quoted financial
investment is not active or the investment is unquoted, the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques.

Debt instruments (other than those wholly repayable or receivable within one year), including loans and other
debtors and creditors, are initially measured at present value of the future cash flows and subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Debt instruments that are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade creditors or debtors, are measured,
initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration, expected to be paid or
received. However, if the arrangements of a short-term instrument constitute a financing transaction, like the
payment of a trade debt deferred beyond normal business terms of financed at a rate of interest that is not a market
rate or in case of an out-right short term loan not at a market rate, the financial asset or liability is measured,
initially, at the present value of the future cash flow discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt
instrument and subsequently at amortised cost.

Impairment

Financial assets that are measured at cost and amortised cost are assessed at the end of each reporting period for
objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence of impairment is found, an impairment loss if recognised in
the Profit and loss account.

For financial assets measured as amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between an
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discounted rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance sheet when there is an

enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Hedging

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

For cash flow hedges, where the forecast transactions resulted in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liahility, the hedging gain or loss reengnised jn other comprehensive income is included in the initial
cost or carrying amount of the asset or liability. Alternatively when hedged item is recognised in profit or loss the
hedging gain or loss is reclassified to profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity discontinues designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is
recognised in the income statement immediately.

3 Revenue

The analysis of the company's revenue for the year from continuing operations is as follows:

2022 2021
$ 3
Sale of goods 20,782,792 17,042,348
Rendering of services 2,730,319 2,920,917
23,513,111 19,963,265

The analysis of the company's turnover for the year by market is as follows:
2022 2021
$ 3
UK 20,824,324 17,281,441
Europe 1,689,753 1,524,859
Rest of world 999,034 1,156,965
23,513,111 19,963,265
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

4 Other gains and losses

The analysis of the company's other gains and losses for the year is as follows:

2022 2021
3 $
Gain (loss) on disposal of intangible assets - 2,701
5 Operating profit
Arrived at after charging/(crediting)
2022 2021
$ $
Depreciation expense 27,015 45,758
Amortisation expense 9,002 424,006
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (650,847) 490,029
Operating lease expense - property 247,818 181,016
Storage and warehousing 950,782 699,217
6 Income/(Loss) from shares in group undertakings
2022 2021
$ $
Interest income from group undertakings 841,157 309,904
Dividend income from group undertakings and participating interests 2,029,921 927,650
Profit/(loss) from disposal of shares in group undertakings - (543,677)
2,871,078 693,877

Dividends are received from subsidiary undertakings and are recognised as other income in the profit of loss when
the right to receive payment is established. During the year, dividends were received from Cipla Maroc SA.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

7 Interest payable and similar expenses

2022 2021
$ $
Interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings 708,059 2,014,294
Other borrowing costs 181,601 1,097,399
889,660 3,111,693
8 Staff costs

The aggregate payroll costs (including directors' remuneration) were as follows:
2022 2021
$ $
Wages and salaries 2,496,062 2,153,721
Social security costs 190,848 219,879
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 169,377 148,676
Share-based payment expenses 20,188 16,580
Other employee expense 111,424 104,524
2,987,899 2,643,380

The average number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the year, analysed by
category was as follows:

2022 2021
No. No.
Administration staff 12 12
Management staff 5 4
17 16
9 Directors' remuneration

The directors' remuneration for the year was as follows:
2022 2021
$ $
Remuneration 694,744 500,588
Contributions paid to money purchase schemes 112,074 31,130
806,818 531,718
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

9 Directors' remuneration (continued)

In respect of the highest paid director:

2022 2021

$ $

Remuneration 322,379 280,113
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 64,504 17,986

During the year the highest paid director received or was entitled to receive shares under a long term incentive
scheme.

10 Auditors' remuneration

2022 2021
$ $
Audit of the financial statements 59,225 62,086

The auditor’s fee is denominated in Pound Sterling and remains the same as last year.

11 Taxation

The tax on profit before tax for the year is the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2021: the same
as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2021: 19%).

The differences are reconciled below:

2022 2021
$ $
Pfoﬁt/(lOSS) before tax 3778 1 a538 (1,601y976)
Corporation tax at standard rate 718,492 (304,375)
Effect of revenues exempt from taxation (385,682) (176,254)
Effect of expense not deductible in determining taxable profit (tax loss) 40,091 164,948
Effect of tax losses (372,901) -
Increase from tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised - 315,681

Total tax charge/(credit) - -
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

12 Intangible assets

Marketing
authorisations
Marketing yet to be
authorisations commercialised Total
$ $ $
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2021 37,023 181,069 218,092
Additions acquired separately - 327,559 327,559
Transfers 22,307 (22,307) -
Impairment - (59,474) (59,474)
At 31 March 2022 59,330 426,847 486,177
Amortisation
Amortisation charge 9,002 - 9,002
At 31 March 2022 9,002 - 9,002
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022 50,328 426,847 477,175
At 31 March 2021 37,023 181,069 218,092

The intangible assets relate to marketing authorisations for various products; these are amortised once the company
has fully acquired the marketing authorisation and commercial sales begin. Where the company is no longer going
ahead with the marketing authorisation, these assets are impaired fully.
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13 Tangible assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2021
Additions

At 31 March 2022

Depreciation
At 1 April 2021
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2022
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022
At 31 March 2021

Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Long leasehold  Short leasehold
land and land and Fixtures and Office

buildi building; fitting; quip Total

$ 3 $ $ $

174,676 82,115 22,858 14,571 294,220

- - - 3,721 3,721

174,676 82,115 22,858 18,292 297,941

174,676 58,849 15,474 8,917 257,916

- 16,423 6,904 3,688 27,015

174,676 75,272 22,378 12,605 284,931

- 6,843 480 5,687 13,010

- 23,266 7,384 5,654 36,304
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

14 Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Shares in group undertakings
Shares in participating interests

Shares in group undertakings

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2021
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2022
Provision

Carrying amount
Al 31 Maich 2022
At 31 March 2021

2022 2021

$ $
670,341,689 576,129,333
564,208 564,208
670,905,897 576,693,541
$

576,129,333

94,212,370
— a9

670,311,689

670,341,689
576,129,333

During the year, the group have taken the decision to de-register Cipla Bio Tec South Africa (Pty) Limited and as
such, the company has disposed of its investment in the entity.

Shares in participating interests

Cost
At 1 April 2021

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022
At 31 March 2021
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

14 Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (continued)

Details of undertakings

Details of the investments (including principal place of business of unincorporated entities) in which the company
holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows:

Proportion of voting rights
Undertaking Registered office Holding and shares held
2022 2021

Subsidiary undertakings

Cipla Australia Pty. Ltd BSA Partnership Pty Ltd Ordinary 100% 100%
Level 15
461 Bourke Street
Melbourne
Victoria 3000
Australia

Cipla Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Suite 1005, 10th Floor Ordinary 100% 100%
Wisma Hamzah-Kwong Hing
No. 1 Leboh Ampang
50100
Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

Cipla Quality Chemical Plot 1-7 Ordinary 0.13% 0.13%
Industries Ltd First Ring Road

Luzira Industrial Park

P.O. Box 34871

Kampala

Uganda

Breathe Free Lanka (Private)  No. 47 Ordinary 100% 100%
Ltd Alexandra Place

Colombo 07

Sri Lanka

Cipla Brasil Importadora City of Vargem Grande Paulista ~ Ordinary 100% 100%
Distribuidora De State of Sao Paulo
Medicamentos Ltda at Estrada da Lagoinha

No. 489, Block 2

Bairro da Lagoa, CEP 06730-000

Brasil

Cipla Maroc SA Corner of Ibnou Toufail and Ordinary 60% 60%
Abdelhak Benmahyou streets,
Residence Ben Mahyou,
Building B, 1st floor,
Casablanca, Morocco
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Cipla (EU) Limited

14 Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (continued)

Cipla Philippines Inc.

InvaGen Pharmaceuticals Inc.

Cipla Bio Tec South Africa
(Pty) Limited

Cipla Algerie

Cipla Gulf FZ-LLC

Cipla ( Colombia ) SAS

Cipla (China) Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.

Morocco

Level 40, PBCom Tower Ordinary 100%
6795 Ayala Avenue Corner

V.A. Rufino Street

Makati City

Metro Manila, 1226

Philippines

One Commerce Plaza, 99 Ordinary 100%
Washington Ave,

Ste 805-A Albany,

New York,

12210-2822,

USA

Building 2 Ordinary 0%
Maxwell Office Park

Magwa Crescent West

Waterfall City Midrand

Gauteng

South Africa

18 Rue de Zone Industrielle Ordinary 40%
Route De La Gare

Haouche Mahieddine

Reghala

Algeria

Premises : Unit No. 111 Ordinary 100%
Floor :01

Building :DSP Laboratory

Complex

Dubai, UAE

United Arab Emirates

Avda Calle 26 No. 68C-61 Oficina Ordinary 100%
605,

Bogota, Colombia,

Pin Code - 110931

Colombia

Room 203, 2nd F, Ordinary 100%
Building No.1, 1479 Zhangheng

Rd.,

Shanghai,

China
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

14 Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (continued)

Cipla (Jiangsu) Pharmaceutical No.168 Binjiang Road, Ordinary 80% 80%
Co., Ltd. Binjiang Fine Chemical Park,

Qidong,

Jiangsu Province of China

China

Under the provision of section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 the company is exempt from preparing consolidated
accounts and has not done so, therefore the accounts show information about the company as an individual entity.

During the year, the company received total dividends of $2,029,921 (2021: $927,650) from its subsidiaries.

15 Other financial assets/(liabilities) (current and non-curreat)

Derivates

Current financial assets/(liabilities) used f or
hedging
$

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2021 (534,220)
Fair value adjustments 534,220
At 31 March 2022 -

During the year, the Company was applying hedge accounting to the interest rate swap instrument and gains and
losses on this were taken through other comprehensive income to the extent that it is effective and to the profit and
loss otherwise. During the year as the loan balance was repaid and the use of the interest rate swap was ceased.

16 Stocks
2022 2021
$ $
Goods for resale 16,520,331 7,575,353
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

17 Debtors
2022 2021
Note $ $
Trade debtors 4,314,219 3,239,845
Amounts owed by group undertakings 23 29,042,874 19,357,838
Other debtors 1,416,703 783,040
Prepayments 42,029 44,425
Accrued income 1,582,222 768,305
Total current trade and other debtors 36,398,047 24,193,453

Included within other debtors is the accumulated interest accrued on loans given to fellow group undertakings,

amounting to $1,104,175 (2021: $490,243).

18 Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
$ $
Cash at bank 293,332 9,248,125
19 Creditors
2022 2021
Note $ $
Due within one year
Loans and borrowings 488,474 11,000,000
Trade creditors 1,204,304 806,746
Amounts due to group undertakings 23 26,903,733 26,959,956
Social security and other taxes 73,458 80,438
Other creditors 43,286 166,768
Accrued expenses 5,252,068 3,717,745
Other current financial liabilities 15 - 534,220
33,965,323 43,265,873
Due after one year
- 43,912,284

Loans and borrowings

Page 30




Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

19 Creditors (continued)

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

The company repaid their external borrowings in full using the funds infused as capital during the year.

20 Pension and other schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents
contributions payable by the company to the scheme and amounted to $169,377 (2021: $148,676). Contributions
totalling $17,880 (2021: $20,046) were payable to the scheme at the end of the year and are included in other
creditors (note 19). -

21 Share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

2022 2021
No. $ No. $
Ordinary shares of £1 (2021: £1) each 524,403,526 687,695,700 411,737,889 532,155,700

New shares allotted
During the year, 112,665,637 Ordinary shares having an aggregate nominal value of £112,665,637 were allotted for
an aggregate consideration of £112,665,637 ($155,540,000).

22 Obligations under leases and hire purchase contracts

Operating leases
The total of future minimum lease payments is as follows:

2022 2021

$ $

Not later than one year - 105,291
Later than one year and not later than five years - 26,323
- 131,614

As at the year end, the company has no future operating lease commitments.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

23 Related party transactions

As the company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cipla Limited, the company has taken advantage of the exemption
in FRS102 section 33.1A and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with the parent or group

companies.

24 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The company is controlled by its parent, Cipla Limited, a company incorporated in India and listed on the Bombay
Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange of India, as well as the Luxemburg Stock Exchnage. The registered
address of the parent is Cipla Ilousc, Peninsula Business Park, Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400
013, India.

The parent of the largest and smallest group for which group accounts including Cipla (EU) Limited are drawn up is
Cipla Limited. The consolidated accounts are available on www.cipla.com.

There is no one controlling party.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021

$ $

Turnover (analysed below) 23,513,111 19,963,265
Cost of sales (analysed below) (14,162,513) (10,775,051)
Gross profit 9,350,598 9,188,214
Gross profit (%) 39.77% 46.03%

Administrative expenses

Employment costs (analysed below) (2,987,899) (2,643,380)
Establishment costs (analysed below) (1,237,137) (954,478)
General administrative expenses (analysed below) (3,213,030) (4,293,278)
Finance charges (analysed below) (16,921) (14,175)
Depreciation costs (analysed below) (95,491) (469,764)
Other expenses (analysed below) - 2,701
(7,550,478) (8,372,374)

Operating profit 1,800,120 815,840
Income from shares in group undertakings (analysed below) 2,871,078 693,877
Interest payable and similar charges (analysed below) (889,660) (3,111,693)
1,981,418 (2,417,816)
Profit/(loss) before tax 3,781,538 (1,601,976)

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Turnover

Sale of goods, UK

Rendering of services, UK
Rendering of services, Europe
Rendering of services, rest of world

Cost of sales

Opening finished goods
Purchases

Closing finished goods
Freight and carriage
Commissions payable

Employment costs

Wages and salaries

Staff NIC (Employers)

Directors remuneration

Directors NIC (Employers)

Staff pensions (Defined contribution)
Directors pensions (Defined contribution)
Staff training

Staff welfare

Share-based payment expense

Establishment costs
Storage and warehousing
Light, heat and power
Insurance

Property - operating lease

General administrative expenses
Telephone and fax

Computer software and maintenance costs
Printing, postage and stationery

Sundry expenses

2022 2021
$ $
20,782,792 17,042,348
41,532 239,093
1,689,753 1,524,859
999,034 1,156,965
23,513,111 19,963,265
(7,575,353) (1,276,621)
(22,261,807) (16,639,793)
16,565,502 7,575,352
(793,425) (412,641)
(97,430) (21,348)
(14,162,513) (10,775,051
(1,801,318) (1,653,133)
(119,090) (161,486)
(694,744) (500,588)
(71,758) (58,393)
(57,303) (117,546)
(112,074) (31,130)
(11,830) (14,993)
(99,594) (89,531)
(20,188) (16,580)
(2,987,899) (2,643,380)
(950,782) (699,217)
(304) (13,205)
(38,233) (61,040)
(247,818) (181,016)
(1,237,137) (954,478)
(70,248) (37,508)
(41,462) (68,442)
(10,215) (10,040)
(45,785) 181

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Detailed Profit ﬁnd Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

Cleaning

Management charges payable

Withholding tax

Travel and subsistence

Promotional expenses

Accountancy fees

Auditor's remuneration - The audit of the company's annual accounts
: Registration, regulatory and testing costs

Legal and professional fees

Royalties payable

Bad debts written off

Foreign currency (gains)/losses - operating expense

Finance charges
Bank charges

Depreciation costs

Amortisation of patents

Amortisation of marketing authorisations
Depreciation of long leasehold property
Depreciation of short leasehold property
Depreciation of plant and machinery (owned)
Depreciation of fixtures and fittings (owned)
Depreciation of office equipment (owned)
Impairment loss (reversal) on intangible assets

Other expenses
(Profit)/loss on disposal of intangible fixed assets

Income from shares in group undertakings

Gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed asset Investments - subsidiary loan/shares

Dividends from shares in subsidiaries
Interest income from fellow group undertakings

2022 2021

$ $

(17,354) (10,700)
(444,041) (424,750)
(191,356) (144,583)
(1,985) (7,538)
(1,108,918) (1,456,611)
(52,129) (58,278)
(59,225) (62,086)
(1,234,648) (833,678)
(631,695) (523,262)

. (95,112)

45,184 (70,842)
650,847 (490,029)
(3,213,030) (4,293 ,278)
(16,921) (14,175)

. (424,006)

(9,002) -

. (22,763)

(16,423) (16,423)
(10,593) -

1 (2,286)
- (4,286)

(59,474) -
(95,491) (469,764)

- 2,701

- (543,677)
2,029,921 927,650
841,157 309,904
2,871,078 693,877

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Cipla (EU) Limited

Detailed Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

2022 2021
3 $
Interest payable and similar expenses
Bank interest payable (708,059) (2,014,294)
Other borrowing costs (181,601) (1,097,399)
(889,660) (3,111,693)

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Cipla Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Cipla Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and
its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as ‘the Group’) and its associates,
as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements
and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries and
associates the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indion Accounting Standards (Ind AS’)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group and its associates, as at 31 March, 2022,
and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and its associates
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl') together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained together with the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in paragraph 15 of the Other Matter
section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4.  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment and based on the consideration of the reports
of the other auditors on separate financial statements of
the subsidiaries and associates, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Drugs (Prices Control) Orders (DPCO) matters:

The Holding Company and many of its Indian subsidiaries
are regulated by National Pharmaceutical Pricing Authority,
Government of India (NPPA). There are a number of legal and
regulatory cases, of which the most significant, Drugs (Prices
Control) Orders (DPCQO) as disclosed in Note 45(B)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, relating to overcharging of
certain drugs under DPCO.

According to NPPA’s public disclosure, the total demand
against the Group aggregates to ¥ 3,703.40 crores as at 31¢
March, 2022, of which:

a) 3,456.39 crores relates to matters pending at Honourable
Bombay High Court, wherein the Holding Company has
deposited ¥ 175.08 crores being 50% of the total demand of
¥ 350.15 crores as at ¥ August, 2003 under protest pursuant
to direction of Honourable Supreme Court of Indig; and

Our audit of DPCO matters included, but was not limited to, the
following procedures:

a) Obtained an understanding of the management’s process
for updating the status of the matters, assessment of
accounting treatment in accordance with Ind AS 37, and
for measurement of amounts involved;

b) Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls around above process;

c) Inspected correspondence with the Holding Company’s
external legal counsel in order to corroborate our
understanding of these matters, accompanied by
discussions with both internal and external legal
counsels. Tested the objectivity and competence of such
management experts involved;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

b) ¥ 247.01 crores relates to other matters, wherein based on
facts and legal advice, the Group has recorded a charge
of ¥ 7.34 crores (including interest) during the year ended
31¢ March, 2022 and carries a total provision of ¥ 118.49
crores (including interest) as at 31# March, 2022.

The amounts involved are material and the application of
accounting principles as given under Ind AS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (‘Ind AS 37°), in
order to determine the amounts to be recognised as liability
or to be disclosed as a contingent liability or not, is inherently
subjective and needs careful evaluation and significant
judgement to be applied by the management.

Considering the materiality and the inherent subjectivity which
involves significant management judgment in predicting the
outcome of the matter, DPCO matters have been considered
to be a key audit matter for the current period audit.

d) Obtained direct confirmation from the external legal
counsel handling DPCO matters with respect to the
legal determination of the liability arising from such
matters, conclusion of the matters in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 37 and disclosures to be made in the
financial statements. Evaluated the response received from
the external legal counsel to ensure that the conclusions
reached are supported by sufficient legail rationale;

e) Assessed the appropriateness of methods used, and the
reliability of underlying data for the calculations made for
quantifying the amounts involved. Tested the arithmetical
accuracy of such calculations; and

f) Evoluated the disclosures for adequate disclosure
regarding the significant litigations of the Group.

Based onthe audit procedures performed, the judgemenis made
by the management were reasonable and disclosures made in
respect of these matters were appropriate in the context of the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and intangible |

assets under development:

As at 31¥ March, 2022, the Group has goodwill baiance of
¥ 3,13793 crores relating to multiple Cash Generating Units
(‘CGUs’).Further,the Groupiscarryingproduct-relatedcapitalised
intangibles and intangibles under development aggregating
to ¥ 1,319.58 crores and T 383.28 crores, respectively. These
balances are subject to a test of impairment by the management
in accordance with Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”. The Group
has recorded an impairment charge on intangible assets of
¥ 40.76 crores during the year ended 31 March, 2022. Refer note
4 and 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The carrying values of goodwill, intangible assets and intangible
assets under development will be recovered through future cash
flows and there is a risk that the assets will be impaired if these
cash flows do not meet the Group’s expectations.

in addition to significance of the amounts, management's
assessment process is complex as it involves significant
judgement in determining the assumptions to be used to
estimate the recoverable amounts involved in forecasting
cash flows for each of the CGUs, intangible assets and those
under development, principally relating to budgeted revenue,
operating margins, short-term and long-term growth rates and
the discount rates used.

Qur audit included, but was not limited to, the following
procedures:

a) Obtained an understanding of the management’s process
for identification of impairment indicators for goodwill,
intangibles and intangibles under development and
process for identification of CGUs and impairment testing
of such assets;

b) Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls over such identification and impairment
measurement of identified assets;

¢) Evaluated management’s identification of CGUs;

d) Obtained the impairment assessment workings prepared
by the management and its experts;

e) Involved auditor’s experts to assess the appropriateness
of the valuation methodologies used by the management
to determine the recoverable values;

f) Reconciled the cash flows to the business plans approved
by the Board of Directors of the companies which
constitute identified CGUs;

g) Evaluated and challenged management’s assumptions
such as implied growth rates during explicit periods,
terminal growth rates and discount rates for their
appropriateness based on our understanding of the
business of the respective CGUs, past results and external
factors such as industry trends and forecasts, including
the possible impact of COVID-19 pandemic on such
assumptions;

h) Obtained and evaluated sensitivity analysis performed by
the management on key assumptions of implied growth
rates during explicit periods, terminal growth rates and
discount rates;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Considering the materiality of amounts involved together
with the inherent subjectivity related to principal assumptions,
which are dependent on current and future economic factors
and trading conditions varying for diiferent economic and
geographical territories, assessment of carrying values of
goodwill, intangibles and intangible assets under development
is considered to be complex and determined to be a key audit
matter in our current period audit.

i) Tested the mathematical accuracy of the management
computations;

j} Performed independent sensitivity analysis of aforesaid
key assumptions to assess the effect of reasonably
possible variations on the estimated recoverable amounts
for respective CGUs to evaluate sufficiency of headroom
between recoverable values and carrying amounts; and

k) Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures given in the
consolidated financial statements with respect to goodwill,
intangibles and intangible assets under development,
including disclosure of significant assumptions, judgements
and sensitivity analysis performed, in accordance with
applicable accounting standards

Based on the audit procedures performed, we determined
that the management’s assessment that the carrying values
of goodwill, intangible assets and intangible assets under
development is appropriate in the context of the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

Revenue from operations: (refer note 113 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements)

The Group recognisesrevenue from the sales of pharmaceutical
productstoresellers or distributors, out-licensing arrangements
and service fee. The Group recognises revenue from product
sales when control of the product transfers, generally upon
shipment or delivery to a customer. The Group records
product sales net of estimated incentives/discounts, returns,
chargeback, rebates and other related charges. The actual
point in time when revenue is recognised varies depending on
the specific terms and conditions of the sales contracts entered
with customers.

Further, the Group has a large number of customers operating
in various geographies and sales contracts with customers
have a variety of different terms relating to the recognition of
revenue, the entitlement to sales rebates, the right to return and
price adjustments. Sales arrangements in certain jurisdictions
lead to material deductions to gross sales in arriving at
revenue such as the Group’s sales to customers in the United
States of America (‘US’) which fall under certain commercial
and governmental reimbursement schemes and mandated
contracts of which the most significant ones are chargebacks,
rebates, failure to supply penalties and Medicaid Drug Rebate
Program (‘Medicaid’).

The Group also has development and commercialisation
arrangements relating to research and deveiopment of
new products. This includes in-licensing and out-licensing
arrangements and other types of complex agreements.

We identified the recognition of revenue from operations as a
key audit matter because:

Qur audit included, but was not limited to, the following
procedures:

a) Obtained an understanding of the management’s process
for revenue recognition (from sale to customers, out-
licensing arrangements and service fee), judgments in
estimation and accounting treatment of discount schemes,
returns, chargebacks, rebates, failure to supply penalties
and Medicaid compliance requirements;

b) Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls, including
general IT controls, key IT application controls
implemented by the management, over recognition of
revenue and measurement of various discount schemes,
returns, chargebacks, rebates, failure to supply penalties
and Medicaid;

c) Evaluated the terms of the licensing arrangements to
determine satisfaction of performance obligations under
the contracts for appropriate revenue recognition and
tested allocation of consideration between performance
obligations to verify deferral of revenue in respect of
unsatisfied performance obligations;

d) Performed substantive testing by selecting samples of
revenue transactions pertaining to sale of products
during the year, and verified the underlying supporting
documents including contracts, agreements, salesinvoices
and dispatch/shipping documents;

e) Performed cut-off testing procedures by testing samples
of revenue transactions recorded during the year in
specific periods before and after year end to conclude
there has not been overstatement/ understatement of
revenuve recorded for the year;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

a) Accrual towards rebates, discounts, returns, chargebacks
and aliowances is complex and requires significant
judgments and estimates in relation to contractual
agreements/commercial terms across various geographies.
Any change in these estimates can have a significant
financial impact. These estimates are particularly complex
in US healthcare environment which involves multi-layered
product discounting due to competitive pricing pressure
apart from regulatory requirements such as Medicaid;

b) The nature of development and commercialisation
arrangements are often inherently complex and unusual,
requiring significant management judgment to be applied
in respect of revenue recognition;

c) The Group considers revenue as key benchmark for
evaluating performances and hence, there is risk of
revenue being overstated due to pressure to achieve
targets, earning expectations or incentive schemes linked
to performance for a reporting period.

f) Obtained management workings for amounts recognised
towards discount schemes, returns, chargebacks, rebates,
failure to supply penaities and Medicaid during the year and
as at year end. On a sample basis, tested the underlying
caleulations for amounts recorded as accruals and
provisions towards the aforementioncd obligations as per
the terms of related schemes, contracts and regulations,
and traced the underlying data to source documents;

g) Evaluated historical accuracy of the Group’s estimates of
year-end accruals pertaining to aforesaid arrangements
made in the previous years to identify any management
bius;

h) Tested alt the manual sales-related adjustments made
to revenue comprising of variable consideration under
Ind AS 115 to ensure the appropriateness of revenue
recognition during the year; and

i) Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in the Consolidated
financial statements.

Based on audit procedures performed, we determined that
the revenue recognition and measurement is appropriate in
the context of the consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole.

Provision for Obsolescence of Inventory (refer note 1.3.2(v)
and 12 to the consolidated financial statements)

The Group held inventories aggregating ¥5,350.24 crores as at
31¥ March, 2022 comprising of raw materials, work-in-progress,
stock-in-trade, finished goods, packaging materials and stores,
spares and consumables, on which the Group has recorded an
obsolescence provision amounting to ¥ 576.42 crores during
the current year.

At each reporting period end, the management assesses
whether there is any objective evidence indicating that the net
realisable value of any item of inventory is below its carrying
value. If so, such inventories are written down to their net
realisable value in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS
2, Inventories ('Ind AS 2°).

The factors that the Group considers in determining the
provision for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable
inventory include estimated remaining shelf life, product
discontinuances, price changes, ageing of inventory and
introduction of competitive new products, to the extent each
of these factors impact the Group’s business and markets. The
Group considers all these factors aond adjusts the inventory
provision to reflect its actual experience on a periodic basis.

Our audit of provision for obsolescence of inventory included,
but was not limited to, the following procedures:

a) Obtained an understanding of management’s process to
identify slow-moving, obsolete and other non-saleable
inventory, and process of consequent measurement of
required provision for obsolescence.

b) Evaluated the appropriateness of related accounting
policies adopted by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 2 (‘Ind AS 2%);

¢) Evaluated the design, implementation and tested the
operating effectiveness of key controls that the Group has
in relation to aforesaid process;

d) Evaluated the nature, source and reliability of all the
information used by the management for arriving at the
estimates for determination of provision for obsolescence
of inventory;

e) For the provisions made in respect of expired or near-
expiry inventory balances, tested such identification
from the batch-wise expiry information and reperformed
computations to validate the accuracy and completeness
of such provision estimates;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Considering the inherent nature of the industry, particularly
limited useful life of inventories, the aforesaid determination
is complex on account of estimation of consumption patterns,
prescription patterns, alternate product availability, altcrnate
uses, changing regulations, which involves significant
management judgement and high estimation uncertainty.
This complexity was particularly further increased during
the current year due to introduction of certain products in
Company’s portfolio leading to an increased charge to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the current year as compared
to earlier years in this respect.

Considering the above, provision for obsolescence of inventory
has been considered as key audit matter for the current period
audit.

f)  For the provisions made in respect of other non-saleable
inventory, discussedwiththe senior managementthetriggers
taken into account for such identification and evaluated
the same in view of our undcrstanding of the business and
industry conditions. Assessed the projected sale estimates
made by the management in respect of balance inventory
of aforesaid specific products that is expected to be sold
in the near future, for its appropriateness basis past trends
and market conditions. Further, reperformed computations
to validate the accuracy and completeness of such
provision estimates; and

g) Evaivated appropriateness of disclosures made in the
financial statements.

Based on the audit procedures performed, the management’s
assessment provision for obsolescence of inventory balances
was determined to be appropriate in the context of the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

7. The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been approved by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated

financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group including its associates in
accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. The Holding Company’s Board
of Directors are also responsible for ensuring accuracy
of records including financial information considered
necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. Further, in terms of the provisions of
the Act the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group, and its associate companies covered
under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial
statements have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

8. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing
the ability of the Companies included in the Group and of
its associates to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
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as applicable, malters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of uccouiling unless the Bouird of
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conductedin
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect
a material misstotement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these ¢consolidated financigl statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act we are aiso responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls;

- Evaoluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

12.

13.

14.

uncer luinly exists related to evenls ur cunditions thul
may cuast significant doubl on the ability of Ihe Group
and its associates to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclasures are inadequate, ta modify ainir opinion Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group and its
associates to cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation; and

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
lhe financial information/ finuncial siatements of the
entities or business activities within the Group, and its
associates, to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of finunciul sialements of such entities included in the
financial statements, of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the financial
statements, which have been audited by the other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
liminy of the audit and significant audil findings, incloding
any significunl deficiencies in infernal control thal we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirementsregardingindependence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Other Matter

15.

We did not audit the financial statements of 37 subsidiaries,
whose financial statements (prior to consolidation
adjustments) reflects total assets of ¥ 10,730.48 crores and
net assets of ¥ 7947.54 crores as at 31 March, 2022, total
revenueof?4,522.83croresandnetcashinflowsamountingto
319.94 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements also include the Group’s share of net
loss (including other comprehensive income) of ¥ (2.36)
crores for the year ended 31* March, 2022, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of an
associate, whose financial statements has not been audited
by us. These financial statements have been audited by
other auditors whose report has been furnished to us by
the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries
and an associate, and our report in terms of sub-section
(3) of section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries and an associcte, are based solely
on the reports of the other auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries and an associate, 33
subsidiaries and an associate are located outside India
whose financial statements and other financial information
have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries
and which have been audited by other auditors under
generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their
respective countries. The Holding Company’s management
has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries
and associates located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries to
accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have
audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding
Company’s management. Our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the balances
and offairs of such subsidiaries and an associate located
outside Indiq, is based on the report of other auditors and
the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of
the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements,
and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements
below, are not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done by and the
reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group’s share of net loss (including other comprehensive
income) of ¥ (10.36) crores for the year ended 3
March, 2022, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, in respect of 4 associates, whose financial
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information hos not been audited by us. These financial
statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us
by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid
associates, is based solely on such unaudited financial
information. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us by the management, these
financial information are not material to the Group.

Qur opinion above on the consolidated financial statements,
and our report on other legal and regulatory requirements
below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with
respect to our reliance on the financial information certified
by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
17.  As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our

audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors, referred to in paragraph 15, on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries and associates, we report
that the Holding Company and 2 subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have paid remuneration to
their respective directors during the year in accordance
with the provisions of and limits laid down under section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that
6 subsidiary companies covered under the Act have not
paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during
the year. Also, we report that the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to 4
associate companies covered under the Act, since none
of such companies is a public company as defined under
section 2(71) of the Act.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the
Act based on the consideration of the Order reports issued
by us and by the respective other auditors as mentioned
in paragraph 15 above, of companies included in the
consolidated financial statements and covered under the
Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such
companies.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit
and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors
on separate financial statements and other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associates incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
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a)

b)

c)

d)

e

f)

)

We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so
far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditors;

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the oforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies and taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, and the reports of the statutory auditors of
its subsidiary companies covered under the Act, none of
the directors of the Group companies are disqualified as
on 31 March, 2022 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and
associate companies covered under the Act, and
the operating effectiveness of such conirols, refer to
our separate report in ‘Annexure 1I’ wherein we have
expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Avuditor’s Report in accordance with rule 1
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given
to us and based on the consideration of the report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements
and other financial information of the subsidiaries
and associates incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group and its associates
as detailed in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements;

ii. As detailed in Note 54 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and associate companies
did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses as at 31 March, 2022;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding
Company during the year ended 31% March,
2022. Further, there were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the subsidiary companies
and associate companies covered under the Act,
during the year ended 31 March, 2022;

The respective managements of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary companies and associate companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and
the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in note 55 (j) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or securities premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary
companies and its associate companies to or in any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company,
or any such subsidiary companies and its associate
companies (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary companies and associate companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries
and associates respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 55 (f) to
the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
no funds have been received by the Holding Company
or its subsidiary companies, or its associate companies
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company, or any such subsidiary companies
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and its associate companies shall, whether directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed by us and
that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and
associates, as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above
contain any material misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the
subsidiary companies during the vyear ended
31 March, 2022 and until the date of this audit report is
in compliance with section 123 of the Act;

The final dividend paid by the Holding Company
during the year ended 31¥ March, 2022 in respect
of such dividend declared for the previous year is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to payment of dividend; and

Independent Auditor’s Report
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As stated in note 43 (C)}(b) to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final
dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2022 which is
subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to declaration of dividend.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Ashish Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 504662

UDIN: 22504662A1SJAE2699 ¢

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10" May, 2022
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List of entities included in the Statement

1) Subsidiaries:

1
2.

® N o o &

22.

23.

24,

Meditab Specialities Limited, India
Goldencross Pharma Limited, India

Cipla Pharma and Life Sciences Limited, India (formerly
known as Cipla BioTec Limited)

Jay Precision Pharmaceuticals Private Limited, India
Cipla Health Limited, India

Medispray Laboratories Private Limited, India

Sitec Labs Limited, India

Cipla Digital Health Limited, India (incorporated on
25" February, 2022)

Cipla Medpro South Africa (Pty) Limited, South Africa
Cipla Holding B.V., Netherlands

Cipla (EU) Limited, United Kingdom

Saba Investment Limited, United Arab Emirates

Cipla (UK) Limited, United Kingdom (liquidated w.e.f. 5
March, 2021)

Cipla Australia Pty Limited, Australia

Cipla USA Inc., United States of America

Meditab Holdings Limited, Mauritius

Cipla Kenya Limited, Kenya

Cipla Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia

Cipla Europe NV, Belgium

Cipla Quality Chemical Industries Limited, Uganda

Cipla Brasil Importadora E Distribuidora De

Medicamentos Ltda., Brazil

Inyanga Trading 386 (Pty) Limited, South Africa
(Dissolved w.e.f. 10" December, 2021)

Cipla Medpro Holdings (Pty) Limited, South Africa
(under liquidation)

Cape to Cairo Exports (Pty) Limited, South Africa
(Deregistered w.e.f. 27" August, 2020)

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.
30.

3.

32.

33.
34.

35.

36.
37.
38.

39.

40.

42.
43.

44,
45.
46.

47.

Cipla Dibcare (Pty) Limited, South Africa (under
liquidation)

Cipla Medpro Manufacturing (Pty) Limited, South Africa
(formerly known as Cipla Life Sciences (Pty) Limited)

Cipla-Medpro (Pty) Limited, South Africa

Cipla-Medpro Distribution Centre (Pty) Limited, South
Africa

Cipla Medpro Botswana (Pty) Limited, South Africa
Cipla Algérie, Algeria

Cipla Biotec South Africa (Pty) Limited, South Africa
(Deregistered w.e.f 3" February, 2022)

Cipla Select (Pty) Limited, South Africa (formerly known
as Cipla OLTP (Pty) Limited)

Medpro Pharmaceutica (Pty) Limited, South Africa

Cipla Medica Pharmaceutical and Chemical Industries
Limited, Yemen

Cipla (Mauritius) Limited, Mauritius (liquidated w.e.f. 17
May, 2020)

Breathe Free Lanka (Private) Limited, Sri Lanka
Cipla Maroc SA, Morocco

Cipla Middle East Pharmaceuticals FZ-LLC, United
Arab Emirates

Quality Chemicals Limited, Uganda (ceased to be a
subsidiary from 19" August, 2020)

Cipla Philippines Inc., Philippines
InvaGen Pharmaceuticals Inc., United States of America
Exelan Pharmaceuticals Inc., United States of America

Anmaraté (Pty) Limited, South Africa (ceased to be a
subsidiary from 19" August, 2020)

Cipla Technologies LLC, United States of America
Cipla Gulf FZ-LLC, United Arab Emirates
Mirren (Pty) Limited, South Africa

Madison Pharmaceuticals Inc., United States of

America
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48.
49.
50.

51

52.
53.
54.

Cipla Colombia SAS, Colombia

Cipla (China) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., China

Cipla Health Employees Stock Option Trust, India
Cipla Employee Stﬁock Option Trust, India (Deregistered)
Cipla (Jiangsu) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., China

Cipla Pharmaceuticals Limited, India

Cipla Therapeutics Inc, United States of America

1I) Associates:

1.
2.

Stempeutics Research Private Limited, india

Avenue Therapeutics Inc., United States of America (As
at 31¥ March, 2022, the fully diluted stake is 25.93%)

B8randmed (Pty) Limited, South Africa

AMPSolar Power Systems Private Limited, India (Share
of loss/profit not required to be considered)

AMP Energy Green Eleven Private Limited, India (acquired
32.49% on fully diluted basis from 8" February, 2022) -
(Share of loss/profit not required to be considered)

Clean Max Auriga Power LLP, India (acquired 33%
stake effective from 14™ December, 2021) - (Share of
loss/profit not required to be considered)

GoApptiv Private Limited, India

Iconphygital Private Limited, India (Wholly owned
subsidiary of GoApptiv Private Limited)
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Annexure Il e Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Cipla Limited on the consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31* March, 2022

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of Cipla Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and
its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as ‘the Group’), and its associates
as at and for the year ended 31" March, 2022, we have
audited the internal financial conirols with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and its associate companies, which are covered
under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
companies which are companies covered under the Act,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on internal control financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components af internal coniral stated in the
guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Control over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal
Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its
associate companics, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements,
and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL. Those Standards

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
includes obtaining an understanding ot such internal
financial conirols, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
f the [Halding Company, its subsidinry camnpanies and its
associate companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
cansalidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements include those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
bcing made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.
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AnneXU I’e I I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Cipla Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31* March, 2022

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other cuditors on internal financiol controls
with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary
companies and associate companies, the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
companies, which are companies covered under the Act,
have in ail material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such
controls were operating effectively as at 315t March, 2022,
based on internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAI.

Other Matter

9.

We did not audit the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to
1 subsidiary company, which is company covered under
the Act, whose financial statement (prior to consolidation
adjustments) reflect total assets of ¥ 161.43 crores and net
assets of 149.59 crores as at 31 March, 2022, totalrevenues
of ¥128.60 crores and net cash flows amounting to ¥ 5.27
crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in so far as
it relates to such subsidiary company have been audited

by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us
by the management and our report on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements for the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
companies, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act
in so far as it relates to such subsidiary company is based
solely on the reports of the auditors of such company. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect
to our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of
the other auditors.

We did not oudit the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to 4
associate companies, which are companies covered under
the Act, in respect of which, the Group’s share of net profit
(including other comprehensive income) of ¥ 1.10 crores for
the year ended 31 March, 2022 has been considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of these
associate companies, which are companies covered under
the Act, are unaudited and our opinion under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
associate companies, which are covered under the Act,
is solely based on the corresponding internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements reports
certified by the management of such companies. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the management, these financial statements
are not material to the Group. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements reports certified by the management.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662

UDIN: 22504662A1SJAE2699

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10" May, 2022
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Consolidated Balance sheet

as at 31 March, 2022

Rin crores
As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(o) Property, plant and equipment 21 4,838.79 4,618.14
{b) Right-of-use assets 22 325.61 33813
€) _ Capital work-in-progress 2] 38290 570.84
d) _Investment properties 3 61.42 121.75
e) _Goodwill 4 3,13793 3,007.29
f) _Intangible assets 5 1,319.58 1,430.21
(9) _Intangible assets under development 5 383.28 398.05
(h) __Investment in associates [ 45.81 228.38
() __Financial assets
(i} _Investments 7 309.82 195.30
(i) Loans 8 0.04 0.04
(i) _Other financial assets 9 41704 95.83
()__Income tax assets (neh) 10 483.62 46816
(k) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 44883 - 314.69
() Other non-current assets N 218.91 155.57
Total non-current assets 12,373.58 11,942.38
(2) Current assets
(@) __Inventories 12 5,350.24 4,669.18
(b) Financial assets
®  Investments 13 219497 228637
(i) Trade receivables 14 3,424.44 3,445.68
(i) _Cash and cash equivalents 15 677.74 793.29
(lv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16 1,250.74 607.94
(V) __Loans 17 3.57 1.00
(vi) _Other financial assets 18 898.39 48324
() _ Other current assets 19 910.74 894.33
Total current assets 14,710.83 13,181.03
(3) Assets classified as held for sale 2.3 16.71 28.48
Total assets : - R {1 2710102 11 o 25 150,89
Equity and llabilities
M__Equity
(@) _Equity share capital 20 161.36 161.29
(b) _Other equity 21 20,680.33 18,165.24
Equity attributable to owner 20,841.69 18,326.53
{c) _Non-controlling interest 22 275.69 25906
Total equity 2),117.38 18,585.59
(2) Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 416.24 1,202.75
(i) _Lease ligbilities 22 158.28 197.89
(i) _Other financial liabilities 24 100.37 97.72
(b) Provisions 25 100.22 11617
(c) _Deferred tax liabilities (nef} 10 24396 296.61
(d) __Other non-current liabilities 26 5146 463.61
Total non-current liabilities 1,070.53 1974.75
Current llabilities
(@) _Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 23 40790 552.81
(i) __Lease liabilities 22 73.36 6096
(i) Trode payables 27
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1752 69.33
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 2,33298 1,997.49
(iv)__Other financial ligbilities 28 370.83 45495
b) _Other current liabilities 29 311.06 359.22
©) __ Provisions 25 1,221.00 1,078.32
d) _Income tax liabilities {net) 10 20.62 18.06
Total current liabilities 4,912.87 4,591.14
(3) Liabllities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 2.3 0.34 0.41
Total llabilities 5983.74 6,566.30
Total equity and liabilities 11 X! 2710102 11} 25,151.89 |
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 1-58

As per our report of even dote attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Samina Hamied

Firm Reg. No.: 001076N/N500013

Ashish Gupta
Partner .
Membership No.: 504662

Mumbai, 10" May, 2022

Umang Vohra

Managing Director and
Giobal Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 02296740

Dinesh Jain :
Interim Global Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, 10" May, 2022

Executive
Vice-Chairperson
DIN: 00027923

Rajendra Chopra
Company Secretary
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March, 2022
’ Zin crores
. ) : . ‘ ISV LIFILEX R  For the year ended
Particulars ' : Notes 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
(1) Income ‘ o
(a) Revenue from operations
(i) Revenue from sale of products 30 o 21,623.36 : ~18,988.52
(i) Other operating revenue : 31 13998 171.07
Total revenue from operations . ) 21,763.34 19,159.59
(b) Other income

taliincome{(a:

(3) Expenses : )
: (a) Cost of materials consumed 33 . . 553313 4,886.43
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade : 34 3,68716 2,658.17
(&) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progressand =~ 35 : ) .
stock-in-trade : (724.69) (192.71)
(d) Employee benefits expense : 36 ) © L 3,5299 . 3,251.83
(e) Finance costs : 37 - 106.35 : 160.70
(f) Depreciation, impairment cnd omorhschon expense 38 - 1,051.95 . 1,067.66
(g) O'mer expenses : 39 ) 5 185. 05 © 4, 303 44 )
SRS 7 68:86: 3 ;.

(5) Excephonal nem B ‘ » B 4L (182.”12)

(6) Profit before tax (4-5) 3,493.27 : 3,290.06
(7) Taxexpense(net) . ... ... ... . . o e 10 e e . -
(a) Current tax : 113690 1052 72 .
(b) Deferred tax : (203.10) (163.96)
" Total tax expense 933.80 ' 888.76
(8) Profit after tax before share of profit/(loss) from associates (6-7) 2,559.47 . | 2,401.30

(9) Share of profit/(loss) fro
(10)Profitfor the year(8+9)
(11) Other comprehensive income/(loss)

(a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ) 127.02 (38.41)

iates

(ii) Income tax relating to these items " 095
(b) (i) - Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 20318
(i) Income tax relating to these items (4.23)
Other comprehensive lncome/(loss) for the year 161.49
(12)Totalkcomprehensive:income:forthe year: (10+11)ww e donf i +2:550:007}
(13) Profit for the year attributable to .
(a) Owners . . ’ . ) 251675 - . 2,404.87
(b) Non-controlling interest ) . 2990 - (16.36)
(14) Total comprehensive income attributable to o o o )
(a) Owners . ) 2,893.55 ) ) - 2,57996
} (b) Non-controlling interest - . 36.77 " (299¢6)
(15) Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 2 each 41 o ‘
Basic (in ) 31.20 29.82
Diluted (in %) 3117 ) 2979
The accompanying notes form an |ntegrcl porf of these consohdcted 1-58 ) ‘
financial statements. ‘
As per our report of even date attached ) . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
- For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP . ) )
Chartered Accountants . Umaong Vohra . . Samina Hamied
Firm Reg. No.: 001076N/N500013 / - Ménaging Director and , . Executive
: C Global Chief Executive Officer - - Vice-Chairperson .
DIN: 02296740 S DIN:-00027923
Ashish Gupta ‘ . - Dinesh Jain " Rajendra Chopra

Partner ] . } Interim Global Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 504662 : ’ ‘ ' C : .

Mumbai, 10" May, 2022 o .. Mumbai, 10" May, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March, 2022

(a) Equity share capital (refer note 20)

Tincrores
Particul As at As at
articuiars
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 161.29 161.25
Changes in equity share capital during the year on exercise of employee stock
options (ESOSs) 0.07 0.04
Balance at the end of the year H 161.36 || 161.29 |
(b) Other equity (refer note 21)
Rincrores
Attributable to the owners of the Company
L3 W 4 b - - T Reserves and surplus & . Other reserve hd . I
Financial oth Non-
Particulars Foreign nancla er controlling Total
Securities instruments fair equity
Capital General Employee stock Retained currency Hedge interest
premium value through other
reserve reserve options/ESAR  earnings translation reserve
reserve comprehensive
reserve .
income
8alance as at 31* March, 20620 (147.14) 1,602.03 314262 53.05 unzes (191.68) 53.06 (2807) 1560175 294.28 15,896.03
Proflt for the yeor - - - - 2404.87 - - - 240487 16.36) 2,388.51
Other comprehensive income/{loss) (net of tax) - - - - 14.23 194.38 (51.66) 1814 175.09 {13.60) 161.49
Poyment of dividend (including tax on dividend) - - - - - - - - - (5.26) (5.26)
Transfer to general reserve - - 202 (2.02) - - - - - - -
Conslderation relating to ESOP of subsidiary (881 - - (17.20) - - - - (36.01) - (36.01)
Exercise of employee stock options - 1n.28 - (11.28) - - - - - - -
Share based payments expense (refer note 47) - - - 19.54 - - - - 19.54 - 19.54
Balance as at 31¥ March, 202} (16595) 1,613.31 314464 4209 13,53698 270 140 (993) 18,165.24 259.06 18,424.30
Profit for the year - - - - 2,516.75 - - - 251675 2990 2.546.65
Other comprehenslve income/(loss) (net of tax) - - - - 1304 258.39 98.37 690 376.60 687 383.67
Poyment of dividend (refer note 43C) - - - - (403.35) - - - (403.35) (20.4) (423.49)
Transfer to general reserve - - 016 {016) - - - - - - -
Refund of excess Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) paid
in ecrlier years - - - - 5.55 - - - 5.55 - 5.55
Consideration relating to ESOP of subsidiary (1.09) - - (203) - - - - {3.12) - (312)
Exercise of employee stock options - 18.38 - 18.38) - - - - - - -
Cancelled during the year - - - .66} - - - - 1.66) - 1.66)
Share based payments expense (refer note 47) - - - 2032 - - - - 24632 - 2412
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 [] 06700 | 163169 | 314480 } 4398 115,66907; | 26109 | 99771 (303)! ;2068033 | 27589 | 20956.02.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. (Note 1-58)
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants Umang Vohra Samina Hamied
Firm Reg. No.: 001076 N/N500013 Managing Director and Executive
Global Chief Executive Officer Vice-Chairperson
DIN: 02296740 DIN: 00027923
Ashish Gupta Dinesh Jain Rajendra Chopra
Partner Interim Global Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: 504662
Mumbai, 10" May, 2022 Mumbai, 10" May, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March, 2022
Zin crores

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

For the year ended

31 March, 2022

For the year ended
31t March, 2021

Profit before exceptional items and tax 3,675.39 3,290.06
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, impairment and amortisation expense 1,051.95 1,067.66
Interest expense 106.35 160.70
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss (net) 115 (8.64)
Share based payment expense 242 19.54
Allowances for credit loss (net) (40.82) 39.48
Interest income on income tax refund (17.75) (704)
Interest income on bank deposit and others (61.87) (40.22)
Dividend income (0.01) (21.64)
Sundry balances written back (net) (6.37) (0.06)
Net gain on sale of current investment carried at fair value through profit or loss (77.22) (52.79)
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries (net) - 378
Net fair value (gain)/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (2.02) (12.08)
Net gain on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment (8.68) (3.01)
Rent income 11.36) (14.77)
Operating profit before working capital changes I 4,642.86 }] 4,42097 |
Adjustments for working capital:
Increase in inventories (621.11) (254.32)
Decrease in trade and other receivables 81.36 42293
Increase in trade payables and other liabilities 362.29 203.05
Cash generated from operations 4,465.40 4,792.63
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (1,139.50) (1,037.43)
Net cash flows from operating activities (a) ¥ 332590 || 3,755.20 |
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {refer note (ii) below} (5441) (629.66)
Purchase of intangible assets (including intangible asset under development) (157.04) (189.26)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment {refer note (ii) below} 16.40 22.05
Receipts from sale of assets held for sale 14.98 -
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 3.78 5.48
Proceeds from sale/liquidation of investments in subsidiaries - 2.60
Investment in associates (18.02) (13.65)
Purchase of non-current investments (0.05) (40.00)
Sale/(purchase) of current investments (net) 170.64 (1,204.98)
Change in other bank balance and cash not available for immediate use (1,416.82) (416.72)
Interest received 4699 40.55
Dividend received 0.01 21.64
Rent received 1.36 14.77

Net cash used in investing activities (b)

(1,671.88) ||

'(2,38718) |
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Zincrores

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2022 31¢ March, 2021

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares (ESOSs) 0.07 0.05
Transaction with non-controlling interest (net) (19.75) (5.36)
Consideration paid on buyback of ESOP rights relating to subsidiary (2.77) (36.00)
Proceeds/(repayment) from current borrowings (net) 3498 (41.87)
Payment of lease liabilities (92.10) (84.33)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings - 70.49
Repayment of non-current borrowings (1,041.21) (1,021.75)
Interest paid (75.66) (120.74)
Dividend paid ’ ) T B i © 7 (403.35) -
Net cash used in financing activities (c) H (1,599.79) 1} (1,239.51) |
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) (145.77) 128.51
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 790.43 64913
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents 13.45 12.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 15) H 65811 || 790.43 |
Note:

- () -The above statement of cash flow hds been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.

(i) Purchase and sale of property, plant and equipment represents additions and deletions to property, plant and equipment and
investment property adjusted for movement of capital work in progress, capital advances and capital creditors for property,
plant and equipment and investment property during the year. '

(ii) For reconciliation of borrowings, refer note 23

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements (note 1-58).

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants Umang Vohra Samina Hamied
Firm Reg. No.: 001076N/N500013 Managing Director and Executive
Global Chief Executive Officer Vice-Chairperson
DIN: 02296740 DIN: 00027923
Ashish Gupta Dinesh Jain Rajendra Chopra
Partner ’ Interim Global Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.: 504662

Mumbai, 10" May, 2022 Mumbai, 10" May, 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Group Information

Cipla Limited (Corporate identity number:
L24239MH1935PLC002380) ("Cipla® or “the Company”) having
registered office at Cipla house, Peninsula Business Park,
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013, is
a public company incorporated and domiciled in India. The
Company is in the business of manufacturing, developing, and
marketing wide range of branded and generic formulations
and Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs). The Group has
its wide network of manufacturing, trading and other incidental
operations in India and International markets. Equity shares of
the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Global Depository
Receipts are listed on Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial
statements of Cipla Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the
Group’), and its associates (refer “Annexure A” to Note 1 for the
list of subsidiaries and associates).

Note 1: Significant accounting policies and key
accounting estimates and judgements

1.1 Basis of preparation
(i) Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as
at and for the year ended 31 March, 2022 have been
prepared and presented in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) [Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015), and presentation
requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the companies
Act, 2013, as amended from time to time, guidelines issued
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

These financial statements have been prepared by the
Group as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind
AS that are effective or elected for early adoption at the
Company’s annual reporting date, 319 March, 2022.

(i) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis and on accrual basis, except for
the following:

Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value or at amortised cost depending on classification;

Derivative financial instruments and contingent
consideration is measured at fair value;

Assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to
sell;

Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair
value;

Lease liability and Right-of-use assets - measured at
fair value;

Share based payments - measured at fair value ; and

Investment in associates are accounted for using
equity method.

(iii) Consistency of accounting policy

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the
periods presented in the financial statements, except where
a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

(iv)

Functional currency and rounding of amounts

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupee () which is also the functional currency of the
parent company. All amounts disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest crores or decimal thereof as per the requirement
of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. Amount less than
¥ 50,000/- is presented as T 0.00 crores. ltems included
in the consolidated financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency’) unless use of different currency
is appropriate.

1.2 Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and
non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule Il of the Act and Ind
AS | - Presentation of Financial Statements.

Assets:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the
following criteria:

a) itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or
consumption in, the Group’s normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after
the reporting date; or

d) itis cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the
following criteria:
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a) it is expected to be settled in the Group’s normal
operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting date; or

d) the Group does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not
affect its classification.

Current assets and liabilities include the current portion
of assets and liabilities, respectively. All other assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are always disclosed as non-current.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to Cipla
Limited, its subsidiaries and associates.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company
exercises control. The Company exercises control if and
only if it has the following:

power over the entity;

exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity; and

the ability to use its power over the entity to affect the
amount of its returns.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the following basis:

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions
and resulting unrealised profits. Unrealiscd losses
resulting trom intra-group transactions arc chminated
unless cost cannot be recovered.

The Group treats fransactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A ¢change
in ownership interest resuits in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised within equity.

The profit and other comprehensive income
attributable 1o non-controlling inleresl of subsidiaties
are shown separately in the consolidated profil ur luss
and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
tn participate in the financial and operating poliry
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method unless
otherwise stated.

Under the equity methad, on initial recognition the
investiment in an associate is recognised at cost. The
carrying amount of the investment in associates is
increased or decreased to recognise the Group’s share
of the profil ur loss ufter the date of acquisition, unless
the share purchase agreement specify otherwise.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in those entities. Where
unreglised losses are eliminated, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries and associates
used far the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
the same reporting date as that of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances
and are presented to the extent possible, in the same
manner, as the Company’s separate financial statements.

Upon loss of control, the Company de-recognises
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controllinginterests and the other components of equity
related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising
on the loss of control is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. If the Company retains any interest in the
previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at
fair value at the date that control is last Gubsequently,
it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or
as a FVTOC!H ar FVTPL financial asset, depending an
the level of influence retained.

1.3 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires management of the Group to make judgements,
estimates and assurnptions that affect the reported assels
and liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosures
relating 1o contingent liabilities. Manuyeimenl believes thul
the estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Estimates
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and underlying assumptions are reviewed by management
at eachreporting date. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision of these estimates is recognised
prospectively in the current and future periods.

Following are the critical judgements and estimates:

1.3.1 Judgements

0]

(i)

Leases

Ind AS 116 - Leases requires lessees to determine the lease
term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted
with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use
of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-
lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably
certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the
Group considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs
relating to the termination of the lease and the importance
of the underlying asset to Group’s operations taking into
account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future
periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects
the current economic circumstances.

Income taxes

The major tax jurisdictions for the Group are Indig, US and
South Africa, though the Group companies also files tax
returns in other foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgements
are involved in determining the provision for income taxes
including judgement on whether tax positions are probable
of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can
involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over
extended time periods. The recognition of taxes that are
subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties is
assessed individually by management based on the specific
facts and circumstances.

In ossessing the realisability of deferred tax assets,
management considers whether some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realised. The ultimate
realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods
in which the temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred
income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and
tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on
the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred
income tax assets are deductible, management believes
that the Group will realise the benefits of those deductible
differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets
considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the

(iii)

(iv)

v)

near term if estimates of future taxable income during the
carry forward period are reduced.

Research and development costs

Management monitors progress of internal research and
development projects by using a project management
system. Significant judgement is required in distinguishing
research from the development phase. Development
costs are recognised as an asset when all the criteria are
met, whereas research costs are expensed as incurred.
Management aiso monitors whether the recognition
requirements for development costs continue to be met. This
is necessary due to inherent uncertainty in the economic
success of any product development.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group exercises judgement in determining if a particular
matter is possible, probable or remote. The Group also
exercises judgement in measuring and recognising
provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities
related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims
subject to negotiated settlement, mediation, government
regulation, as well as other contingent liabilities. Judgement
is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending
claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify
the possible range of the financial settlement. Because of
the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual
losses may be different from the originally estimated
provision. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Business combinations

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The acquisition date
is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer.
Judgement is applied in determining the acquisition date,
determining whether control is transferred from one party
to another and whether acquisition constitute a business or
asset acquisition. Control exists when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
power over the entity. In assessing control, potential voting
rights are considered only if the rights are substantive.

1.3.2 Estimates

0}

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles asseis
represent a significant proportion of the asset base of
the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation
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(vii) Accounting for defined benefit plans

In accounting for post-retirement benefits, several statistical
and other factors that attempt to anticipate future events
are used to calculate plan expenses and liabilities. These
factorsinclude expected return on plan assets, discount rate
assumptions and rate of future compensation increases.
To estimate these factors, actuarial consultants also use
estimates such as withdrawal, turnover, and mortality
rates which require significant judgement. The octuarial
assumptions used by the Group may differ materially from
actual results in future periods due to changing market and
economic conditions, regulatory events, judicial rulings,
higher or lower withdrawal rates, or longer or shorter
participant life spans.

(viii) Impairment of non-financial assets

(ix)

(x)

Animpairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. To determine the recoverable
amount, management estimates expected future cash flows
from each asset or cash-generating unit and determines a
svitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expected
future cash flows, management makes assumptions about
future operating results. These assumptions relate to future
events and circumstances. The actual resuits may vary and
may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s assets.

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate
involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to market
risk and the appropriate adjustment to asset-specific
risk factors.

Fair value of financial instruments

Management uses vaiuation techniques in measuring the
fair value of financial instruments where active market
quotes are not available. Details of the assumptions
used are given in the notes regarding financial assets
and liabilities. In applying the valuation techniques,
management makes maximum use of market inputs and
uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible,
consistent with observable data that market participants
would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable
data is not observable, management uses its best estimate
about the assumptions that market participants would
make. These estimates may vary from the actual prices that
would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the
reporting date.

Impact of COVID-19

The Group continues to closely monitor the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic on all aspects of its business,
including how it has impacted and will impact its
customers, employees, vendors and business partners. The
management has exercised due care, in concluding on

1.4

@®

significant accounting judgements and estimates, inter-aliq,
recoverability of receivables, assessment for impairment of
goodwill, investments, intangible assets, inventory, based
on the information available to date, both internal and
external, while preparing the Group’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment, including freehold
land, are initially recorded at cost. Cost of property, plant
and equipment comprises purchase price, non-refundable
taxes, levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended use. The
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property,
plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. Subsequent
to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment other
than freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is
not depreciated. The carrying values of property, plont and
equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable (refer note 1.8 for more details). The
Group had applied for the one-time transition exemption
of considering the carrying cost on the transition date,
i.e, 1% April, 2015 as the deemed cost under Ind AS and
regarded thereafter as historical cost. When parts of an
item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment
and servicing equipment that meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are capitalised at cost and
depreciated over their useful life. Costs in the nature of
repairs and maintenance arerecognised in the consolidated
profit or loss as and when incurred. The present value of the
expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset aofter
its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for the provision is met.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment outstanding at each reporting date is
disclosed as capital advance under non-current assets.

Capital work-in-progress included in non-current assets
comprises of direct costs, related incidental expenses and
attributable interest. Capital work-in-progress are not
depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.
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Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (other
than freehold land) is provided based on useful life of the
assets as prescribed in Schedule || of the Act. Depreciation
on property, plant and equipment, which are added/
disposed off during the year, is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the month of addition/deletion, in the
consolidated profit or loss.

For certain class of assets, based on the technical evaluation
and assessment, the Group believes that the useful lives
adopted by it best represent the period over which an asset
is expected to be available for use. Accordingly, for these
assets, the useful lives estimated by the Group are different
from those prescribed in the Schedule I1.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end ond, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the change(s) are accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind
AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Useful Life
25 to 99 years

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings - Factory and Administrative
Buildings

Buildings - Ancillary structures

Plant and equipments

3to 10 years
2to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3 to 10 years
Vehicles 4 to 8 years
De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment, is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets such as marketing intangibles, trademarks,
technical know-how, brands and computer software,
product related intangibles, distribution network, non-
compete rights, government contracts acquired separately
are measured on initial recognition at cost. Further,
payments to third parties for in-licensed products, generally
take the form of up-front and milestones payments and are
capitalised following a cost accumulation approach to
variable payments (milestones) when receipt of economic
benefits out of the separately purchased transaction is
considered to be probable. Following initial recognition,

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

W)

infangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any (refer
note 1.8 for more detaqils). Subsequent expenditures are
capitalised only when they increase the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate.

Goodwill

Goodwillrepresents the excess of consideration transferred,
together with the amount of non-controlling interest in the
acquiree, over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted investees,
the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment, and any impairment loss on
such an investment is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying value of the equity
accounted investee.

In-Process Research and Development assets (“IPR&D”)
or Intangible assets under development

Acquired research and development intangible assets that are
under development are recognised as In-Process Research
and Development assets (“IPR&D") or Intangible assets under
development. IPR&D assets are not amortised but evaluated
for potential impairment on an annual basis or when there are
indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Subsequent expenditure on an in-process research or
development project acquired separately or in a business
combination and recognised as an intangible asset is:

recognised as an expense when incurred, if it is
research expenditure;

capitalised if the cost can be reliably measured, the
product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to
complete the development and to use and sell the asset.

Expenditure on regulatory approval

Expenditure for obtaining regulatory approvals and
registration of products for overseas markets is charged to
the consolidated profit or loss.

Amortisation

The Group amortises intangible assets with a finite useful
life using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Intangible assets Useful Lives

Marketing intangibles

2 to 25 years

Trademarks 2 to 1S years
Technical Know-how 2 to 15 years
Brands 21015 years

Computer software 2 to 6 years
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The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at
each reporting date.

De-recognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are de-recognised either on their disposal
or where no future economic benefits are expected from
their use. Losses arising on such de-recognition arerecorded
in the consolidated profit or loss, and are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and
the carrying amount of respective intangible assets as on
the date of de-recognition.

Assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Animpairment lossis recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the asset is
recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are
classified as held for sale. interest and other expenses
attributable to the liabilities of a disposai group classified
as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the Balance Sheet. The liabilities of
a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from other liabilities in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that
has been disposed off or is classified as held for sale and:

represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations and;

is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such
a line of business or area of operations.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-termrental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group,
is classified as investment property. Investment property is
measured initially at its cost, including related transaction
costs and borrowing costs where applicable. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits

1.8

19

associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when
incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced,
the carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives.

Investment properties generally have a useful life of 5-60
years. The useful life has been determined based on technical
evaluation performed by the management’s expert.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceed:s its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

The goodwill acquired in a business combination is, for
the purpose of impairment testing, allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

Goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an
investment in an associate is not recognised separately, and
therefore is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the
entire amount of the investment in an associate is tested for
impairment as a single asset when there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate may be impaired.

An impairment loss in respect of equity accounted investee
is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
investment with its carrying amount. An impairment loss
is recognised in the profit or loss, and reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest, ancillary costs and
other costs in connection with the borrowing of funds
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
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borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs aitributable to acquisition and/or
construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a part
of the cost of such assets, up to the date such assets are
ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are
charged to the consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign currency transiation
Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
functional currency of the Company at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary items denominated in foreign currency
at prevailing reporting date, exchange rates are recognised
in the consolidoted profit or loss. Non-monetary items are
measured at historical cost (franslated using the exchange
rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items
measured at fair value which are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Group Companies

The financial statements of foreign operations (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated as follows:

Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate
prevailing on the reporting date;

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate;

Income and expenses are franslated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the related cumulative
translation differences recognised in equity are
classified to consolidated profit or loss and are recognised
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

re-

Inventories

Inventories consists of raw materials and packing material,
stores, spares and consumables, work-in-progress, stock-
in-trade and finished goods and are measured at the

112
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lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for
obsolescence, if any.

Cost of inventories is determined on a weighted moving
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other
costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location
and condition. In the case of finished goods and work-in-
progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

Raw materials and consumables are considered at
replacement cost if the finished products, in which they will
be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Stores and spares are inventories that do not qualify to be
recognised as property, plant and equipment and consists
of consumables, engineering spares (such as machinery
spare parts), which are used in operating machines or
consumed as indirect materials in the manufacturing
process.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there s
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an assel, it is recognised as income in equal
amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset

and presented within other income.

When Joans or similar assistance are provided by the
government or related institutions, with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this
favourable interest is regarded as a government grant.

The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured
at fair value and the government grant is measured as the
difference between initial carrying value of the loan and
the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured
at amortised cost.

Export entitlement from government authority are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as other
operating revenue when the right to receive is established
as per the terms of the scheme in respect of the exports
made by the Group with no future related cost and where
there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate
collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Revenue recognition

A contract with a customer exists only when the parties
to the contract have approved it and are committed
to perform their respective obligations, the Group can
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identify each party’s rights regarding the distinct goods or
services to be transferred (“performance obligations”), the
Group can determine the transaction price for the goods
or services to be transferred, the contract has commercial
substance and it is probable that the Group will collect the
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the
goods or services that will be transferred to the customer.

Revenues are recorded in the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for performance obligations upon transfer of control
to the customer and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of estimated
incentives, returns, chargeback, rebates, sales tax and
applicable trade discounts, allowances, Goods and
Services Tax (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Sale of products

The majority of customer contracts that the Group enters
into consist of a single performance obligation for the
delivery of pharmaceutical products. The Group recognises
revenve from product sales when control of the product
transfers, generally upon shipment or delivery, to the
customer, or in certain cases, upon the corresponding sales
by customer to & third party. The Group records product
sales net of estimated incentives/discounts, returns,
chargeback, rebates and other related charges. These
are generally accounted for as variable consideration
estimated in the same period the related sales occur. The
methodology and assumptions used to estimate rebates
and returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in the light
of contractual and legal obligations, historical trends, past
experience and projected market conditions. The revenue
for such variable consideration is included in the Group's
estimate of the transaction price only if it is highly probable
that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once
any uncertainty is resolved. In making this assessment the
Group considers its historical record of performance on
similar contracts.

Sales by clearing and forwarding agents

Revenue from sales of generic products in India is
recognised upon delivery of products o distributors by
clearing and forwarding agents of the Group. Control in
respect of ownership of generic products are transferred by
the Group when the goods are delivered to distributors from
clearing and forwarding agents. Clearing and forwarding
agents are generally compensated on a commission basis
as a percentage of sales made by them.

Out-licensing arrangements

Revenues include amounts derived from product out-
licensing agreements. The Group enters into collaborations

(iv)

(v,

<

and out-licensing arrangement of the Group's products to
other parties.

Licensing arrangements performance obligations generally
include intellectual property (“IP”) rights, certain R&D and
contract manufacturing services. The Group accounts for
IP rights and services separately if they are distinct ~ i.e,,
if they are separately identifiable from other items in the
arrangement and if the customer can benefit from them on
their own or with other resources that are readily available
to the customer. The consideration is allocated between
IP rights and services based on their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Revenue from IP rights is recognised at the paoint in time
when control of the distinct license is transferred to the
customer, the Group has a present right to payment
and risks and rewards of ownership is transferred to
the customer.

Revenue from sales-based milestones and royalties
promised in exchange for a license of IP is recognised
only when, or as, the later of subsequent sale or the
performance obligation to which some or all of the sales-
based royalty has been allocated, is satisfied. The Group
estimates variable consideration in the form of sales-based
milestones by using the expected value or most likely
amount method, depending upon which method the Group
expects to better predict the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled.

Service fee

Revenue from services rendered, is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss as the underlying services are
performed. Upfront non-refundable payments received
under these arrangements are deferred and recognised as
revenue over the expected period over which the related
services are expected to be performed.

Profit sharing revenues

The Group from time to time enters into marketing
arrangements with certain business partners for the sale of
its products in certain markets. Under such arrangements,
the Group sells its products to the business partners at a
non-refundable base purchase price agreed upon in the
arrangement and is also entitled to a profit share which
is over and above the base purchase price. The profit
share is typically dependent on the business partner’s
ultimate net sale proceeds or net profits, subject to any
reductions or adjustments that are required by the terms
of the arrangement. Such arrangements typically require
the business partner to provide confirmation of units sold
and net sales or net profit computations for the products
covered under the arrangement.
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Revenue in an amount equal to the base sale price is
recognised in these transactions upon delivery of products
to the business partners. An additional amount representing
the profit share component is recognised as revenue only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimaote of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognitfion.

(vii) Dividends

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
right to receive payment has been established, provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

(viii) Other Income

Other Income consists of litigation settlement income,
rent income, insurance claim, miscellaneous income and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and amount of income can be
measured reliably.

1.14 Employee benefits

W

@)

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months
of rendering the service are classified as short-term
cmployee benefits, Benefits such as salaries, wages, €lc.
and the expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the
period in which the employee renders the related service. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

Post-retirement contribution plans such as Employees' Pension
Scheme, Labour Welfare Fund, Employee State Insurance

(iii)

a)

b)

Corporation (ESIC) are charged to the consolidated profit
or loss for the year when the contributions to the respective
funds accrue. The Group.does not have any obligation other
than the contribution made.

In respect of Indian subsidiaries, eligible employees
receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the eligible employee and
respective companies make monthly contributions to this
provident fund plan cqual to a specified percentage of
the covered employee’s salary. Amounts collected under
provident fund plan are deposited in a government -
administered provident fund. Indian subsidiaries have no
fui llier obligation to plun beyornd its monihly contributions.

In respect of USA subsidiaries, there is a 401(k) plon that
provides defined coniribution retirement benefits for all the
employees. Participants may contribute a portion of their
compensation to the plan, subject to the limitations under
the Internal Revenue Code. The Company’s contributions to
the plan are at the discretion of the Banrd Ohligatians for
contributions to 401(k) plan are recognised as an employee
benefits expense in profit or loss as incurred.

For other foreign subsidiaries, contributions to defined
counltribulion plans are charged to The consolldaled profil o
loss as and when the services are received from the employees.

Defined benefit plans
Employee’s provident fund

In accordance with the Employees' Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952, all eligible employees
of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under
the provident fund plan in which both the employee and
employer (at a determined rate) contribute monthly
to “Cipla Limited Employee’s Provident Fund Trust’, a
Trust set up by the Company to manage the investments
and distribute the omounts to employees ot the time of
separation from the Company or retirement, whichever
is eurlier. This plun is u Jdefined obligution plun us the
Company is obligated to provide its members a rate of
return which should, at a minimum, meet the interest rate
declared by the government-administered provident fund.
A part of the Company’s coniribution is ransferred 1o the
government-administered pension fund. The contributions
made by the Company and the shortfall of interest, if any,
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated profit or
loss under "Employee benefits expense”.

Gratuity obligations

Post-retirement benefit plans such as gratuity for eligible
employees of the Company and its Indian subsidiaries
is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation made
by an independent actuary as at the reporting date. Re-
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measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is included in retained earnings and
will not be reclassified to the consolidated profit or loss.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the consolidated profit or loss.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in the consolidated profit or
loss as past service cost.

Other benefit plans

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming
due or expected to be availed within one year from the
reporting date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted
value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated
value of benefit expected to be availed by the employees.
Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming
due or expected to be availed more than one year after
the reporting date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the consolidated
profit or loss and are not deferred.

Termination benefits

Termingtion benefits are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss when:

the Group has a present obligation as a result of past
event;

a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation; and

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

(vi) Other long-term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of other long-term
employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that
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a)

employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and previous periods. That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value.

Share based payments
Equity settled share based payment transactions

The Group operates equity settled share based remuneration
plans for its employees.

All services received in exchange for the grant of any share
based payment are measured at their fair values on the
grant date and is recognised as an employee expense, in
the profit or loss with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period that the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the options. The increase in equity recognised
in connection with share based payment transaction
is presented as a separate component in equity under
“Employee stock options/Employee stock appreciation rights
reserve”. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of stock options that vest.

Grant date is the date when the Group and employees
have shared an understanding of terms and conditions on
the arrangement.

Where employees are rewarded using share based
payments, the fair value of employees’ services is
determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of the
equityinstruments granted. This fair value is appraised at the
grant date and excludes the impact of non-market vesting
conditions (for example profitability and sales growth). All
share based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an
expense in the consolidated profit or loss. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
over the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of share options expected to vest.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised if there is
any indication that the number of share options expected
to vest differs from previous estimates. Any adjustment to
cumulative share based compensation resulting from a
revision is recognised in the current period. The number
of vested options ultimately exercised by holder does not
impact the expense recorded in any period.

Market conditions are taken into account when estimating
the fair value of the equity instruments granted.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received,
net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are
allocated to share capital up to the nominal (or par) value
of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as
share premium.
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Cash settled share based payment transactions

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in
respect of share based payment transactions which
are settled in cash is recognised as an expense, with a
corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period during
which the employees become unconditionally entitled to
payment. The liability is re-measured at each reporting
date and at the settlement date based on the fair value of
the share based payment transaction. Any changes in the
liability are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense and
deferred tax expense/benefit. Current and deferred taxes
are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable
income for the year as determined in accordance with
the provisions of the applicable income tax law of the
respective jurisdiction. The current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the Balance Sheet
opproach on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed

(iii)
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at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which the temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an
asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably certain
that the Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each reporting
date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is
written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing
evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal
income tax during the specified period.

The Group recognises deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except to the extent that both
of the following conditions are satisfied:

When the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference; and

It is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Dividend distribution tax arising out of payment of dividends
to shareholders under the indian Income tax regulations
and tax on dividend received from foreign subsidiary is not
considered as tax expense for the Group and all such taxes
are recognised in the statement of changes in equity as
part of the associated dividend payment and receipt.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities.

Uncertain tax positions

Accruals for uncertain tax positions require management
to make judgements of potential exposures. Accruals for
uncertain tax positions are measured using either the most
likely amount or the expected value amount depending
on which method the entity expects to better predict the
resolution of the uncertainty. Tax benefits are not recognised
unless the tax positions will probably be accepted by the tax
authorities. This is based upon management’s interpretation
of applicable laws and regulations and the expectation
of how the tax authority will resolve the matter. Once
considered probable of not being accepted, management
reviews each material tax benefit and reflects the effect of
the uncertainty in determining the related taxable amounts.

Leases

The determination of whether anarrangement is (or contains)
a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
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the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains,
a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right
is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases
for land, buildings, vehicle and computers. The Group
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception
of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i)
the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the
Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset through the period of the lease and (i) the
Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangement in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.
For these short-term and low value leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements inciudes the options to extend
or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-
use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use  assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.,
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value
in use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost
at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate

@ii)

(iii)
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implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile
of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if
the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as a
finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the right of-use asset arising from the head
lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Arrangements in the nature of lease

The Group enters into agreements, comprising a transaction
or series of related transactions that does not take the legal
form of a lease but conveys the right to use the asset in
return for a payment or series of payments. In case of such
arrangements, the Group applies the requirements of Ind
AS 116 - Leases to the lease element of the arrangement.
For the purpose of applying the requirements under Ind AS
116 - Leases, payments and other consideration required
by the arrangement are separated at the inception
of the arrangement into those for lease and those for
other elements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash at bank including fixed deposit with original maturity
period of three months or less and short-term highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months
or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
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determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Provision for onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised in the profit
or loss when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable
cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower
of the expected cost of terminating the coniract and the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before
a provision is established, the Company recognises any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

1.20 Contingencies

1.21

Disclosure of contingent liabilities is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where
there is possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that
an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
related income are recognised in the period in which the
change occurs.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at
each reporting date.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets
(o) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

(5)

(@

(d)

those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

those to be measured at omortised cost. The
classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made anirrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVTOCI.

Initial recognition and measurement

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in below categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost.

Debt instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Derivatives and equity instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL).

. Equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments are measured at fair value.
Equity instruments which are held for trading are
classified as FVTPL. For all other equity instruments,
the Group decides to classify the same either as at
FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument
as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the
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OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to
consolidated profit or loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the consolidated profit or loss. Transaction cost
of financial assets at FVTPL are expensed in the
consolidated profit or loss.

De-recognition

The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the

‘transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing

involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on abasis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a
financial asset or agroup of financial assets is impaired.
in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments,
the Group applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on trade receivables or any contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset. For this purpose, the
Group follows a ‘simpiified approach’ for recognition
of impairment loss allowance on the trade receivable
balances. The application of this simplified approach
does not require the Group to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition. As a practical expedient, the
Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables.
The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the

(i

(a

(©)

trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Financial lia
Classification

Financiatl liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings, financial guarantee
contracts and derivative financ struments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their clossification, os described below:

Financial liabi s at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through the profit or loss. Financial lial
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind
AS 109 - Financiol Instruments. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as heid for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments are
satisfied. For lia es designated as FVTPL, fair vailue
gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognised in OC!. These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to the profit or loss. However,
the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
The Group has not designated any financicl liability as
fair value through profit and loss.

:
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(iii)

(iv)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are anintegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the consolidated profit
or loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as foreign exchange forward and currency option
contracts, interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value.

The changes in fair value of such derivative contract, as
well as the foreign exchange gains and losses relating
to the monetary items are recognised in the Profit or
Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Cash flow hedge

The Group classifies its foreign exchange forward and
currency option contracts and interest rate swaps that
hedge foreign currency risk associated with highly
probable forecasted as cash flow hedges and measures

v)

(vi)

them at fair value. The effective portion of changes
in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under hedging
reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the profit or loss,
and is included in the ‘Other income/expenses’ line item.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity relating to effective
portion (as described cbove) are reclassified to the
consolidated profit or loss in the periods when the hedged
item offects consolidated profit or loss, in the same
line as the recognised hedged item. When the hedging
instrument expires or is sold or terminated or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative deferred gain/loss at that time remains
in equity until the forccast transaction occurs. When the
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain/loss that was reported in equity are
immediately reclassified to consolidated profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
or the counterparty.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments; and

the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind
AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that would
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be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations. Where guarantees in relation
to loans or other payables of associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of
the investment.

(vii) Put option

The potential cash payments related to put options
issued by the Group over the equity of subsidiary
companies are accounted for as financial liabilities
when such options may only be settled by exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of shares in the subsidiary.

In the absence of specific guidance under Ind AS 32 -
Financial Instruments on accounting of such put option
(NCI Put Option), initially, the Group recognises the
amount that may become payable under the option on
exercise at fair value as financial liability. Subsequently,
the Group recognises the change in fair value of the
option, with a corresponding charge directly to equity.
The Group recognises the cost of writing put options,
determined as the excess of the fair value of the
options over any consideration received, as a finance
cost.

Put option liabilities have been valued based on either:
Discounted cash flow valuation models; or

Observable market transactions (e.g., funding
rounds and non-controlling interest buy-outs).

In the event that the option expires unexercised,
the liability is de-recognised with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

1.22 Business combinations

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The acquisition date
is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer.
Judgement is applied in determining the acquisition date
and determining whether control is transferred from one
party to another. Control exists when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
power over the entity. In assessing control, potential voting
rights are considered only if the rights are substantive. The
Group measures goodwill as of the applicable acquisition
date at the fair value of the consideration transferred,
including the recognised amount of any non-controlling
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interest in the acquiree, less the net recognised amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the consideration transferred, a
bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in the OCl
and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve where
there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase
else the gainis directly recognised in equity as capital reserve.
Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets
transferred, liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous
owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the
Group. Consideration transferred also includes the fair value of
any contingent consideration. Consideration transferred does
not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships and employee service-related payments. Any
goodwill that arises on account of such business combination
is tested annually for impairment.

Any contingent consideration is measured af fair value at
the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay contingent
consideration that meets the definition of a financial
instrument is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured
and the settlement is occounted for within equity. Otherwise,
other contingent consideration is re-measured at fair value
at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recorded in the
consolidated profit or loss.

A contingent liability of the acquiree is assumed in a
business combination only if such a liability represents a
present obligation and arises from a past event, and its fair
value can be measured reliably.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a
business combination, such as finder’s fees, legal fees, due
diligence fees and other professional and consulting fees,
are expensed as incurred.

1.23 Recent accounting pronouncement

New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

Reclassification and disclosures consequent to amendments
to Schedule lil

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule Il
to the Companies Act, 2013 on 24™ March, 2021 to increase
the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users
of the financial statements. These amendments were applied



A

Care that inspires innovation

Cipla Limited | Annual Report 2021-22

318

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

w.e.f. 1¥ April, 2021. Consequent to above, the Company has
disclosed the required relevant disclosure and changed the
classification/presentation of the following:

a) Security deposits - now included in other financial
assets instead of loans

b)

<)

Current maturities of long-term borrowings - now
included in short-term borrowings instead of other
current financial liabilities

Lease liabilities - now disclosed as separate line item
on the face of balance sheet instead of other financial
liabilities

The Group have reclassified the comparative amounts to conform with current year presentation as per the requirements of
Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements. The impact of such classifications is summarised as under:

As per Balance sheet As per Balance sheet Change
Particulars as at as at
31* March, 2021 31 March, 2022
Non-current assets
Loans 52.99 0.04 (52.95)
Other financial assets 42.88 95.83 5295
Current assets
Loans 2.58 1.00 (1.58)
Other financial assets 481.66 483.24 1.58
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities - 197.89 197.89
Other financial liabilities 295.61 97.72 (197.89)
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 33473 552.81 218.08
Lease liabilities - 60.96 60.96
Other financial liabilities 733.99 454.95 (279.04)

New amendments issued but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide notification dated 23 March, 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective from 1 April, 2022,
These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company or future reporting periods and on

foreseeable future transactions.



i )
« Corporate Overview & Integrated Report /’ ‘\ Stotutory Reports /’ Financial Statements ‘-——

— 319

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure ‘A’ to Note 1: Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements’

Country of % Ownership Interest With effect

Sr. Name of the company Incorporation As at As at from
31" March, 2022  31* March, 2021

a. Subsidiaries (held directly)
1 Goldencross Pharma Limited Indic 100% 100% __ 14/05/2010
_2____ Meditab Specialities Limited India 100% 100% 01/10/2010
3  Cipla (Mauritius) Limited! Mauritius - - 27/01/201
4 Cipla Medpro South Africa (Pty) Limited South Africa 100% 100% 15/07/2013
Z Cipla Holding B.V. Netherlands 100% 100% 28/08/2013
6 Cipla Pharma and Life Sciences Limited

(formerly known as Cipla BioTec Limited) India 100% 100% 24/07/2014
7  Cipla (EV) Limited United
- Kingdom 100% 100% 27/01/20N
8  Saba Investment Limited UAE 51% 51% 02/10/2014
9 Jay Precision Pharmaceuticals Private Limited India 60% 60% 26/02/2015
F Cipla Health Limited india 100% 100% 27/08/2015
II Cipla Pharmaceuticals Limited India 100% 100% 19/11/2019
2 Cipla Digital Health Limited ' India 100% - 25/02/2022
b. Subsidiaries (held indirectly)
13 Cipla (UK) Limited 2 United
. Kingdom - - 27/01/201
14 Cipla Australia Pty Limited Australia 100% 100% 04/03/201
-15—- Medispray Laboratories Private Limited India 100% 100% 01/10/2010
E Sitec Labs Limited India 100% 100% 01/10/2010
17  Meditab Holdings Limited Mauritius 100% 100% 01/10/2010
18 Cipla USA Inc. USA 100% 100% 12/09/2012
9 Cipla Kenya Limited Kenya 100% 100% 08/10/2012
20 Cipla Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100% 100%  20/03/2013
21 Cipla Europe NV Belgium 100% 100% 30/09/2013
22 Cipla Quality Chemical Industries Limited Uganda 51.18% 51.18% 20/1/2013
23 Inyanga Trading 386 (Pty) Limited 3 South Africa - 100%  15/07/2013
ﬁ__ Cipla Medpro Holdings (Pty) Limited “ South Africa 100% 100% 15/07/2013
25 Cape to Cairo Exports (Pty) Limited 5 South Africa - - 15/07/2013
_2__9—_ Cipla Dibcare (Pty) Limited * South Africa 100% 100% 15/07/2013
27 Cipla Medpro Manufacturing (Pty) Limited (formerly

known as Cipla Life Sciences (Pty) Limited) South Africa 100% 100% 15/07/2013
E Cipla-Medpro (Pty) Limited South Africa 100% 100% 15/07/2013
39__ Cipla-Medpro Distribution Centre (Pty) Limited South Africa 100% 100% 15/07/2013
30 Cipla Medpro Botswana (Pty) Limited Botswana 100% 100% 15/07/2013

31 Cipla Select (Pty) Limited (formerly known as Cipla
OLTP (Pty) Limited) South Africa 100% 100% 15/07/2013
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Annexure ‘A’ to Note 1: Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements

Sr.

32

33
34

35
36

38

o
20
2
w2
43
44
45
46

7

8

|

£[3[5]:

0
1

|

i

53
C.
S4

55

55
5
d._
58

5
60

&

62

63
1.

VP NG W

Country of % Ownership Interest With effect

Name of the company Incorporation As at As at from
31* March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Medpro Pharmaceutica (Pty) Limited South Africa 100% 100% 15/07/2013
Breathe Free Lanka (Private) Limited Sri Lanka 100% 100% 16/06/2014
Cipla Medica Pharmaceutical and Chemical
Industries Limited Yemen 50.49% 50.49% 02/10/2014
Cipla Pharma Lanka (Private) Limited ' Sri Lanka - - 17/11/2014
Cipla Brasil Importadora e Distribuidora de
Medicamentos Lida. Brazil 100% 100% 11/05/2015
Cipla Maroc SA Morocco 60% 60% 08/05/2015
Cipla Middle East Pharmaceuticals FZ-LLC UAE 51% 51% 31/05/2015
Quality Chemicals Limited ¢ Uganda - - 06/08/2015
Cipla Philippines Inc. Philippines 100% 100% 06/01/2016
InvaGen Pharmaceuticals Inc. USA 100% 100% 17/02/2016
Exelan Pharmaceuticals Inc. USA 100% 100% 17/02/2016
Cipla Algérie Algeria 40% 40% 06/06/2016
Cipla Biotec South Africa (Pty) Ltd 7 South Africa - 100% 10/06/2016
Anmarate’ (Pty) Limited ¢ South Africa - - 12/04/2017
Cipla Technologies LLC USA 100% 100% 13/11/2017
Cipla Gulf FZ-LLC UAE 100% 100% 10/10/2018
Mirren (Pty) Limited South Africa 100% 100% 22/10/2018
Madison Pharmaceuticais Inc. USA 100% 100% 26/10/2018
Cipla Colombia SAS Colombia 100% 100% 25/04/2019
Cipla (China) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. China 100% 100% 20/05/2019
Cipla (Jiangsu) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. China 80% 80% 08/08/2019
Cipla Therapeutics Inc.® USA 100% 100% 15/05/2020
Associates (held directly)
AMPSolar Power Systems Private Limited India 26% 26% 12/06/2019
GoApptiv Private Limited ? India 20.61% 21.85% 27/07/2020
AMP Energy Green Eleven Private Limited 2 India 32.49% - 08/02/2022
Clean Max Auriga Power LLP * India 33% - 14/12/2021
Associates (held indirectly)
Stempeutics Research Private Limited ' India 37.44% 39.18% 01/10/2010
Avenue Therapeutics, Inc. USA’ 25.93% 32.50% 08/02/2019
Brandmed (Pty) Limited South Africa 30% 30% 24/04/2019
Iconphygital Private Limited India 20.61% - 03/05/2021
Other consolidating entities
Cipla Employee Stock Option Trust " India 100% 100% 09/10/2015
Cipla Health Employee Stock Option Trust India 100% 100% 14/03/2016

Liquidoted w.e.f. 17" May, 2020

Liquidated w.e.f. 5" March, 2021

Dissolved w.e.f. 10" December, 202}

In process of liquidation

De-registered w.e.f. 27" August, 2020

Ceased to be a subsidiary w.e.f. 19" August, 2020
De-registered w.e.f. 3" February, 2022
Incorporated on 15" May, 2020

Acquisition of 21.85% stake and associate from 27™ July,
2020

Stake changed w.e.f. 2% july, 2020 from 40.78% to 39.18%
and further changed to 37.44% w.e.f. 12" October, 2021

De-registered

Acquisition of 32.49% stake and associate from 8" February,
2022

Wholly owned subsidiary of GoApptiv Private Limited
Acquisition of 33% stake and associate from 14" December,
2021

Incorporated on 25™ February, 2022

Amalgamated with Breathe Free Lanka (Private) Limited
with effect from 1* May, 2020 vide order of amalgamation
dated 21¢ July, 2020 and therefore, ceased to exist.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements :
Note 2.1: (a) Property, plant and equipment ’ s

) T in crores

: : Leasehold Furniture
Particulars Freehold building Buildings Plant and and . Office Vehicles * Total
land and flats equipments equipments
improvements fixtures

Gross block
Balance as at 1* April, 2020 76.83 248.76 2,317.68 4,915.90 155.73 103.04 .27 7,829.21
Additions for the year ’ ' - 2.05 34.23 413.19 5.74 6.16 1.62 46299
Assets classified as held for sale (refer below note iii) - - (4.84) (23.4) (0.47) - - (28.72)
Deletions and adjustments during the year (2.08) 1.87) (7.36) (32.95) 16.59) (18.59) (1.63) (81.07)
Foreign currency translations adjustments - 9.40 (2.62) 18.74 2.49 1.47 0.9 29.67
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 74.75 258.34 2,337.09 1 5,291.47 146.90 92.08 ’ n.t.sd 8,212.08
Additions for the year 8.12 - 179.53 554.48 8.42 7.4 2.65 760.61
Transfer to/from Investment Property (refer note 3) - ‘- 64.69 0.77 0.92 1.06 ) - 67.44
Deletions and adjustments during the year - - (0.39)° (71.84) (1.25) 0.79) (1.13) (75.20)
Foreign currency translations adjustments : 1214 36.26 (0.61) ~0.26

Depreciation and Impairmenf

Accumulated balance as at 1" April, 2020 : - 16.57 360.07 2,390.14 80.86 70.59 5.66 3,023.89
Depreciation charge for the year o . - 16.83 76.41 - 477.90 12.94 n.22 1.86 597.16
Impairment charge for the year o oo - - 16.00 - - - 16.00
" Transfer i6 assets classified as held for sale {refér note - v R e e
2.3 (o)} . - - (0.58) (4.64) (0.06) - - (5.28)
Deletions and adjustments during the year - (.87) (0.10) (24.45) 1.26) (12.86) (1.07) (51.60)
Foreign currency translations adjustments : - 6.53 (1.18) 5.75 1.81 0.79 0.08 13.78
Accumulated balance as at 31* March, 2021 . - 138.06 434.62 2,860.70 84.29 69.74 6.53° 3,593.94
Depreciation charge for the year - 16.34 81.17 482.90 12.35 7.75 1.28 601.79
impairment charge for the year P - 1.34 .51 0.08 0.01 - 12.94
Transfer to/from Investment Property (refer note 3) - - 7.20 0.53 0.63 1.00 - 9.36
Deletions and adjustments during the year ' - b (0.01) (58.95) (1.14) (0.74) (0.95) (61.79)
Foreign currency trcnslohons odjusfments 196 2216 0.19 (0.64) 0.20 30.83
: 7.06] :

120.28 1,902.47 2,430.77 62.61 22.34 492 | 4,618.14

i.  The gross value of buildings and flats includes the cost of shares in co-operative housing societies.

ii. The above additions to property, plonf and eqmpmenfs during the yecr |ncludes T17.25 crores (31¥ March, 2021: ¥ 24. 14 crores)

used for resecrch and development.

jii. The irhpoirment charge for the year % 12.94 crores (31 March, 2021: 16.00 crores), includes impairment charge on certain
assets that has been assessed as non-usable by the management and has been recorded at scrap value less cost to sell.

iv. The fitle deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of entities fncluded in group, covered under the

Act.

v. The Grroup has not revaolued its property, plant cﬁd equipment.

vi. The Group has not crecoted any charge on its property, plant and equipment. '
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2.1: (b) Details of capital work-in-progress

Zin crores
Particulars As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
{Opening balance 1 570841 421.00]
Additions during the year 501.06 583.37
Deletions during the year (0.38) (3.29)
Capitalised during the year (699.22) (432.33)
Impairment during t‘h_g“\_/ggfl L 8.17) (2.22)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale {refer note 2.3 (a)} - (b.35)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 18.77 4.66
| Closing balance ) o U ... 382901} .. ... 570.84}

i. The impairment loss relates to certain capital work-in-progress that has been assessed as non-usable by the management and
has been recorded at the scrap value less cost to sell.

ii. Capital work-in-progress Ageing schedule:

The table below provides details regarding the capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as of 31** March, 2022: 2
in crores

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars Less than1 i More than 3
. . 1-2 years 2-3 years
. year years

Projects in progress 265.07 66.21 20.22 31.40 382.90
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
{Total ' ) 1 265,071 O 66.21f] 202211 31.4011 '382.90|
The table below provides details regarding the capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as of 31 March, 2021: % in crores

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Projects in progress 353.29 145.52 14.90 5713 570.84
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
{Total ' I 353.2911 " 145,521 14.901 1 571311 570.84|

iii. CWIP completion schedule

There are no capital work-in-progress, whose completion is either overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original
plan as on 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021

iv. For projects which are under legal proceedings as at 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021 - Refer note 45
Note 2.2: Lease accounting

Where Group is lessee:
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right-of-use assets:

Tin crores
Category of ROU asset

Particulars i

Land Buildings Computers Vehicles Total
and Flats

Balance recognised as at I April, 2020 102.82 199.63 18.97 1.31 322.73
Additions during theyear 20.14 79.26 o - 9940
Deletions, modifications and adjustments during the year (1.03) 0.79) - (0.42) — (3.24)
Depreciation charge for the year (3.00) (75.7) (10.48) (0.16) (88.82)
Translation difference 0.36 7.69 - 0.01 8.06

Balance as at 31¥ March, 2021 119.28 209.62 8.49 0.74 33813
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 2.2: Lease accounting (Contd.) )
Tincrores
Category of ROU asset
Particulars ildi
arfico Land Buildings Computers Vehicles ' Total
and Flats A
Additions during the year 18.84 70.07 - - 88.91
Deletions, modifications and adjustments during the year - (29.14) - - (29.14)
Depreciation charge for the yeor (4.03) (68.24) (7.02) (0.23) (79.52)
Translation difference 1.74 5.45 - 0.04 7.23
|Balance as at 31 March, 2022 ' i 135.83 ] 187.76 11 14711 0.55}] 325.61]

i. The lease agreements for immovable properties where the entities included in group is the lessee, are duly executed in favour
of entities included in group, covered under the Act.

ii. ~The Group has not revaiued its Right-of-use assets.

iii. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is in the range of 4% to 12%.

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease  Note 2.2: Lease accounting (Contd.)
liabilities: '

¥in crores Right-of-use assets Range of remaining term
. . Asat As at Land 2 to 97 years
Particulars R ) 31 March, 31 March, ——— , L pU——

- e Buildings and Flats 0 to'8 years

2022 2021
—_ = Computers 1to 2 years
Current lease liabilities 73.36 6096 Vehicle 1 to 2 years

Non-current lease liabilities 158.28 197.89
[Total i { ; 231641 | 258.85) Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was 2 78.18 crores
) for the year ended 31¥ March, 2022 (31 March, 2021: ¥ 75.86

crores).

The following is the movement in lease liabilities:

m The aggregate depreciation on Right-of-use assets has been
As at Asat  included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the
Particulars 31 March, 31# March,  Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
2022 2021
Opening balance 258.85 ——TU—'I— The following is the movement in the net investment in sublease
Additions during the year 8891 6005 Of Right-of-use assets during the year ended 31* March, 2022
Deletions, modifications and and 31 March, 2021: Zin crores
adjustments during the year . (23.41) 1.03
Finance cost accrued For the year For the year
during the year 18.26 2018  Particulars ended ended
Payment of lease liabilities MGG E]  31° March, 2021
(outflow) (10.36) (104.5)  Opening balance - 119
Translation difference (0.61) 9.42 Addition - -
Lease concession ] - (0.09) Delefion N (0.63)
IClosing-balance ) i 23%64( § -~ 258,854 Lease receipts - (0.26)
The table below provides details regarding the contractual Lease rgcelpfs write off - (0.26)
N S h . Translation difference - (0.04)
maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis: IClosing balance i i -
Tincrores
As at ——_As at Where Group is lessor -
Particulars 31t March, 31 March, The Group has given certain premises under operating lease or
2022 2021 leave and license agreement. The Group retains substantially ali
Less than one year 85.08 7329  risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset and hence
One to five years 14813 19283 Classified as operating lease. Lease income on such operating
More than five years 5774 7572  lease is recognised in profit or loss under ‘Rent’ in Note 32 -
Sub-total 29095 3484  Ofherincome.
Less: Financial component (59.31) (82.99)

{Total i 2316411 258.851
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2.3: (a) Assets classified as held for sale

Note 3: Investment properties (Contd.)

. Zin crores
in crores as of [N
For the year Fortheyear  particulars FIREVELSN 31 March,
Particulars ended ended 2022 2021
31 March, 2022 BRI ST W10
_ ——————  Transfer to property, plant
EQE,Q:Q equipments® 1293 20.20 and equipment (refer note 2.1) (67.44) -
Buildings and flats 2.57 4.26 | Closing balance I 72.06]] 139.50]
Furniture and fixtures* 0.16 0.41 Accomulated depreciati
Right-of-use assets” 0.06 on ccumulate preciafion
Capital work-in- Opening balance 17.75 15.20
progress 0.05 0.35 Transfer to property, plant
Software* 0.00 0.02 and equipment (9.36) -
Other assets 094 313 Depreciation for the year
Total [refer note (i) _ _ | (refer note 38) 2.25 2.55
and (ii}] 1671 28.48] {Closing balance [ 10,64 17.75!
*net of accumulated depreciation and amortisation Net block _ 81.42 _ _ _Nu.ﬂﬂ
Fair value | 89.88]} 162.70}

Note 2.3: (b) Liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Tin crores
Particul As at
arficulars LIV R rrd 31 March, 2021
Other liabilities [refer
note (i) 0.34 0.41
1 1 0341 0.41

i.  During the previous year, the Board of directors of the

Meditab Speciclities Limited (Formerly known as Meditab
es Private Limited) (‘Meditab'), a wholly owned
ry of the Group, had approved the plan for
selling Meditab's manufacturing units.  The plan involves
transferring all the tangible and intangible assets, contracts,
permission, consents, rights, registrations, employees,
other assets and liabilities on a slump sale basis to the
prospective buyers. As at 31 March, 2022, the transfer of
one of the business unit is yet to be completed. Hence, the
Group continues to classify the assets and liabilities directly
attributable for the such transaction as held for sale. These
assets and liabilities have been carried at cost of 7 16.71
crores and ¥ 0.34 crores respectively, as these are lower
than the fair value expected out of the slump sale.

ii. During the current year, the group has sold one of
the manufacturing unit and power plant for lump sum
consideration of 15.29 crores as against the carrying value
of 29.34 crores. The group has recognised ¥ 5.95 crores as
gain on sale of assets classified as held for sale

Note 3: Investment properties

Zin crores
As at As at
Particulars 31¢ March, [EEIRE TN
2022 2021

Gross Block
Opening balance 139.50 139.50

Rental income recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties aggregates to ¥ 11.36 crores (31 March, 2021: 2
14.77 crores). Total direct operating expenses from property
that generated rental income aggregates to ¥ 0.35 crores (31
March, 2021: 20.70 crores)

Estimation of fair value

The fair valuation of the assets is based on the perception about
the macro and micro economics factors presently governing
the construction industry, location of property, existing market
conditions, degree of development of infrastructure in the
areq, demand supply conditions, internal amenities, common
amenities, etc.

This value is based on valuation conducted by an external
valuation specialist who is registered valuer as defined under
rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules,
2017. The fair value measurement is categorised in level 3 fair
value hierarchy.

Note 4: Goodwill

Movement in Good

during the year ended:

%in crores

As at As at

Particulars 31¢ March, 31 March,

2022 2021

Opening balance 3,007.29 2,934.00
Foreign currency translation

adjustments 130.64 73.29

[ Closing balance {1 313793 | 3,007.291

For impairment testing, goodwill is ailocated to the CGUs which
represents the lowest level within the group at which goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes. The Group’s
goodwill on consolidation is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might
be impaired. During the year, the testing did not result in any
impairment in the carrying amount of goodwi
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4: Goodwill (Contd.) Note 4: Goodwill (Contd.)

Goodwill acquired in business combination, was allocated to
the following cash generating units (CGUs) that are expected to
benefit from that business combination:

Zin crores
As at As at
Particulars 315t March, 31¢ March, d)

2022 2021

United States of America 1,833.90 1,769.00
South Africa 1,038.04 980.42
Yemen 131.88 127.21
India 75.46 75.46
Uganda 55.83 52.67.
Others 2.82 2.53
iTotal [} 3,137931 | 3,007.291

The recoverable amount of each CGUs are determined based on
value in use calculated using estimated discounted cash flows.

Key assumptions upon which the Group has based its
determinations of value in use includes:

a) The Group prepares its cash flow forecasts for 5 years
based on the most recent financial budgets approved by
Board of Directors.

based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The weighted average growth rates used
were consistent with industry reports ranging from 0% to
33% as at 31 March, 2022 (31 March, 2021: 0% to 34%).

Discount rates

Management estimates discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the risks specific to the CGU,
taking into consideration the time value of money and
individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate
caiculation is based on the specific circumstances of the
Group and its operating segments and is derived from its
weighted average cost of capital (WACC) ranging from 11%
to 22% as at 31# March, 2022 (31 March, 2021: 11% to 31%).

The Group believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which a recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units.

e) Sensitivity
b) A terminal value is arrived ot by exirapolating the last o )
forecasted year cashflows to perpetuity, using a constant Reasonable se.nsmv!nes in key assumptions .consequent
. to the change in estimated growth rate and discount rate
long-term growth rate ranging from 0% to 5%. . - -
is unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the
¢) Growthrates recoverable amount of the cash generating units.
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Management determines the budgeted growth rates
Note 5: Intangible assets
Tin crores
Marketing Technical Licences
Particulars . L, know-~ Trademarks and Brands Total
Software intangibles
how patents
Gross block
Balance as at 1! April, 2020 229.89 2,966.21 8.71 571.14 17.74 33.99 3,827.68
Additions for the year (refer note 5.2) 34.18 49.92 - 20.05 - 6537 169.52
Deletions and adjustments for the year (2.1 - - (14.74) - - (16.85)
Foreign currency translations adjustments 2.1 38.37 (0.14) 68.70 1.66 [(AD)] 109.59
Transfer to asset held for sale {refer note 2.3 (@)} (0.39) - - - - - (0.39)
Balance as at 31* March, 2021 263.68 3,054.50 8.57 64515 19.40 98.25 4,089.55
Additions for the year (refer note 5.2) 11.52 143.91 ~ 13.51 - - 168.94
Deletions and adjustments for the year (3.58) (0.77) ~ - - - (4.35)
Foreign currency translations adjustments 2.65 121.98 0.14 25.43 1.15 117 152.52
IBalance as at 31* March, 2022 H  27427{]] 3,319.62]] 8.71 | 684.09]] 20.55| 99.42}]4,406.66]
Amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1** April, 2020 170.43 1,909.24 8.36 215.67 15.02 12.42 2,331.14
Amortisation charge for the year 39.31 211.07 0.34 51.43 - 12.44 314.59
impairment charge for the year (refer note 5.1) - 17.32 - 314 - - 20.46
Deletions and adjustments for the year (2.08) - - (15.25) - - (17.33)
Foreign currency translations adjustments 0.99 (26.35) (0.13) 35.08 2.06 (0.80) 10.85

a__
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Note 5: Intangible assets (Contd.)

Tin crores
Marketi Technical Licences
Particulars . ar ? ng know- Trademarks and Brands Total
Software intangibles
how patents
Transfer to asset held for sale {refer note 2.3 (a)} (0.37) - - - - - (0.37)
Balance as at 31¥ March, 2021 208.28 2,111.28 8.57 290.07 17.08 24.06 2,659.34
Amortisation charge for the year 33.96 219.95 - 49.97 - 2.64 306.52
Impairment charge for the year (refer note 5.1) - 22.66 - - - - 22.66
Deletions and adjustments for the year (3.54) (0.06) - - - - (3.60)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1.47 83.71 0.14 15.17 1.55 0.12 102.16
{Balance as at 31* March, 2022 1§ 240.171)  2,437.54]1 8.711 355.21 ( 18.63!] 26.82]] 3,087.08I
Net block
lAs at 31 March, 2022 i1 34.1011 882.08!1 ~f1 328.88! [ 1.92j] 72.60}} 1,319.58}
IAs at 31* March, 2021 I 55.401 943.22i | =11 355.08' ( 2.321] 741911 1,430.21}
i.  The Group has not revalued its intangible assets.
Intangible assets under development
Tincrores
Particul As at As at
articulars 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Opening balance 398.05 403.53
Additions during the year (refer note 5.2) 131.36 186.89
Capitalised during the year (136.23) (149.68)
Deletions during the year (3.03) (5.48)
Impairment charge during the year (refer note 5.1) (18.10) (25.86)
Foreign currency translations adjustments 1.23 (1.35)
IClosing balance I 383.28 1 398.051

Note 5.1: Impairment charge during the year

Due to change in business plan, the carrying amount of certain intangible assets and intangible assets under development relating
to US generics, Emerging market and Europe business, the Group has recorded an impairment charge of ¥ 40.76 crores (31 March,
2021: ¥ 46.32 crores) in consolidated profit or loss to give effects to change in cash flows.

Note 5.2: Acquisition/capitalisation of intangibles

a) Significant acquisitions/capitalisation during current year

Product Group Entity Date of agreement/completion ¥incrores Type of deal

Lanreotide Cipla USA. Inc. 17" December, 2021 84.48 Acquisition of Distribution rights

b) Significant acquisitions/capitalisation during previous year

Product Group Entity Date of agreement/completion Rincrores Type of deal

Brand Elores - Novel and
potented anti-infective product  Cipla Limited ¥ july, 2020 65.37 Acquisition of Brand

The Group has recorded the acquired assets as Intangible assets under Ind AS 38 - Intangible Assets on the assessment that
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets which
is controlled by the Company and future economic benefits are probable.

Contingent consideration (on achievement of sale target as per agreement)

As at 31% March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021, the fair value of the contingent consideration was assessed as ¥ Nil in respect of
acquired intangibles as the sales targets are not probable and estimable. Determination of the fair value as at balance sheet
date is based on discounted cash flow method. Contingent consideration is arrived at, basis weighted average probability
approach of achieving various financial and non-finoncial performance targets. Basis the future projections and the
performance of the products, the contingent consideration is subject to revision on a yearly basis.
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Note 5.3: Intangible assets under development ageing

The table below provides details regarding the Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as of 31 March, 2022:
Tin crores

Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of

Particulars Less than 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years

Projects in progress 4797 49.26 203.06 82.99 383.28
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
{Total | 479711 49.26ff = 203.06/] 82.991] -383.28/

The table below provides details regarding the Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as of 31 March, 2021:
Tin crores
Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of
Particulars ] Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Projects in progress 43.54 70.23 . 220.13 64.15 398.05
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
jTotal it 43,5411 70.23|] 220131 ] 64.15}] 398.05|

There are no intangible assets under development, whose completion is either overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its
original plan as on 31 March; 2022 and 31 March, 2021.

Note: On 10" May, 2021, Cipla Technologies LLC (‘Ciptec’), a subsidiary of the Group had received an anticipatory material breach
notice under Development and Commercialisation Agreement with Pulmairix on co-development of Pulmazole. Ciptec has
renegotiated the terms of the agreement mutually with Pulmatrix and have entered into an amended agreement with respect to
co-development.

Note 6: Investment in associates'

Tin crores
As at As at As at As at
Particulars ALV 31 March, EEIRESCICUE 31 March,
2022 No's 2021 No's 2022 2021
A. Investments in unquoted equity instruments
Equity shares of Brandmed (Pty) Limited of ZAR 1 each, fully paid 375 375 26.97 27.81
Equity shares of Stempeutics Research Private Limited of 10 each,
fully. paid* 2,05,02,525 2,05,02,525 - -
Equity shares of GoApptiv Private Limited of ¥ 10 each, fully paid® 6,927 6,927 3.54 2.43
B. Investments in unquoted equity instruments - carried at amortised
cost
Equity shares of AMPSolar Power Systems Private Limited of 210
each, fully paid® 1,01,800 90,000 0.01 0.01
Equity shares of AMP Energy Green Eleven Private Limited of ¥ 10 :
each, fully paid” 7,50,000 - 0.06 .-
C. Investments in quoted equity instruments
Equity shares of Avenue Therapeutics, Inc. of USD 0.001 each, fully
paid 58,33,333 58,33,333 - 190.33
D. Investments in 0.001% compulsory convertible preference shares
Preference share of GoApptiv Private Limited of ¥ 10 each, fully paid® 27,706 27,706 7.20 7.20

E. Investments in debentures - carried at amortised cost

0.01% Compulsory Convertible Debentures of AMPSolar Power Systems

Private Limited of 1,000 each, fully paid® 1,00,742 89,100 0.79 0.60
Compulsory Convertible Debentures of AMP Energy Green Eleven

Private Limited of 1,000 each, fully paid” 67,500 - 0.56 -
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Note 6: Investment in associates' (Contd.)

?in crores
As af As at As at As at
Particulars KIRRCLIZM 31+ March, ERIERSCIZA M  31¢ March,
2022 No's 2021 No's 2022 2021

F. Investment in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) - carried at
amortised cost

33% (31 March, 2021: Nil) holding in Clean Max Auriga Power LLP* 6.68 -
| 11 ] H 45.81]] 228.38|
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 21.29 258.87
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 45.8) 38.05
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 182.12 -
T i. For investment in associates (refar nate 44)

Notes for changes in current year:

* Pursuant to Limited Liobility Partnership Agreement (“LLP Agreement”) doted 14™ December, 2021 and amendments thereof, the Cipia Limited, Holding
Company has acquired 33% stake in Clean Max Auriga Power LLP (‘Clean Max’) for a total consideration of ® 6.75 crores. Further, the Holding Company has
also entered in o Power Purchase Agreement (‘PPA’) with Clean Max to procure 100% of the output of solar energy produced for next 25 vears as per the rates
negotiated in the PPA. Further, in the event of termination of the contracts or completion of the PPA term, the Holding Company will receive fair market value
of its investment on the date of termination/completion which is expected to be Nil at the end of the PPA term. Accordingly, the investment amount will be
amortised over a period of 25 years. As the Holding Company has significant influence, the investment has been accounted as investment in associate os per
Ind AS 28 - Investments in associates and joint ventures. However, the equity pick up will not be considered in consolidated financial statements.

# Pursuant to Share Purchase, Subscription and Shareholder’s agreement (SPSSA) dated 4 February, 2022, the Cipla Limited, Holding Company has acquired
32.49% stake on fully diluted basis in AMP Energy Green Eleven Private Limited, representing 750,000 equity shares of 210 each and 67,500, 0.01% Compulsory
Convertible debentures of AMP Energy Green Eleven Private Limited of ¥ 1,000 each for a total consideration of ¥ 7.50 crores. Further, the Holding Company
also entered in a Power Purchase Agreement (‘PPA') with AMP Energy Green Eleven Private Limited to procure 100% of the output of solar energy produced
for next 25 years as per the rates negotiated in agreement. As per the SPSSA, in the event of termination of the contracts or completion of the PPA term, the
Holding Company will receive nominal value of its investment without any share of profit/loss in the associate. Accordingly, the investment amount has been
amortised to give the effect of expected fixed return on such investment. As the Holding Company has significant influence, the investment has been accounted
as investment in associate as per Ind AS 28 - Investments in associates and joint ventures. However, the equity pick up will not be considered in consolidated
financial statements.

@ Pursuant to Amended Share Purchase, Subscription and Shareholder’s agreement (SPSSA) dated 23" May, 2019 & amendments thereof, the Cipla Limited,
Holding Company has further invested T 1.17 crores in AMPSolar Power Systems Private Limited, representing 11,800 equity shares of 2 10 each and 11,642, 0.01%
Compulsory Convertible Debenture of 2 1,000 each. Further, there has been no change in the stake and has been accounted in the same manner os it was
accounted at the time of initial investment.

% The Group's share of losses of the Company (an associate) exceeds its interest in the Company and hence the Group has disconfinued recognising its share
of further losses.

Notes for changes in previous year:

$ On 9™ June, 2020, the Cipla Limited, Holding Company has signed Amended ond Restated Shareholders’ Agreement with GoApptiv Private Limited to acquire
21.85% stake on fully diluted basis for a total consideration of ¥ 9.00 crores. Pursuant to this, the Holding Company acquired 6,927 equity shares of 2 10 each
from the sellers via Share Purchase Agreement for a total consideration of 2 1.80 crores and via Share Subscription Agreement with GoApptiv Private Limited
to acquire 27,706, 0.00i1% compulsorily convertible preference Shares of ? 10 each for a total consideration of ¥ 7.20 crores. As the Company has significant
influence, the investment has been accounted as investment in associate as per Ind AS 28 - Investments in associates and joint ventures.

Note 7: Non-current financial assets - other investments

Zincrores
Face As at As at As at As at As at As at
Particulars valuve EEIREVEIISR 31 March, BEIRESEIEA 31 March, BEIRRSEIZGR 31 March,
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Percentage m No's ____ﬁ
Investments in equity instruments
(unquoted)*
A. Investments at fair valve
through OCl
Equity interest in Shanghai
Desano Pharmaceuticals Co., Lid. ¥ 1 16.50% 16.50% 9,55,00,000 9,55,00,000 25199 138.13
Equity interest in Wellthy Equity Equity
Therapeutics Private Limited . shares-10 shares-10
SSE CCPS SSE CCPS
Z10 9.93% 9.97% 5,32,121 5,32,121 17.53 1717

Share in profit/loss of ABCD

Technologies LLP* 6.45% 12.50% 40.25 40.00
Equity interest in Swasth Digital

Health Foundation* Z100 4.00% : - 5,000 - 0.05 -
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Note 7: Non-current financial assets - other investments
Tin crores
Face As at As at As at As at As at As at
. value EEIREECTIIE 31 March, JRIRESEIZIA 31 March, [RIRRSCIZAIR  31¢ March,
Particulars . :
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
EHLDIETI] Percentage No's No's
B. Investment carried at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity shares of Saraswat Co-
operative Bank Limited, fully
paid 10,000 (31 March, 2021
210,000) Z10 1,000 1,000 0.00 0.00
C. Investment in government
securities carried at amortised
cost
National saving certificates
7 41,000 (31* March, 2021: T 41,000) 0.00 0.00
] i i il i tH " H 309.82|] 195.30/
Aggregate amount of unquoted
investments 309.82 195.30

# During the year, pursuant to the Board resolutions passed on 5™ August, 2021, the Cipla Limited, Holding Company invested ¥ 0.05 crores and acquired 5,000
equity shares of Swasth Digital Health Foundation of 2 100 each. Swasth Digital Health Foundation is a Not-for-Profit initiative (registered under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013) that aims to leveraging digital technologies to improve healthcare outcomes and increase healthcare inclusion in India. The investment
is accounted as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as per Company’s election in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments.

$ On 30™ March, 2021, the Cipla Limited, Holding Company has signed Restated ond 2" Amended Limited Liability Partnership Agreement (“LLP Agreement”) to
make strategic @ investment of T 40 crores in ABCD Technologies LLP (to be renamed as IndoHealth Services LLP). The investment was accounted as fair value
through other comprehensive income (FYTOC!) as per Company'’s election in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments.

* Refer Note 42 for information on fair value of investments.

Note 8: Non-current financial assets - loans

Note 10: Income taxes

Zin crores
The major components of income tax expense for the years
As at Asat  ended 31% March, 2022 and 31* March, 2021 are:
Particulars 31t March, 31¢ March, Zin crores
r{17¥] 2021
. As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good, Particulars AR 31 March,
except otherwise stated) 2022 2021
(Carried at amortised cost,
except otherwise stated) (A) Profit or loss section
Other loans and advances 0.04 004  Currentincome tax charge 113690 1,052.72
} { 00411} 0.04/ MAT credit utilisation/entitlement (0.64) 2.37
Adjustment in respect of deferred
Note 9: Non-current financial assets - others tax charge of previous year 12.75 15.19
Zin crores Deferred tax credit/reversal
on account of temporary
As at Asat  itferences (215.20) (181.52)
Particulars 31t March, 31 March, j f 933811 | 888.76|
2022 2021 (B) Other comprehensive income
(Carried at amortised cost, section
except otherwise stated) Income tax relating to re-
Margin deposits* 5.97 5.37 measurements on defined
Fixed deposit (maturity more benefit plans (4.43) (4.79)
than 12 months) 32315 - Income tax relating to changes in
Capital subsidy receivable 30.26 30.26  fair value of equity instruments (1.05) 5.74
Security deposit 50.62 5295  Income tax relating to cash flow
Amount recoverable from hedge (0.62) (4.23)
supplier 4 7.04 7.25 E; .(16.10)‘ } (3.28)‘
| {1 4170411 95.831

*Amount held as margin money under lien to tax cuthority and electricity
department.
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Note 10: Income taxes (Contd.)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the profit multiplied by tax
rate applicable to respective tax jurisdiction for 31° March,
2022 and 31* March, 2021:

Zincrores
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021
Profit before tax 3,493.27 3,290.06
At Income tax rates applicable
to respective tax jurisdiction 5.1 846.34
Effect for:
Prior year adjustments to T R
deferred tax 12.75 15.19
Non-deductible expenses for
tax purposes 7615 53.89
Deferred tax not recognised (net) 40.25 8.08
Utilisation of previously un-
recognised DTA and MAT credit (84.10) (7.88)
Others (26.35) (26.86)
Income tax expense reported
in the profit or loss 933.81 888.76
Effective income tax rate i1 26.73%11 27.01%1

There are unused tax losses (including capital losses and MAT
Credit) for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised
as the Group believes that availability of taxable profit against
which such temporary difference can be utilised, is not probable.

Tincrores
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021
Unabsorbed depreciation
and business loss 307.21 617.44
Capital loss 390.25 129.50
MAT credit not recognised
(refer below note 3) 1395 18.32
Total il YALEANE] 765.26 |

In respect of certain foreign subsidiaries, business losses can be
carried forward indefinitely unless there is a substantial change
in the ownership

Unrecognised deferred tax assets relate primarily to business
losses and tax credit entitlements which do not qualify for
recognition as per the applicable accounting standards. These
unexpired business losses will expire based on the year of
origination as follows:

Note 10: Income taxes (Contd.)

Zincrores
Particulars Tax losses
2023 3398
2024 46.35
2025 46.33
2026 12.76
2027 42.3]
Thereafter 42968

N4

Total 1

Uncertain tax position:

- The. Group is subject to income taxes in India and numerous

foreign jurisdictions including US and South Africa as other major
jurisdictions. The Group has ongoing disputes which includes
demands, notices and inquiries from income tax authorities in
India and in some of the jurisdictions where they operate. The
disputes relate to tax treatment of certain expenses claimed
as deductions, computation or eligibility of tax incentives or
allowances and transfer pricing adjustments.

The Group has disclosed amount of ¥ 22.18 crores (31 March,
2021: ¥ 51.63 crores) as contingent liability, in respect of
tax demands which are being contested by it based on the
management evaluation and advice of tax consultants as the
management believes that the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain due to various tax positions taken by adjudicating
authorities in the past.

The Group has made provisions for taxesbasis its best judgement,
considering past resolutions to disputed matters by adjudicating
authorities, prior year assessments and advice from external
experts, if required. The Group believes that its accruals for
tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its
assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law
and prior experience.

Deferred tax on undistributed earnings:

Deferred income tax liabilities on undistributed earnings of the
Group subsidiaries have not been provided as such earnings
are deemed to be reinvested in the business and the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversals of temporary
differences associated with these investments. Accordingly,
temporary difference on which deferred tax liability has not
been recognised amounts to ¥ 2,082.58 crores (31¢ March, 2021:
Z1,725.06 crores) There is no undistributed earnings in respect
of investment in associates..

Deferred tax:

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended 31% March, 2022:

Zin crores
Asat  Profitor Other Business Foreign As at
Particulars 31 March, loss comprehensive combination/ currency REIREST-TZLCN
2021 income Disposal transiation 2022

Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (657.55) 39.06 - - 5.2) (613.28)
Employee benefits expense 83.47 (0.99) (4.43) - 1.79 79.84
Others* 253.67 45.95 (1.67) - (15.18) 272.77
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Note 10: Income taxes (Contd.)
. Zin crores
Asat  Profit or *  Other Business Foreign As at
Particulars 31* March, loss comprehensive combination/ currency ERIREET-Id.8
2021 income Disposal transiation [EEEEEEEIYY]
Allowance for credit loss 60.59 (14.65) - - 2.36 48.30
Deferred revenue 13.97 (2.30) - - - 1.67
Provision for right of return, .
discounts and others " 16390 32.29 - - 4.00 . 200.9

Losses available for offsetting
against future taxable income

(refer note below) . 96.69 103.01 .- - 1.58 201.38
MAT credit enmlemenf/uhllsed . 3.34 . 0.64 : - - 0.02 4.00
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) 18.08 203.11 (16.10) . - (0.22) 204.87
Deferred tax assets - 314.69 448.83
Deferred tox Ilcblllhe (296.61) ) (243.96)
iToF ; ColEG 718008 | 1D R ) 04. 87f

‘Others include unrealised margins, provision for claims - DPCO, Hedge reserve, etc.

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended 31** March, 2021:

" ZTincrores
Asat  Profit or - Other ~  Business - Foreign [T S
e o -Particolars .- - -« o2 oo v = . 31*"March,; - -~ Joss" comprehensive - combination/ -~ - currency ‘' BEIRISTIIA M
) ’ ) 2020 ) income Disposal® translation S 2021
Property, plant and equipment and ) .
intangible assets . (702.00) 74.01 - 0.25 (29.81) (657.55)
Employee benefits expense, 82.05 4.7 (4.79) (0.07) 1.57 83.47
Others* 183.09 58.25 1.51 - 1.91 8.91 253.67
Allowance for credit loss 75.07 (13.39) ‘ - (1.22) 0.13 60.59
Deferred revenue =~ - 15.23 (1.26) ’ - - - 1397
Provision for right of return, ' : . ’
discounts and others ’ 140.42 24.51 - - (1.03) 163.90

Losses available for offsetting
against future taxable

income (refer note below) ) 7498 I 19.51 - - 2.20 96.69
MAT credit entittement/utilised ) 5.72 (2.38) - - - 3.34
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) (125.44) 163.96 (3.28) 0.87 (18.03) 18.08
Deferred tax assets 239.77 . . 314.69

Deferred tax liabilities (365 21) ) : (296.61)
Hotall;: A 1L ’ Al » 1808}
“Others include unrealised margins, provision for claims - DPCO, Hedge reserve, elc.

#Pertain to Quality Chemicals Limited (ceased to be a subsidiary from 19" August, 2020).

32

Note:

1. Based on approved plans and budgets, the Cipla Heaith Limited (CHL) one of the subsidiaries of the Group has estimated
" that future taxable income will be sufficient to absorb. carried forward unabsorbed depreciation and business losses, which
management believes is probable, and accordingly CHL has recognised deferred tax assets on aforesaid losses cggregohng

to ¥93.50 crores os at 31 March, 2022 (31 March, 2021: T 83.78 crores)

2. Durmg the current year, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets of T 76.00 crores on operating tax losses and timing
" differences, pertaining to Cipla Pharma and Life Sciences Limited (CPLS) (formerly known as 'Cipla Biotec Limited") pursuoni to
planned restructuring activity between the group companies.

3. Basedon the reasonable evidence available for a year, Goldencross Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary hcs recogmsed R4.37
crores of unrecogmsed MAT credit durmg the year..
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Note 10: Income taxes (Contd.)

Tax assets and liabilities:

Note 12: Inventories (Contd.)

The Group recorded inventory write down (net) of ¥ 576.42

Xin crores crores (319 March, 2021: T 419.70 crores). This is included as part

As at Asat  of cost of materials consumed and changes in inventories of

Particulars 31 March, 31* March,  fnished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade in profit or
2022 2021  |oss, as the case may be.

Income tax assets (net) 483.62 46816 o . ) .

Income fax liabilities (nef) 20.62 1806 As indicated in note 23, a notarial bond over Group inventory
of T 414.21 crores (31 March, 2021: ¥ 426.26 crores) (net of stock
reserve) has been held as security for long-term and short-term

Note 11: Other non-current assets borrowings of Cipla Medpro South Africa (Pty) Limited.

Zin crores
As ot Asat  Note 13: Current investments .
Particulars 31 March, 31+ March, ¥incrores
2022 2021 As at As at

{Unsecured, considered good, Particulars 31 March, 31t March,

except otherwise stated) 2022 2021

Copital advances Investment in mutual funds

Secured, considered good* 0.89 0.59 (quoted) 219497 2,286.37
Unsecured, considered good 153.28 116.58  (Carried at fair value through

Prepaid expenses 23.84 13.67 profit or loss)

VAT receivable 4090 2473  Aggregate amount of quoted

{ i 2189111 155571  jnvestments 2,19497 2,286.37

*Secured against bank guarantees ‘Aggregate market value of ! l ; i
quoted investments 2,194971 1 2,286.37

Note 12: Inventories

Zincrores
As at Asat Note 14: Trade receivables % in crores

Particulars 31 March, 31 March,

2022 2021 As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 31** March,

(Lower of cost or net 2022 2021

realisable value)

Raw materials and packing (Carried at amortised cost,

materials 1,855.37 191455  except otherwise stated)

Work-in-progress 85171 84655 Unsecured, considered good 3,473.53 3,507.15

Finished goods 1,497.65 1172.92 Unsecured, considered

Stock-in-trade 1,062.30 667.50 doubtful 131.62 170.07

Stores, spares and consumables 83.21 67.66 Less: Allowance for expected

i 1 5,350,241 4,669181 credit loss (refer note 42) (180.71) (231.54)

I 34244411 3,445,681
Zin crores .
- Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
As at As at sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
Particulars 31 March, 31 March, Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
2022 2021 of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain

Goods- in-transit included significant financing components, when they are recognised

above at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the

Raw materials and packing objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore

materials 154.18 nean measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the

Work-in-progress 2986 15.33 effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Flnlshe.d goods 144,85 718 1rade receivables are interest and non-interest bearing and

Stock-in-trade 105.74 12.73

Stores, spares and are generally due upto 180 days.

consumables on - - There are no trade receivables (except which are already

1 H 4347411 31835  being provided) having significant increase in credit risk and

which are credit impaired.
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Note 14: Trade receivables (Contd.)

- The Group entered into an arrangement with a bank for sale of trade receivables. Under the arrangement, the Group sold to the Bank
certain of its trade receivables on a non-recourse basis. The receivables sold were mutually agreed with the Bank after considering
the credit worthiness of the customers and aiso other contractual terms with the customer including any gross to net adjustments
due to rebates, discounts, etc. from the contracted amounts, such that the receivables sold are generally lower than the net amount
receivables from trade receivables. The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of such receivables
sold to the Bank and accordingly, the same are de-recognised in the statement of financial position. As on 31 March, 2022, the amount
of trade receivables de-recognised pursuant to the aforesaid arrangement is ¥ 460.27 crores (31 March, 2021: ¥ 466.59 crores).

- As indicated in notes 23, trade receivables of ¥ 654.20 crores (31 March, 2021: T 587.10 crores) have been ceded to the bank as
security for long-term and short-term borrowings of Cipla Medpro South Africa (Pty) Limited.

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule

Ageing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of the category is as at 31 March, 2022 as follows:
?in crores
Total

Particulars

a. Undisputed trade receivables

Outstanding for following periods from due date

of payments

1-2
years

2-3
years

More than
3 years

Less than 6
months

)
months-1
year

- considered good 4.87 2,454.87 825.86 59.04 100.86 8.71 16.94 3,471.15

- considered doubtful - - 0.56 1.31 7.61 54.03 16.00 79.51
b. Disputed trade receivables

- considered good - 0.00 0.05 0.01 2.28 0.01 0.03 2.38

- considered doubtful - - 0.25 2.23 3.02 3397 12.64 521
! B i1 4.87(12,454.8711 8267211  62.5911 N3.77i1 96.721| 45.611} 3,605.15]

Ageing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of the category is as at 31 March, 2021 as follows:

gin crores
Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
of payments
Particulars
Less than 6 6 months- 1-2 2-3 More than
months lyear vyears years 3 years
a. Undisputed Trade Receivables
- considered good 3.56 2,510.34 780.16 152.31  20.66 8.69 29.85 3,505.57
- considered doubtful - - - 0.82 4986 48.59 14.39 13.66
b. Disputed Trade Receivables
- considered good - - - 1.58 - - - 1.58
- considered doubtful - - 0.01 10.44 3573 5.45 4.78 56.41
| tH 3.56(12,510.34]] 780.1711 165.15§]106.251 | 62.73(] 49.021] 3,677.22§

Note 15: Cash and cash equivalents

Tin crores

Particulars As at
31t March, 2022 315t March, 2021

Balances with banks

-in Current accounts 46996 63117

-In EEFC accounts 132.37 -

-In fixed deposits (original maturity less than 3 months) 65.39 149.75
Remittance in transit* 9.02 11.50
Cash on hand 1.00 0.87
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet &677.74 793.29
Less: Bank overdraft used for cash management purpose (19.63) (2.86)
Cash-and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flow N - oo 6580 ] . 790.43|

*Remittance in transit from Group entities.
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Note 16: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Zin crores

Particulars As at

31 March, 2022 31* March, 2021

Fixed deposits with banks (original maturity between 3 months and 12 months) 1,234.82 50311

Amount held as margin money to Government authority 4.01 371

Balances earmarked for unclaimed dividend® 1.9 n12
Lo R I 1.25074] | 60794}

*The above bolonces are restricted far specific use. There are no amounts due nnd nutstanding to be credited to the tnvestor Educntion anAd Protectinn Fund

as at 31 March, 2022 and 31* March, 2021.

Note 17: Current financial assets - loans

As at

Particulars 31t March, 2022

(Unsecured, considered good except otherwise stated)

Zincrores

As at
31t March, 2021

(Carried at amortised cost, except otherwise stated)

Loans to employees and others i 3.57 1.00
Motes -
1. Inldine with Clrcutar Mo 0472015 issued by Minislry of Corporule Affairs dated 10" March, 2015, loans given to employees as per

the Company’s policy are not considered for the purposes of disclosure under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. There are no lanns ar advances in the nature of loans granted to Promaters, Directors, KMPs and their related parties (as

defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:
(@) repayable on demand; or

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Note 18: Current financial assets - others

As at

Particulars 31 March, 2022

(Unsecured, considered good except otherwise stated)

in crores

As at
31 March, 2021

(Carried at amortised cost, except otherwise stated)

* Incentives/benefits receivable from Government o T o 109.93 1h4.47
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) oo 074, 1.58
Deposits * ’ 178.05 175.08
Derivatives not designated as hedges - carried at fair valve®

Forward contracts 17.73 190
Derivative designated as hedges - carried at fair value*

Forward contracts 0.41 58.40

Options 0.34 1.31
Advance gratuity . 9.30 -
Fixed deposit interest receivable ) 2361 7.00
Fixed deposits with banks (hgyling remaining maturity less than 12 months) 52414 73.54
Amount held as margin money to Government authority eov 0.35
Other receivables (Dues from ex-employees, expense reimbursement receivable, efc.) o

Considered good . 3413 19.61

Considered doubtful 2.45 101

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful advances (2.45) (1.01)
| - T i 898.391 ] 483.24]

*Refer note 42 for information about Foir value measurement and effects of hedge accounting.
#lncludes 7175.08 crores as at 31 March, 2022 ond 31 March, 2021 in respect of DPCO matter explained in note 45B.
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Note 19: Other current assets - .
Rincrores
Particul : ) © Asat As ot
articuiars : - ‘31% March, 2022 31¢ March, 2021
Advance to suppliers 192.72 170.34
Prepaid expenses - . " 110.61 105.54
Balances with statutory/révenue authorities like goods and service tax (GST), S . ‘
excise, customs, service tax and value added tax, etc. . ' 598.61 609.14

Others (deferred lease assets and other advances)

Note 20: Equity share capital -
, Zincrores
Particulars Numbers B : o ‘Numbers o As at
. ‘31¢ March, 2022 ' 31 March, 2021
Authorised ) . '

- 87,50,00,000

Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each”

]

Issued
Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each

Subs.cribed and pdl -.u.p
Equity shares of Z 2/- each, fully paidup - 80,68,14,036 161.36
AEE T, WE ClE 5216138 |

- As at

Particulars . As at

© 31 March, 2022 - 31 March, 2021
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period L ' 80,6&,63,279 : 80,62,35,329
Add: Allotment of equity shares on exercise of employee stock options (ESOS) ‘ L
(refer note 47) : ' N 3,50,757 2,27,950

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

o ‘As at 31 March, 2022 © - As at 31* March, 2021
Particulars v .. ‘Numberof § - % of Holding [V 1-T 44 o % of Holding

shares - . ) shares
DrY K Hamied ' : 15,05,21,183 ) 18.66% -16,39,67,687 20.33%
Ms Sophie Ahmed _ , 4,59,82,000 - - © 570% - . 4,59,82,000 T 570%

Details of shares held by promoters in the Company

BT IR YRR - As at 31 March, 2021

Porfi?ulars o " Number of % to total Numberof  %to total % Change '
: ' "shares shares . shares . shares ) .

DrY K Hamied : 15,05,21183 - 18.66% 16,39,67,687 20.33% (1.67%)
M K Hamied : 2,78,44,320 3.45% 3,45,67,572 429% - (0.84%)
Ms Sophie Ahmed .- 4,59,82,000 _5.70% 4,59,82,000 © 5.70% ' 0.00%
Shirin Hamied ‘ . 63,63,000 0.79% © 63,63,000 T 079% . 0.00%
Kamil Hamied R 1,09,39,500 1.36% 1,09,39,500 1.36% 000% .

Samina Hamied . . 1,79,09,500 12.22% 1,79,09,500 . 2.22% 0.00%
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Note 20: Equity share capital (Contd.)

As at 31* March, 2022

As at 31" March, 2021

Particulars Number of % to total Number of % to total % Change
shares shares shares shares

Rumana Hamied 98,86,500 1.23% 98,86,500 1.23% 0.00%
MN Rajkumar Garments LLP - 0.00% 53,76,852 0.67% (0.67%)
Alps Remedies Private Limited - 0.00% 4,92,985 0.06% (0.06%)
Okasa Pharma Private Limited 1,89,375 0.02% 1,89,375 0.02% 0.00%
|Total ) il 2696,35378 |] 33.43% || 29,56,7497 || 36.67% 1} (3.24%) |
Terms and rights attached to equity shares Note 21: Other equity (Contd.)

Tin crores
The Company has only one class of equity s.hores hcv.ing o‘ par As at As at
value of ¥ 2 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled Particulars 319 March, 31 March,
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays 2022 2021
dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ~ Financial instruments
the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim  foir value through other
dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders ~ SOMPrehensive income 9977 1.40
of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of Hedge reserve (3.03) (993)
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The ~ Total I 20,680.33| | 18,165.24]

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholder.

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for
consideration other than cash and shares bought back during
the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting
date.

The Company has not issued any bonus shares, shares for
consideration other than cash or bought back any shares during
five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

Equity shares reserved for issue under employee stock options
and share appreciation rights.

For number of stock options against which equity shares are to
be issued by the Company upon vesting and exercise of those
stock options and rights by the option/ESAR as per the relevant
schemes (refer note 47).

Note 21: Other equity* )
Zin crores
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 31* March,
2022 2021
Capital reserve (167.04) (165.95)
Securities premium reserve 1,631.69 1,613.31
General reserve 3,144.80 314464
Employee stock options/ESAR 4398 42.09
Retained earnings 15,669.07 13,536.98
Foreign currency translation
reserve 261.09 270

* For movement in other equity, refer Statement of Changes in Equity

Nature and purpose of reserves:
Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents gain arising from business
combination and loss/(gain) on account of acquisition/
divestment of non-controlling interest and profit or loss on sale,
issue, purchase or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instrument or purchase of ESOPs rights relating to subsidiary.

Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on
issue of shares. In case of equity settled share based payment
transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and
nominal value of share is accounted as securities premium. This
reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profit
from retained earning for appropriation purpose.

Employee stock options/ESAR

Employee stock options/ESAR is used to record the share based
payments, expense under the various ESOS schemes as per
SEBI regulations. The reserve is used for the settlement of ESOS
(refer note 47).

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till
date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends, or other
distributions paid to shareholders.
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Note 21: Other equity (Contd.)
Foreign currency translation reserve

Foreign currency translation reserve represents the unrealised
gains and losses on account of translation of reporting currency
for foreign subsidiaries into the Company's presentation currency.

Financial instruments fair value through other comprehensive
income

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising
on the revaluation of equity instrument measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The Company transfers
amounts from this reserve to retained eornings when the
relevant equity instruments are de-recognised/disposed off.

Hedge reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion
of gain or loss arising on changes in fair value of designated
portion of hedging instruments (i.e., forward contracts and
interest rate swap). Upon de-recognition, amounts accumulated
in other comprehensive income are taken to profit or loss at the
same time as the related cash flow.

Note 22: Non-controlling interest

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests is provided below:

A. Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling

B. Information regarding non-controlling interest:

Particulars

interest:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021
Cipla Quality Chemical
Industries Limited 48.82% 48.82%
Saba Investment Limited
(Group) 49.00% 49.00%
Jay Precision
Pharmaceuticals Private
Limited 40.00% 40.00%
Cipla Maroc SA 40.00% 40.00%
Cipla (Jiangsu)
Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd
[refer note 24 (0)] 20.00% 20.00%
Zin crores
As at As at

31* March, 2021

31 March, 2022

Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest:

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Cipla Quality Chemical Industries Limited 163.17 133.30
Saba Investment Limited (Group) 28.67 35.69
Jay Precision Pharmaceuticals Private Limited 59.36 57.27
Cipla Maroc SA 24.49 32.80
{Total {1 275.691 1 259.06/

?in crores
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

Profit/(loss) allocated to material non-controlling interest:

Cipla Quality Chemical Industries Limited 22.36 (1.19)
Saba Investment Limited (Group) (7.55) (10.03)
lay Precision Pharmaceuticals Private Limited 12.00 963
Cipla Maroc SA 3.09 0.49
Quality Chemicals Limited - (5.26)
{Total 1 29901 ] 16.36)}
Summarised profit or loss for the year ended 31* March, 2022

Zin crores

Cipla Quality

Particulars

Chemical
Industries Limited

Name of the subsidiary

Saba
Investment
Limited
(Group)

Jay Precision
Pharmaceuticals
Private Limited

Cipla
Maroc SA

Quality
Chemicals
Limited

Revenue from operations 561.43 186.19 128.94 147.09 -

Profit for the year/period 48.28 (8.74) 30.25 8.57 -

Other comprehensive income - - 0.08 - -
| Total comprehensive income 1] 48.2811 (8.74)1 ] 30.331] 8.571! -1
Dividends paid to non-controliing interests - - (9.95) (9.80) -
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Note 22: Non-controlling interest (Contd.)

Summarised profit or loss for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Zin crores
Name of the subsidiary

Cipla Quality Saba Jay Precision Cipla Quality

Particulars Chemical Investment Pharmaceuticals MarocSA Chemicals
Industries Limited Limited Private Limited Limited

(Group)
Revenue from operations 569.58 228.97 Q4.77 116.68 Q.44
Profit for the year/period (18.73) (13.03) 24.32 2.23 (2.15)
Other comprehensive income - - (0.09) - -
| Total comprehensive income 1 (18.73)}1 (13.03){] 24,23} 2.23}] (2.15)]
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - (5.26) -
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 March, 2022

Tincrores

Name of the subsidiary

Cipla Quality Saba - Jay Precision Cipla
Particulars Chemical | Investment § Pharmaceuticals | Maroc SA
Industries Limited Limited Private Limited
(Group)
Non-current assets 163.31 48.76 ' 97.87 41.82
Non-current liabilities 45.16 - 4.86 -
Net non-current assets 118.15 48.76 93.01 41.82
Current assets 367.61 192.24 68.44 84.54
Current liabilities 151.95 205.96 11.86 56.06
Net current assets 215.66 (13.72) 56.58 28.48
[ Total equity il 333.81] | 35.04}1 149.59 | | 70.30}
Summarised balance sheet as at 31* March, 2021
Zin crores
Name of the subsidiary
Cipla Quality Saba Jay Precision Cipla
Particulars Chemical Investment Pharmaceuticals Maroc SA
Industries Limited Limited Private Limited
(Group)
Non-current assets 165.91 51.82 98.78 60.09
Non-current liabilities 549 - 4.85 -
Net non-current assets 11.00 51.82 93.93 60.09
Current assets 290.75 144.55 55.57 64.65
Current liabilities 132.34 150.43 5.38 35.56
Net current assets 158.41 (5.88) 50.19 29.09
| Total equity 1] 269.411 | 4594} 144321 § 89.18]
Summarised cash flow information as at 31 March, 2022
Tincrores

Particulars

Cipla Quality

Chemical
Industries Limited

Name of the subsidiary
Saba
Investment
Limited
(Group)

Jay Pregision
Pharmaceuticals
Private Limited

Cipla
Maroc SA

Operating activities 33.31 (14.45) 35.88 (8.00)
Investing activities (16.81) (4.23) (5.75) 0.19
Financing activities (14.72) (3.36) (24.86) -
|Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents |} 1781 (22.04) | } 5.271] (7.8}
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Note 22: Non-controlling interest (Contd.)
Summarised cash flow information as at 31* March, 2021
Tincrores
Name of the subsidiary
Cipla Quality Saba Jay Precision Cipla
Particulars Chemical Investment Pharmaceuticals Maroc SA
Industries Limited Limited Private Limited
(Group)
Operating activities 55.07 (97.54) 31.79 1.44
Investing activities (20.36) 211.28 (5.62) (0.16)
Financing activities 66.55 (108.47) - -
jNet increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents || 101.26] 527} 26.171] 1.28]

Note 23: Financial liabilities: borrowings

Tincrores
As at As at
Particulars 31t March, 31 March,
2022 2021
(a) Non-current (refer note
42)
(Carried at amortised cost,
except otherwise stated)
Secured loans:
Term loan from banks* 376.20 355.32
Unsecured loans:
Term loan from banks** 54.60 1,065.51
Total non-current borrowings 430.80 1,420.83
Less: Current maturities of
non-current borrowings
(classified as short-term
borrowing) 14.56 218.08
|Net non-current borrowings | | 416241 1,202.751
(b) Current (refer note 42)
(Carried at amortised cost,
except otherwise stated)
Secured loans:
Loans repayable on demand
Loan from bank® - 3704
Unsecured loans:
Loans repayable on demand
Bank overdraft’ 19.63 286
Working capital line of
credit*” 371.38 292.44
Other loans®*” 2.33 2.39
Current maturities of non-
current borrowings
Term loan from banks 14.56 218.08
{Total current borrowings ¥ 4079011 552.81]

Note: Borrowings obtained during the year have been used for the purpose
for which they hove been obtained.

*Term loan from banks (Secured)

Term loan of T376.20 crores (318 March, 2021: ¥ 355.32 crores) is
obtained by Cipla Medpro South Africa (Pty) Limited. This loan

Note 23: Financial liabilities: borrowings (Contd.)
bears interest at rates linked to the Johannesburg Interbank
Average Rate ("JIBAR rate"). The loan is repayable in full in 2
instalments of ZAR 300 million and ZAR 420 million on 07" May,
2023 and 30™ June, 2023 respectively (31¥ March 2021: ZAR 300
million and ZAR 420 million on 07™ February, 2023 and 315 March,
2023 respectively). This loan is secured by way of guarantees
by Medpro Pharmaceutica (Pty) Limited and trade receivables,
insurance proceeds and claims of Cipla Medpro South Africa
(Pty) Limited and Medpro Pharmaceutica (Pty) Limited. There is
no requirement for submission of quarterly returns or statement
of current assets to banks for the secured loan.

**Term loan from banks (Unsecured)

Previous year includes loans of ¥ 999.09 crores taken by
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in connection
with acquisition of two US based companies, InvaGen
Pharmaceuticals Inc. and Exelan Pharmaceuticals In¢. These
loans carried interest at LIBOR/alternate reference rate + 0.96%
p.a. and guarantee given by Cipla Limited to the bankers for
repayment of principal and interest thereon. These loans have
been fully repaid in the current year, within schedule due dates.

Includes loan of ¥ 54.60 crores (31 March, 2021 T 66.42
crores) taken by Cipla Quality Chemical Industries Limited from
Standard Chartered Bank Uganda Limited. The term loan is
repayable in equal quarterly instalments of USD 475,000 per
quarter. This loan carries an interest at 3.5% above 3 months
LIBOR/alternate reference rate p.a.

#Loan repayable on demand (Secured)

Previous year includes loan repayable on Demand of ¥ 37.04
crores obtained by Cipla Medpro South Africa (Pty) Limited.
This loan bears interest at rates linked to the JIBAR rate. The loan
was repayable on demand. This loan was secured by way of
guarantees by Medpro Pharmaceutica (Pty) Limited and trade
receivables, insurance proceeds and claims of Cipla Medpro
South Africa (Pty) Limited and Medpro Pharmaceutica (Pty)
Limited. This loan has been fully repaid in the current year.
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Note 23: Financial liabilities: borrowings (Contd.)

$Bank overdraft

it
Bank Entity

Zin crores

As at
31 March, 2022

Interest Rate

Standard Chartered Cipla Quality Chemical

As at
31t March, 2021

31t March, 2021: 3% above 6 months

Bank Uganda Limited  Industries Limited LIBOR/alternate reference rate - 2.86
HSBC Bank Cipla Europe NV 318" March, 2022, Main Refinancing
Operations rate published by the
European Central Bank (“ECB”) + 1.25% 15.94 -
HSBC Bank Cipla (EVU) Limited 31 March, 2022, Relevant Base Rate +
1.3% per annum 3.69 -
| Total H i 1 19.631] 2.861
## Working capital line of credit
Tin crores
Bank Entity Interest Rate As ot
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
HODFC Bank Cipla USA. Inc. 31" March, 2022: 1.30% to
1.45% (31 March, 2021: 1.35%
to 1.46% p.a.) 144.00 292.44
HSBC Bank Cipla USA. Inc. 31 March, 2022: 1.43% to
1.82% (31 March, 2021: Nil) 227.38 -
| Total i i I 371.38 || 292.44 |

###0ther loans

Other borrowings consist of loans obtained by Cipla Maroc SA of ¥ 2.33 crores (31 March, 2021: ¥ 2.39 crores) which is repayable
on demand carries interest rate of 5.01% p.a. (31 March, 2021: 5.01% p.a.)

Reconciliation of borrowings

Note 24: Other financial liabilities - non-current

Tin crores
Tin crores
As at As at Eor th _th—
Particulars 31 March, 31 March, or the V:er or the V:";
2022 2021 pgrticul ende ende
Opening bal ariiculars 31 March, 31 March,
pening balance 2022 2021
Non-current borrowings 1,202.75 2,369.28
Current borrowings 54995 35390 (Carried at amortised cost,
1752.70 272318 except otherwise stated)
Movement of borrowings Security deposits 53.12 56.01
Proceeds from non-current Deferred consideration 12.50 13.45
borrowings - 70.49 Put option liability - Fair
Repayment of non-current value through profit or loss
borrowings (1,041.21) (1021.75)  {refer note (a) below} 34.75 28.26
(Repayments)/proceed of j i 100.37 }{ 97.72 |
current borrowings (net) 3498 (41.87)
Foreign exchange movement 52.89 12.31 (a) Cipla (Jiangsu) Pharmaceutical Co,, Lid
Other non-cash items 315 10.34 Cipla (Jiangsu) Pharmaceutical Co., Lid (‘Cipla Jiangsu’) is a less
(94819) (970.48) than wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The investment
Closing balance agreement between Cipla (EU) Limited, Cipla Jiangsu and Non-
Non-current borrowings 416.24 1,202.75 Controlling Interest (‘NCI’) shareholders of Cipla Jiangsu sets
Current borrowings 388.27 54995 out that the NCI shareholders of Cipla Jiangsu shall be entitled
80451 1752.70 to an exit option after expiry of lock-in-period at a price as
- — defined in investment agreement. A liability is recognised for
,Add' Bank qyerdrcft 1963 286 such put option issued by the Group over the equity of Cipla
iTotal {] 824141 | 1,755.561

liangsu at the gross amount payable aggregating ¥ 34.75
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Note 24: Other financialliabilities - non~current (Contd.) Note 25: Provisions (Contd.) -
Tin crores

crores (including ¥ 996 crores for interest accrued) [31®
March, 2021: ¥ 28.26 crores (including  4.95 crores for interest
accrued)). Such amount is recognised under ‘other financial
liabilities'. The fair value of such put option is determined
using the fair value model methodology enunciated in the
investment agreement.

Note 25: Provisions

gin crores

. As.at As at
© 31" March,

Particulars 31 March,

2021

Non-current

Provision for employee
beneflfs (refer nofe 46)
Currenf )
Provision for employee

265.43 282.43

_ "~ Asat As at
31" March, 31 March,
- 2022 2021

Particulars

‘ Provided during the year 4.42 2.83

Utitised/reversed/payout

- during the vear - : -

[Balance’at the’end 1
Provision for nght of return/r
discounts and.others
Balance at the begmmng of

the year 656.23 599.66
Provided during the year 937.59 1,083.84
" Utilised/reversed/payout -
_ during the year ’ (798.55) (1,023.3)
Foreign currency transiation 8.20 ©(3.96)

benefits (refer note 46)
Provision for claims - DPCO
(refer note below and note )
458). - — 118.49 _‘m:l‘s Note 26: Other.non-current liabilities - =

.. Provision for .anticipated S , : 2in crores
claims on pricing ©29.40 2498 R ———
Provision ch)Jr rig?\t of return/ ' ’ . - Asat As at

K ) Particulars 31* March, 31 March, -

discounts and others (refer ) e i - 2021
note below) ° 803.47 656.23 — = —_
Provision for amount Deferred government grant 6.83 7.58
payable to partner ’ i 4.21 3.53 Deferred revenue 44,38 5501 ,
i e g LU ECRL 221004 120%01:078:327%  Deferred lease i income_ 0.25 1.02

Provision is made for right of return/discount and others in
_respect of products sold as per the contractual terms and

conditions. These claims are expected to be settled in the next
financial year. Management estimates the provision based

on 'historical information and any recent trends that may
suggesf future claims could differ from historical amounts.

The ossumphons made in relation to the current perlod are”
consistent with those in the prior year. -

_Movement of provisions for Claims - DPCO, Provision for
- anticipated claims on pricing and provision for right of return/

discounts and others:

Zin crores
- ‘Asat As at
Particulars - 31 March, 31¢ March, -

2022 2021

Provision for Claims - DPCO

(refer note 45B)

Balance at the beginning of )

the year - - 1MIS 104.26
Provided during the year 7.34 6.89
Utilised/reversed/payout

dunng the year

Provnsnon for anticipated -

claims on pricing
Balance at the beginning of

‘ the year

24.98 22.15

Note 27: Trade payables o
. B Zincrores

© As at As at
Particulars 31% March;, 31¢ March, -

... 2022 K 2021 -

(Carried at amortised cost,
except otherwise stated)
Total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small

enterprises 175.12 69.33
Total outstanding dues of '
creditors other than micro

enterprises and small

enterprises .2,332.98

-2/50810]

¥ 13

- The above amounts represenf liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The. amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 0-90 days of recognition based on the credit terms.
Trade and other payables are presented' as current liabilities
unless pcymenf is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at cmortlsed cost usmg the effective
interest method.




—h Care that inspires innovation Cipla Limited | Annual Report 2021-22
342

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 27: Trade payables (Contd.)

Disclosure as required by Micro, Smalil and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Zin crores

Particulars As at As at
Y 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

A. (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid 175.12 69.33

A. (ii) Interest amount remaining unpaid - -
B. Interest paid by the Group in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day - -
C. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have

been puid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding

interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 ’ ) ’ B . -
D. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
E. Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises - -

Note: Identification of micro and small enterprises is basis intimation received from vendors
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Ageing for trade payables from the due date of payment for each of the category is as at 31* March, 2022 as follows:

Tin crores

Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Particulars of payments
Less than 1 year More than 3 years

a. Undisputed trade payables

-MSME - 175.12 - - - - 175.12

-Others - 864.72 1,247.60 99.29 44.49 58.57  2,314.87
b. Disputed trade payables

-MSME - - - - - -

-Others - - 1.18 5.53 1.40 - 18.11
| 1) -111,039.841] 1,258.98{] 104.82}] 45.891] 58.57 1 2,508.10}

Ageing for trade payables from the due date of payment for each of the category is as at 31*t March, 2021 as follows:
Zincrores
Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Particulars of payments

Lessthanlyear 1-2year 2-3years More than 3years

a. Undisputed trade payables

-MSME - 69.33 - - - - 69.33

-Others - 50990 1,250.66 68.40 83.14 72.08 1,984.8
b. Disputed trade payables

-MSME - - - - - - -

-Others - 4.95 6.98 1.38 - - 13.31

| 1 -1] s584.18]] 1,257.64]] 69.781] 83341 72.08112,066.82|
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Note 28: Other financial liabilities - current

Zin crores
As at As at
Particuiars 31 March, 31* March,

Note 30: Revenue from sale of products (Contd.)

Ind AS 115- Disclosures
(i) Disaggregation of revenue

The Group’s revenue disaggregated by business unit is as

2022 ____20?1_ follows:
(Carried at amortised cost, Tincrores
except otherwise stated) For the year For the year
Unclaimed dividend * 1.91 N2 Particulars ended ended
Security deposits 2.76 3.33 31 March, 31 March,
Capital creditors 8292 55.60 il 2021
Employee dues 118.02 145.04 Sale of products

Derivative designated as

(1) India - Trade and

hedge - carried at fair value Branded Generics . 9,827.21 7735.55
(refer note 42) (2) North America (USA) 4,413.30 4,080.59
. Forward contracts 13.81 1698 (3) South Africa, Sub-
Interest rate swap - 9.70 Saharan Africa ond
- Cipla Global Access
Import advance licences 1710 2213 (SAGA) 3,677.20 3,449.57
Deferred consideration 2905 3977 (@) Emerging Markefs
Accrued expenses 95.26 » 151.28 (EM) 1,983.77 1,851.31
- 1 37083} | 45495| (5) Europe 880.68 98172
*There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education (6) Active Pharmaceutical
and Protection Fund. Ingredient (API) 760.43 797.57
e (7) Others 80.77 92.21
Note 29: Other current liabilities 2 in crores ] il 21,623.36] | 18,988.52]
As at Asat (i) Reconciliation of revenue from sale of products with the
Particulars 31 March, 31 March, contracted price _
2022 2021 Tincrores
Advance from customers 6l.44 19.01 USBLLRT Y  For the year
Amount refundable/ Particulars 3¢ ;:‘::: e :::’::
adjustable to customers 12.48 20.64 2022 2021
Income received in advance 301 5.01 - —
Other payables: - Contracted p.nce 29,579.21 28,056.25
Statutory dues 21702 188.93 tﬁiﬁ;‘f)‘i‘iﬁ'i;ﬁe";‘i y
Deferred government grant 0.36 0.75 expiry return, Medicaid,
Deferred revenue 16.52 124.64 etc. (7.955.85) (9,067.73)
Others 0.23 0.24 ISale of products i 21,623.361 ] 18,988.52
i - N} 31.06! ] 359.22{
(iii) Contract assets
Note 30: Revenue from sale of products The Grouprecognises an asset, i.e, right to the returned soleable
Zincrores goods (included in inventories) for the products expected to be
For the year m returned in saleable condition. The Group initially measures this
Particulars ended ended asset at the former carrying amount of. the |rTventory, less cpy
31 March, 31 March, expected costs fo recover the goods, including any potential
2022 2021 decreases in the value of returned goods. The Group updates
- the measurement of the asset recorded for any revision to its
Sale of products (refer note " expected level of returns, as well as any additional decrease in
below) 21,625.36 - 18,988.52 value of the returned products.
] il 21,623.36| | 18,988.52|

As on 31 March, 2022, the Group has ¥ 23.25 crores (3
March, 2021: ¥19.64 crores) as contract asset.

FRaRN
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Note 30: Revenue from sale of products (Contd.)

(iv) Contract liabilities from contracts with customers

The Group records a contract liability when cash payments

Note 32: Other income
incrores

For the year

For the year

(v) Information about major customer

No single external customer represents 10% or more of the
Group'’s total revenue for the years ended 315 March, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

Note 31: Other operating revenue _
Tin crores

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended

31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021

Rendering of services 9.40 8.3l

Export incentives” 37.55 97.34

Technical know-how and

licensing fees 16.47 6.57

Scrap sales 33.65 20.54

Sale of marketing and

product license 13.80 11.24

Goods and service tax area

based incentive 21.85 18.52

Miscellaneous income* 7.26 8.55

| 1t 139981 ] 17.07/

*Income below 1% of revenue from operation is aggregated in accordance
with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

#Pursuant to withdrawal of Export incentive under MEIS the Indian entities of
the Group have recognised the benefit upto 31 August, 2020 only.

. . . . ended ended
are received or due in advance of its performance. Particulars 31% March, 31 March,
Contract liabilities 2022 2021

Tincrores  |nterest income -
As at As at Bank deposit 54.78 32.02
Particulars 31* March, 31 March, Income tax refund 1775 704
2022 2021 : .thers' 7.09 8.20
Dividend income™ 0.01 21.64
Advance from customers 61.44 19.01 Other non-operating income -
. Amount refundable/ Government grants® 1.36 1.37
adjustable to customers 12.48 20.64 Net gain on foreign currency
transaction and iranslation 21.62 29.22
Deferred revenue 6090 179.65 Nef gain on sale of
investment -
- Deferred revenue 2 in crores Current investments
- carried at FVTPL 77.22 52.79
For the year For the year Non-current investments - (3.78)
: ended ended Net gain on disposal
Particulars 31* March, 3 March, of properfy, p]onf and
2022 2021 equipments 8.68 301
Balance at the Fair value gain on financial
beginning of the year 179.65 66.07 instruments at FVTPL 2.02 12.08
- Sundry balances written back 6.37 0.06
fdQev'enue recognised 122.68 40.80 Insurance claim -~ 27.48 1.52
uring the year (122.68) (4080) Rent income 1136 .77
Milestone payment Litigation settlement income
received during the year 393 7.24 [refer note (i) below] 267 6701
Variable consideration - 14714 Income from vendor settlement 12.39 -
Balance at the end of , 1 f l Miscellaneous income” 3001 19.04
the year 6090, 179.65] | I 280911] 265991

$Government grants periain to subsidy of property, plant and equipment of
manufacturing set up. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
attached to these grants.

#Income below 1% of revenue from operation is aggregated in accordance with
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

*Previous vyear includes dividend received
Pharmaceuticats Co. Ltd- FVOCI investment.

- On13* July 2021, Cipla Medpro South Africa (Pty) Limited (CMSA), a Subsidiary
Company having its manufacturing facility in Durban, South Africo, faced
civil unrest. CMSA implemented adequate contingency measures to ensure
continuity of medicine supply and managed to restore the manufacturing
facility within 4 weeks. CMSA recovered % 62.23 crores as the insurance claim
out of which claim amounting to ¥ 42.80 crores have been offset against
respective expenses heads and ¥ 19.43 crores has been accounted as other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

Note:

() Previous year includes litigation settlement income received from
innovator pursuant to a settlement agreement entered into on 18
December, 2020. The agreement effectively settles all outstanding
claims in the litigation. Innovator has agreed to provide Cipla with
a license to its patent required to manufacture and sell certain
volume-limited amounts of certain product in the US beginning on
a confidential date that is some time after March 2022. For each
consecutive twelve-months period (or part thereof) following the
volume-limited entry date until 31 January, 2026, the volume of
certain product sold by Cipla cannot exceed certain agreed-
upon percentages. In addition, Innovator has agreed to provide
Cipla with a license to its patent required to manufacture and sell
an unlimited quantity of certain product in the US beginning no
earlier than 3¢ January, 2026.

from Shanghai Desano
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Note 33: Cost of materials consumed Note 37: Finance costs 2in crores

in crores

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021
Cost of materials consumed 5,533.13 4,886.43
| 1 5,533.13( | 4,886.43|
Note 34: Purchases of stock-in-trade
in crores

For the year For the year

Particulars ended ended
31 March, 31* March,

2022 2021

Purchases of stock-in-trade 3,687.16 2,658.17
| _ il 3,687.261 | 2,65817{

Note 35: Changes in inventories of finished goods,

work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Tin crores

For the year For the year

Particulars ended ended
31¢ March, 31" March,
2022 2021
Opening Stock
Work-in-progress 846.55 822.87
Finished goods 1172.92 1,066.1
Stock-in-trade 667.50 605.28
2,68697 2,494.26
Less: Closing Stock (refer note 12)
Work-in-progress 851.71 846.55
Finished goods 1,497.65 117292
Stock-in-trade 1,062.30 667.50
3,411.66 2,68697
l(Increase)/decrease il (724.691 1 (9279
Note 36: Employee benefits expense
Tincrores

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended

31% March, 31 March,
2022 2021

Salaries and wages 3,163.06 2,92918

Contribution to provident and

other funds (refer note 46) 16414 14816

Share based payments

expense (refer note 47) 24.12 19.54

Staff welfare expenses 178.59 154.95

| i} 3,52991}] 3,251.83)

For the year For the year

Particulars ended ended

31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021

Interest expense on long-term

and short-term borrowings 7140 117.82

Interest on lease liabilities

(refer note 2.2) 18.26 2018

Interest on discounting of

trade receivables 7.85 8.09

Interest on provision for

claims - DPCO 7.34 6.89

Other finance cost (including

interest on taxes) 1.50 772

| 1 106.35{ | 160.70{

Note 38: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation

expense
Zin crores

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended

31 March, 31® March,
2022 2021

Depreciation on property,

plant and equipment [refer

note 2.1 ()] 601.79 59716

Impairment of property, plant

and equipment [refer note

2.1 ()] 12.94 16.00

Impairment of capital work-

in-progress (refer note 2.1 (b)] 8.7 222

Depreciation on right-of-use

assets (refer note 2.2) 79.52 88.82

Depreciation on investment

properties (refer note 3) 2.25 2.55

Amortisation of intangible

assets (refer note 5) 306.52 314.59

Impairment of intangibles

(refer note 5) 22.66 20.46

Impairment of intangible

assets under development

(refer note 5) 1810 2586

| , 1 1,05195 | 1,067.66]
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Note 39: Other expenses

Tin crores

Note 40: Other comprehensive income

For the year

For the year

For the year

Zin crores

For the year

Particulars ended ended Particulars ended ended
31 March, 31 March, 31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Manufacturing expenses 60116 54736  A.(1) ltems that will not be
Stores and spares 132.96 12113 reclassified to profit or loss
- - (i) Re-measurements of
Repairs and maintenance:
Buildi 39.20 3172 post-employment benefit
o : : obligation (attributable to
Plant and equipment 155.41 122.76 owners of the company)
Insurance 73.65 62.60 [refer note 46 (€)] 17.57 1902
Rent (refer note 2.2) 7818 75.86 (i)Re-measurements
Rates and taxes 100.27 68.06 of post-employment
Power and fuel 33103 308.26 benefit obligation (Non-
Travelling and conveyance 203.32 126.88 F°?tr°"'ntg '::)e(rjlsn 003 (003)
- refer note 46 (e . .
Sales promotion expenses 1,058.83 800.43 @i} Changes in fair vaiue
Commission on sales 260.33 200.51 of FVYTOC! financial
Freight and forwarding 350.84 297.68 instruments 109.42 (57.40)
Allowance for credit loss (net) 127.02 (38.41)
(refer note 42) (40.82) 39.48 (2) Income tax relating to
Contractual services 258.81 250.63 items that will not be
Non-executive directors reclassified to profit or loss
remuneration (refer note 48) 12.33 10.02 (i Income tax relating
— to re-measurements
Courier and telephone of post employment
: 9.71 > -
expenses : 3403 2 benefit obligation (4.43) (479
Legal and professional fees 698.81 609.29 (i) income tax relating to
Payment to auditors changes in fair value
(refer note ii below) 5.48 3.59 of FVTOCI financial
Corporate social responsibility instruments (1.05) 5.74
(CSR) expenditure (15.48) 095
(refer note 49) 55.76 4527 | il M54 | (37.46) |
Donations 34.52 537  B.()) Items that will be
Research - clinical trials, reclassified to profit or loss
samples and grants 265.68 132.73 0 fEXChT’”t?e d'?fre”f:e on
Miscellaneous expenses * 475.27 41410 rans GAIOH © °fe'9”
i 5185051 730344 operations (attributable
- - —— } L Uhhdndhcndl Uinduckd to owners of the
i Expense below 1% of company) 258.39 194.38
revenue from operation is (i) Exchange difference on
aggregated in accordance translation of foreign
with Schedule Il to the operations (Non-
Companies Act, 2013. controlling interest) 6.84 (13.57)
i Payment to auditors include: (ii)Cash flow hedge and
Audit fees 401 219 interest rate swap (refer
Tax audi fees 035 0.35 note 42) 7:52 22.37
For other services (includes 27275 203.18
lidation f (2) Income tax relating
consolidation fees, o to Items that will be
certifications, etc.) 104 099 reclassified to profit or loss
Reimbursement of expenses 0.08 0.06 (@) Income tax relating to
| I 548}| 3.59| cash flow hedge and
interest rate swap (0.62) (4.23)
Revenue expenditure aggregating to ¥ 1,080.18 crores (31¢ (0.62) (4.23)
March, 2021: ¥ 866.74 crores) on research and development 27213 19895
activities to the in-house research of new products has beén |~ " [l 3836711 v o 161491

charged through natural heads of accounts.
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Note 41: Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares which includes all stock
options granted to employees. The number of equity shares is the aggregate of the weighted average number of equity shares
and the weighted average number of equity shares which are to be issued in the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares
into equity shares.

Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 33 - Earnings per share:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
feu 31 March, 2022 31" March, 2021

Profit ofter tax attributable to equity shareholders as per profit or loss

(R in crores) 2,516.75 2,404.87
Basic weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 80,66,68,279 80,63,58,447
Basic earnings per share of par value ¥ 2/- per share 31.20 29.82
Add: Dilutive impact of employee stock options/ESAR 772,668 9,38,507
Diluted weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 80,74,40,947 80,72,96,954
Diluted earnings per share of par value % 2/- per share 3117 29.79

Note 42: Financial Instrument
A. Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The carrying amount of trade receivable, trade payable, capital creditors, loans, margin deposit, security deposit, incentives/
benefits receivable from government, cash and cash equivaients, other bank balances and other receivables as at 31 March, 2022
and 31 March, 2021 are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. Difference between carrying
amounts and fair values of other financial assets, other financial liabilities and short-term borrowings subsequently measured at
amortised cost is not significant in each of the year presented.

Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rate
and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected
losses of these receivables.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable
or unobservable and consists of following:

Level 1 - category includes financial assets and liabilities, that are measured in whole or in significant part by reference to published
quotes in an active market.

Level 2 - category includes financial assets and liabilities measured using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are
supported by prices from observable current market transactions. These include assets and liabilities for which pricing is obtained
via pricing services, but where prices have not been determined in an active market, financial assets with fair values based on
broker quotes and assets that are valued using the Group's own valuation models whereby the material assumptions are market
observable. The majority of Group’s over-the-counter derivatives and several other instruments not traded in active markets fall
within this category.

Level 3 - category includes financial assets and liabilities measured using valuation techniques based on non market observable
inputs. This means that fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.
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Note 42: Financial Instrument (Contd.)
However, the fair value measurement objective remains the same, that is, to estimate an exit price from the perspective of the Group.

The main asset classes in this category are unlisted equity investments as well as unlisted funds.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 315 March, 2022 were as follows:
Tincrores

Fair Yalue

Financial assets:
Financial assets at amortised cost

Investment properties (refer note 3) 61.42 - - 89.88
Investment in associates (refer note 6) 8.10 ~ - 8.10
Investment in National saving certificates

(refer note 7) 0.00 - - 0.00
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in mutual funds (refer note 13) 2,194.97 2,194.97 - -
Investment in equity shares of Saraswat

Co-operative Bank Limited (refer note 7) 0.00 - - 0.00
Derivatives not designated as hedge (refer note 18) 17.73 ~ 17.73 -

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Investments in equity instrument (refer note 7) 269.57 - - 269.57
Investment in limited liability partnership firm

(refer note 7) 40.25 - - 40.25
Derivative designated as hedge (refer note 18) 0.75 - 0.75 -

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Lease liabilities (refer note 2.2) 231.64 - - 231.64
Borrowings (refer note 23) 82414 - - 82414
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Put option liability (refer note 24) 34.75 - - 34.75

Financial liabilities ot fair value through other
comprehensive income
Derivative designated as hedge (refer note 28) 13.81 - 13.81 -

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31* March, 2021 were as follows:

gin crores
Fair Value
Particulars Carrying value
Levell Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Financial assets at amortised cost
Investment properties (refer note 3) 121.75 - - 162.70
Investment in associates (refer note 6) 0.61 - - 0.6
Investment in National saving certificates
(refer note 7) 0.00 - - 0.00
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments in mutual funds (refer note 13) 2,286.37 2,286.37 - -
Investment in equity shares of Saraswat
Co-operative Bank Limited (refer note 7) 0.00 - - 0.00
Derivative not designated as hedge (refer note 18) 190 - 1.90 -

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Investments in equity instrument (refer note 7) 155.30 - - 155.30
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Note 42: Financial Instrument (Contd.)
Tincrores
Fair Value
Particulars Carrying value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investment in limited liability partnership firm (refer note 7) 40.00 - - 40.00
Derivative designated as hedge (refer note 18) 59.71 - 5971 -
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Lease liabilities (refer note 2.2) 258.85 - - 258.85
Borrowings (refer note 23) 1,755.56 - - 1,755.56
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Put option liability (refer note 24) 28.26 - - 28.26
Financial liabilities at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Interest rate swap used for hedging (refer note 28) 9.70 - 9.70 -
Derivative designated as hedge (refer note 28) 16.98 - 16.98 -

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's primary focus
is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on its financiol performance.

The Group's financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payable and other liabilities to manage its operation and financial
assets includes trade receivables, security deposit, loan and advances etc., arises from its operation.

The Group has constituted a Risk Management Committee consisting of a majority of directors and senior managerial personnel.
The Group has a robust Business Risk Management framework to identify, evaluate business risks and opportunities. This framework
seeks to create transparency, minimise adverse impact on the business objectives and enhance the Group’s competitive advantage.
The business risk framework defines the risk management approach across the enterprise at various levels including documentation
and reporting. The framework has different risk models which help in identifying risks trend, exposure and potential impact analysis
at a Group level.

The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the risk management framework at periodic intervals.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates
and prices. The Group’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial
instruments:

currency risk;
price risk; and
interest rate risk

The above risks may affect the Group’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to and
management of these risks are explained below.

(a) Currency risk:

The Group operates internationally and a major portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk to the extent that there is mismatch between the currencies in which its sales and services
and purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The Group also holds derivative financial instruments such as
foreign exchange forward and currency option contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency
exposures. The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may
fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the results of the Group’s operations are affected as the Rupee (INR) appreciates/
depreciates against US Dollar (USD), Euro (EUR), Great Britain Pound (GBP), South African Rand (ZAR) , Australian Dollar (AUD) and -
other currencies.
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Foreign exchange risk

(i) Foreign exchange derivatives and exposures outstanding at the year end

Tincrores
Cross As at As at
Nature of Instrument Currency Currency 31 March, 2021
Forward contracts - Sold uUsD INR 3,154.40 2,885.12
Foreign exchange currency option contracts -
sold and bought usb INR 272.85 270.50
Forward contracts - Sold ZAR INR L44.06 660.27
Forward contracts - Sold AUD INR 104.86 94.68
—}‘Schrd contracts - Sold ) GBP INR - 133.57 . 90.68
Forward contracts - Sold EUR INR 138.12 -
Forward contracts - Bought usD ZAR 260.41 258.47
Forward contracts - Bought EUR ZAR 34.35 23.06
Unhedged foreign exchange exposvres:
- Trade and other receivables 502.40 577.66
- Cash and cash equivalents 179.68 7114
- Trade and other payables : 4L7791) (364.49)
" - Borrowings (57.69) (48.62)
Note: The Group uses foreign exchange forward and currency option contracts for hedging purposes.
(ii) Foreign currency risk from financial instruments:
Tincrores

As at 31 March, 2022

Particulars
|_Us dollors | mm-mm

Trade and other receivables 410.07 4.42 63.59 02 24.30 502. 40
Cash and cash equivalents 160.53 13.04 5.98 - 0.13 179.68
Trade and other payables (291.76) (77.77) (42.72) (27.52) (38.14) “779%)
Borrowings (54.00) - (3.69) - - (57.69)

[ Net assets/(liabilities) I 224,84 || (60.31) || 236 i] (27.50) |1 3.7 Ei 146.48 |
Zincrores

As at 31 March, 2021

Particulars

US dollars Euro GBP ZAR Other Total

Trade and other receivables 380.61 80.38 36.54 33.27 46.86 577.66

Cash and cash equivalents 37.1 3.86 29.77 - 0.40 7.4

Trade and other payables (242.46) (57.67) (23.67) (3.89) (36.80) (364.49)

Borrowings (48.62) - - - - (48.62)
[ Net assets/(liabilities) I 126.64 |] 26.57 || 42.64 1] 29.38 || 10.46 ] 235.69 |

(iii) Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates by 5% (31 March, 2021: 5%) would have increased/(decreased) equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables in particular interest rates remain constant.
Zin crores
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
arficulars 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Movement in exchange rate

USD - INR - . 5% 5%
EUR - INR . 5% 5%
GBP - INR 5% 5%
ZAR - INR 5% 5%

Other currency 5% 5%




I

\\ Corporaote Overview & Integrated Report /‘ i\ Statutory Reports ; Financial Statements

e
351
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Tincrores
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articuiars 31 March, 2022 31% March, 2021
Impact on profit/loss
USD - INR .24 6.33
EUR - INR (3.02) 1.33
GBP - INR 1.16 213
ZAR - INR (1.38) V.47
Other currency (0.69) 0.52

(b) Price risk

(©

The Group is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in debt mutual funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties
about the future market values of these investments. At 31 March, 2022, the investments in debt mutual funds amounts to ¥
2,194.97 crores (31 March, 2021: 7 2,286.37 crores). These are exposed to price risk. The Group has laid policies and guidelines
which it adheres to in order to minimise price risk arising from investments in debt mutual funds. A 1% increase in prices would
have led to approximately an additional  21.95 crores gain in profit or loss (31 March, 2021: ¥22.86 crores gain). A 1% decrease
in prices would have led to an equal but opposite effect.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value inferest rate risk is the risk
of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates, in cases where the
borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of
floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Group policy is to maintain most of its borrowings ot fixed rate using interest rate swaps to achieve this when
necessary. During 31¥ March, 2022 and 31" March, 2021, the Group borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in
USD and ZAR.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that maximum of its interest rate
risk exposure is at a fixed rate by hedging interest rate swaps. The borrowings profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial
instruments as reported to the Management of the Group is as follows:

Tincrores

Particulars As at As at
31 March, 2022 31* March, 2021

Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities 824.14 1,755.56
Tincrores
As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31 March, 2021
N Wei ight
Particulars eighted % of total Weighted % of total
average Balance average Balance
) loans 8 loans
interest cost interest cost
Borrowings 4.32% 824.14 100% 3.24% 1,755.56 100%
Interest rate swap (notional
principal amount) - 804.21

Net exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk 824.14 951.35
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Cash fiow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in interest rates
at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity
and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency
exchange rates, remain constant.

Zin crores
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
. ) 31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021

Impact on profit/loss
Increase (4.12) (4.76)
Decrease 4,12 4.76

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis
points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also
assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date andhas
been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that
date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative
of the average debt outstanding during the period.

The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the Group
does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair
value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates
at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of inancial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables
from customers and investment securities. The Group establishes
an allowance for credit losses and impairment that represents
its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and investments. The
management have evaluated receivable from customers based
out of Sri Lanka in view of ongoing economic crisis and have
concluded that there is no increase in credit risk as on 31 March,
2022 from such receivables on account of business continuity.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics
of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and
country in which the customer operates, also has an influence
on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants
credit terms in the normal course of business.

Cash and cash equivalents and investments:

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group
generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic
credit rating agencies. The Group limits its exposure to credit

risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with
counterparties that have a good credit rating.

The Group does not expect any losses from non-performance
by these counter-parties, and does not have any significant
concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or
specific country risks.

Details of financial assets - not due, past due and impaired

None of the Group’s cash equivalents, including term deposits
(i.e., certificates of deposit) with banks, were past due or
impaired as at 31 March, 2022.

For ageing analysis of the receivable (gross of provision) -
Refer note 14

Expected credit loss:

In accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Group
uses the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on its trade receivables or
any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers. For this purpose,
the Group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected
credit loss amount for trade receivables. The provision matrix
takes into account external and internal credit risk factors and
historical data of credit losses from various customers.

The details of changes in allowance for credit losses during
the year ended 31% March, 2022 and 31% March, 2021 for trade
receivables are as follows:

Zin crores
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March, 31* March,
2022 2021
[Opening Balance 1 23154 1 288.56 |
Provided during the year 27.28 96.66
Reversals of provision (68.10) (57.18)
Written off during the year (16.06) (85.90)
Effects of changes in
foreign exchange rate 6.05 (7.41)
Other adjustment - (309
IClosing Balance H 180.71 | { 231.54 |
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its
obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group’s
approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers
both normal and stressed conditions. The Group maintained
a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance
throughout the year ended 31 March, 2022 and 31¢ March,
2021. Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to
service the financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Group
regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient
cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any
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short-term surplus cash generated, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other operational
requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is invested in interest bearing term
deposits and other highly marketable debt investments with appropriate maturities to optimise the cash returns on investments
while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31** March, 2022:
Tin crores

. Less than 1
Particulars year 1-5 years J Above 5 years Total

Non-derivative:

Borrowings
Current borrowings 393.34 - - 393.34
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 14.56 - - 14.56
Non-current borrowings - 416.24 - £416.24
Trade payables 2,508.10 - - 2,508.10
Other financial liabilities 370.83 50.37 50.00 471.20
Lease liabilities 85.08 148.13 57.74 290.95
Derivative:
Derivative designated as hedge 13.81 - - 13.81
‘. - — ” 338572 H T “ S— .1.07.7.4,"” %108.20 |

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March, 2021:

gin crores
Particulars Less than1 1-5years Above 5 years Total
year
Non-derivative:
Borrowings
Current borrowings 334.73 - - 334.73
Current maturities of non-current borrowings 218.08 - - 218.08
Non-current borrowings - 1,202.75 - 1,202.75
Trade payables 2,066.82 - - 2,066.82
Other financial liabilities 45495 47.27 50.45 552.67
Lease liabilities 73.29 192.83 75.72 341.84
Derivative:
Derivative designated as hedge 26.68 - - 26.68
] ) H '3,174.55 | | 1,442.85 || 12617 || 4,743.57 |

Impact of hedging

The Group uses foreign exchange forward/options contracts to hedge against the foreign currency risk of highly probable USD,
AUD, EUR and ZAR sales. Such derivative financial instruments are governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of
Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such instruments consistent with the Group’s risk management strategy. As
the value of the derivative instrument generally changes in response to the value of the hedged item, the economic relationship is
established. Further, the Group has taken interest rate swap to hedge its term loan from banks which are at variable interest rates.

a) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting in Group's balance sheet
Tincrores

Carrying amount X
Maturity Hedge Weighted average

T of hedge a isk. i
ype edge and risks N°m'"°: Assets Liabilities date ratio” strike price/rate
amoun

31¢ March, 2022

Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange forward April 2022 - USD1=ZAR15.66
contracts (refer note 28) 294.75 - 13.81 March 2023 1A EUR1=ZAR17.36
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5 Maturity Hedge Weighted average
T 'dge ¢ : i
ype of hedge and risks Liabilities date ratio® strike price/rate
amoun

Zincrores

Foreign exchange forward contracts Usb1=%78.46

(refer note 18) April 2022 - ZAR1=%5.05
2,893.87 0.41 - March 2023 1:1 AUD1=%58.43

Foreign exchange currency options April 2022 -

contracts - Sold (refer note 18) 272.85 (1.46) - March 2023 101 UsD1=%78.32

Foreign exchange currency options April 2022 -

contracts - Bought (refer note 18) 272.85 1.80 - March 2023 1:] USD 1=377.61

Fair value hedge
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange forward 1,081.13 17.73 - April 2022 - 1 USD1=%76.78
contracts (refer note 18) March 2023 ZAR1=%4.85
AUD1=%56.64

GBP1=2%102.36

EUR1=386.94

Tin crores

Carrying amount

Maturity Hedge Weighted average

Type of hedge and risks Nominal Assets Liabilities date ratio* strike price/rate
amount

31 March, 2021

Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange forward April 2021 - USD 1 =ZAR 1594

contracts (refer note 28) 281.53 - 16.98 March 2022 1:1 EUR1=ZAR 18.51

Foreign exchange forward contracts April 202i - UsD1=%77.59

(refer note 18) 3,172.31 58.40 - March 2022 1:1 ZAR1=%4.70

Foreign exchange currency options April 2021 -

contracts - Sold (refer note 18) 270.50 (2.23) - March 2022 A UsSD1=379.68

Foreign exchange currency options April 2021 -

contracts - Bought (refer note 18) 270.50 3.54 - March 2022 11 USD1=3%74.32

Interest rate risk

Interest rate swap (refer note 28) April 2021 -

804.21 - 9.70 March 2022 i1 2.30%

Fair valve hedge

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange forward 558.43 1.90 - April 2021 - i:l UsD1=%74.16

contracts (refer note 18) March 2022 ZAR1=% 490
AUD1=3%56.76
GBP1=2%102.55

*The foreign currency forward contracts and currency options contracts are denominated in the same currency as the highly probable future sales, therefore
hedge ratio of 1:}

b) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting in Group's profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Tin crores

Change in the value of the Hedge ineffectiveness  Amount reclassified from

Type of hedge hedging instrument recognised recognised in profit cash flow hedge reserve
in other comprehensive income or loss to profit and loss

31* March, 2022
Cash flow hedge

i) Foreign exchange risk contracts 41.65 - (52.99)
(refer note 40)
i) Interest rate swap 8.41 - 10.44

(refer note 40)




i‘\\ Corporate Overview & Integrated Report /’ \\ Statutory Reports /f' Finoncial Statements

355
° * .
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 42: Financial Instrument (Contd.)
Tincrores
Change in the value of the Hedge ineffectiveness Amount reclassified from
Type of hedge hedging instrument recognised recognised in profit cash flow hedge reserve
in other comprehensive income or loss to profit and loss

<)

31* March, 2021

Cash flow hedge

i}y Foreign exchange risk (22.19) - 37.45
contracts (refer note 40)
ii) Interest rate swap (refer note 40) 7.1 - -

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness
assessment to ensure that an economic relationships exists between the hedged item and hedging instruments. It is calculated
by comparing changes in fair value of the hedged item, with the changes in fair value of the hedging instrument.

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective remains unchanged and
the hedge continues to qudlify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the
hedginginstrument or the volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk management purposes.
Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

Movement in cash flow hedge reserve and cost of hedge reserve

Zin crores
As at 31 March, 2022 As at 31¢ March, 2021
Derivative Instruments Foreign exchange Interest I3]0 Foreign exchange Interest Total
forward/currency LWELIEY forward/currency hedge
rate swap . rate swap
options contracts [N options contracts reserve
Cash flow hedging reserve »
jOpening balance "~ H 53911  (15.32)I1 (9.93)11 6.65)[1 (21.42)1] (28.07){
Add: Changes in fair value 41.65 8.4] 50.06 (22.19) 71 (15.08)
Less: Amount reclassified to profit
or loss (52.99) 10.44  (42.55) 37.45 - 37.45
Less: Deferred tax relating to above
(net) 292 (3.53) (0.61) (3.22) (1.01) (4.23)
|Closing balance i1 (3.03)[] -[L_(3.03)I] 53901 (15.32){1_ (9.93)]

Note 43: Capital Management

(A) Risk Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal structure to reduce
the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amounts of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell new assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in
Industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio: (net debt divided by total 'equity").

Net debt = Total borrowings (including lease liabilities) less (Cash and cash equivalents + Bank balance other than cash and
cash equivalents (excluding balance earmarked for unclaimed dividend) + Current investments).

Total 'equity’ as shown in the balance sheet, including non-controlling interest.

%incrores

Particulars As at As ot

31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Total debt 1,055.78 2,014.41
Less: Cash and cash equivalent including mutual fund and bank deposit

with original maturity between 3 to 12 months. 4,111.54 3,676.48

Net debt (A) (3,055.76) (1,662.07)

21,117.38 18,585.59

Total equity (B)
[Net debt to equity ratio (A/B) i 0.14) || (0.09) |




—k Care that inspires innovation

Cipla Limited | Annual Report 2021-22

356

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 43: Capital Management (Contd.)

(B) Loan covenants

Under the year ended 31¥ March, 2022, the Group has repaid major borrowing facilities, the Group was required to comply with

following financial covenants in the previous year and upto the

(@
(b) the ratio of total debt to tangible net worth on the last day

©

date of repayment:

the ratio of total debt to EBITDA on the last day of each relevant period shall not exceed 3.50:1

of each relevant period shall not exceed 2:1; and

the ratio of EBITDA to gross interest and finance charges shall not be less than 3.50:1.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting periods.

- (©)

Dividend on equity share

Zin crores

Particulars

Year ended
31 March, 2021

Year ended
31* March, 2022

(a) Dividend on equity shares paid during the year

Final dividend for the year 403.35 -
[FY 2020-21: 5.00 (FY 2019-20: ¥ Nil) per equity share of ¥ 2.00 each] - -
| il 403.35 || - |
(b) Proposed dividend on equity share not recognised as liability 403.41 403.23

The Board of Directors of the Company at the meeting held on 10™ May, 2022 has recommended a final dividend of ¥ 5.00 per

equity share which is subject to approval at the ensuing Annual
as a liability.

Note 44: Investment in an Associate

General Meeting of the Company and hence is not recognised

Zin crores

% of Ownership

Quoted fair value Carrying value

interest
Particulars Place of e Accounting P 3
Business Method
March, March, March,
2021 2021 2021
Material associates:
Avenue Therapeutics, Inc.! USA 25.93% 32.50% Equity 21.29 258.87 - 190.33
Brandmed (Pty) Limited?
South Africa 30.00% 30.00% Equity -* -* 2697 27.81
Other immaterial associates
(refer note below) 18.84 10.24
] H I fl I 1 [l [l as81][ 228.38!
*Unlisted entity- no quoted price available.
1. Avenue Therapeutics Inc. is a specialty pharmaceutical Note 44: Investment in an Associate (Contd.)
company whose mission is to develop |V tramadol, . . .
. ) Movement of investment in associates
a potential alternative that could reduce the use of Zin crores
conventional opioids, for patients suffering from acute pain As at As ot
in the U.S. During the year, the ownership has been diluted Particulars 31 March, 31 March,
from 32.50% to 25.93% 2022 2021
‘2. Brandmed (Pty) Limited is a connected healthcare firm  Opening balance 10.24 0.56
which develops software to seamlessly integrate a Addition/unwinding during
combination of connected solutions across the health  the year 7.50 9.05
continuum for patients, healthcare professionals, practices Profit/(loss) for the year 1.10 0.63
and inslitutions, and aims to deliver personalised patient ‘Aqg"egafe carrying .
care. Brandmed (Pty) Limited's principul place of business  }amount of ih"divid(,guy" _ ‘
is South Africa and has a financial year end consistent with 'immqferim associates 18.84 10.24

the Group.
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Note 44: Investment . in an Associate (Contd.)

Zin crores
: As.at As at
Particulars 3 March, | 31 March,
. 2022 2021
Opening balance 218.14 234.4]
Profit/(loss) for the year (13.92) (13.42)
Translation adjustment
arising out of translation of
foreign currency balances 4.87 (2.85)
Impairment of investment

in associate

-182.12) -

Financial information of associates that are materiai to Group
as at 31* March; 2022 is provided below:

A) Avenqe‘Thercpeuﬁcs, Inc.

Note 44: Investment in an Associate (Contd.)

Avenue fheropeutics, Inc. (Avenue’) an associate company of the
Group on 12" October, 2020 had announced receipt of a Complete
Response Letter (“CRL”) from the US FDA for IV Tramadol NDA. On
12" February, 2021, Avenue resubmitted its NDA to the US FDA for
IV Tramadol on réceipt of official minutes from a Type A meeting
with the US FDA. The Group did not exercise its rights under the
stock purchase and merger agreement (SPMA) as the second
closing did not happen on or before the contracted date of 30"
April, 2021 owing to the aforementioned US FDA matter.

Further, on 14t June, 2021, Avenue announced that it had received.a-
second Complete Response Letter (the “Second CRL”) from the US
FDA regarding Avenue’s Tramadol IV NDA. Subsequently, on 15"
February, 2022 Avenue announced that it had received an appeal
dénial letter from the USFDA's Office of New Drugs regarding
Avenue's formal dispute resolution fequest-for Tramadol IV 'NDA.
Basis the above events and change in the market dynamics
for Tramadol IV NDA, the management identified trigger for
impairment assessment of the investment in Avenue and have
recorded an impairment charge amounting to 2182.12 crores as an

Zin crores exceptional item in consclidated financial statements for the year
R f .. “Asat | Asat - -ended 31 March, 2022, ST
" Particulars . 'Sl:’} March, 31 March, ’
2022 . 2021 ) Brandmed (Pty) Limited
Current assets 14,83 14.2) L Xincrores
Intangible assets under . - Asat As at
development (refer note _ Particulars . 31?’ March, 31* March,
below) - - 596.27 2022 2021
Current liabilities (5.51) . (3.38) Current assets ° 7.20 6.63
{Equity: 2; '60710:]  "Non-current assets 4.24 3.25
Group ownership 25.93% 32.50% Current liabilities - (5.66) (0.28)
Equity proportion of the , Non-current liabilities
Group ownership 2.42 197.31 ?E ity %
Translation adjustment Group ownership
arising out of translation of o Equity proportion of the )
foreign currency balances 3.36 (6.98) Group ownership 0.47 278
.Carrying amount of the . . Goodwill 2498 20.91
investment » -~ ‘ 190.33 Translation adjustment
. arising out of translation of
¥in crores foreign currency balances’ 1.52 412
. , “Asat Asat  Carrying amount of the .
Particulars 31* March, 31*'March, investment 2697 27.81
2022 § 2021 k
Revenue from sale of ; %incrores
products ‘ S - . . - . Year ended Year ended
Profit/(loss) for the year (44.63) (36.09)  Particulars 31 March, 31* March,
Total'comprehensive . L. ..2022 2021
income for the year (44.63) . (36.09) Revenue from sale of ‘
of products” 4.03 8.97
' Profit/(loss) for the year (7.83) (5.63)
Tof =3 E’éﬁ}& e

rhid
Group’s share of profit/
(loss) for the year
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Note 45: Contingent liabilities, commitments and Note 45: Contingent liabilities, commitments and

other litigations (to the extent not provided for)

A. Details of contingent liabilities and commitments

Zincrores
As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 31* March,
2022 2021
Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Group
not acknowledged as debt! 218.58 161.88
Financial guarantees 239.46 186.79
Letters of credit 76.81 81.40
Income tax on account of
disallowances/additions 22.18 51.63
Excise duty/service tax
on account of valuation/
cenvat credit 131.78 132.27
Sales tax on account of
credit/classification 54.03 8.12
742.84 622.09
Commitments
Estimated amount of
contracts unexecuted on
capital account 548.40 556.33
Note :
(i) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt

(ii)

iii)

(iv)

W)

include claims related to pricing, commission, etc.

It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timing of
cash outflows, if any, in respect of our pending resolution of
the respective proceedings asit is determined only onreceipt
of judgements/decisions pending with various authorities.

The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect
of the above contingent liabilities.

The Group’s pending litigations comprise of proceedings
pending with various direct tax, indirect tax and other
authorities. The Company has reviewed all our pending
litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided
for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable, in our financial
statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of
these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on
the financial statements.

There has been a judgement by the Honourable Supreme
Court of India dated 28" February, 2019, relating to
components of salary structure that need to be taken into
account while computing the contribution to provident fund
under the Employee Provident Fund Act, 1952 ("EPF). In
view of the interpretative aspects related to the judgement
including the effective date of application, the Group has
been advised to await further developments in this matter.

other litigations (to the extent not provided for
(Contd.)

(vi)

The Group will continue to assess any further developments in
this matter for the implications on financial statements, if any.

During the year, the Cipla Health Limited (CHL), a Subsidiary
Company has received ex-parte Show Cause Notice (SCN)
Orders in FORM DRC-07 for a total tax demand along-with
interest and penalty of ¥ 45.56 crores for the years 2017-18
to 2020-21. The Adjudicating Authority passed the Orders
without providing the material facts viz. specific allegations
against CHL and granting the subsidiary any opportunity
of being heard. Based on the legal opinion obtained,
management is of the view that the ex-parte orders are
passed by the Adjudicating Authority in gross violation of
principles of natural justice and the subsidiary will evaluate
to file a Writ Petition before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi
inter-alia seeking quashing of the said orders.

B. Details of other litigations

®

i)

The Government of India has served demand notices in
March 1995 and May 1995 on the Company in respect of six
bulk drugs, claiming that an amount of ¥ 5.46 crores along
with interest due thereon is payable into the DPEA under the
Drugs (Prices Control) Order, 1979 on account of alleged
unintended benefit enjoyed by the Company. The Company
has filed its replies to the notices and has contended that
no amount is payable into the DPEA under the Drugs (Prices
Control) Order, 1979.

The Company had received various notices of demand
from the National Pharmaceutical Pricing Authority (NPPA),
Government of Indig, on account of alleged overcharging
in respect of certain drugs under the Drugs (Prices Control)
Orders. The total demand against the Company as stated
in NPPA public disclosure amounts to ¥ 3,703.40 crores.

Out of the above, demand notices pertaining to a set of
products being Norfloxacin, Ciprofloxacin, Salbutamol and
Theophylline were challenged by the Company (i) in the
Honourable Bombay High Court on the ground that bulk
drugs contained in the said formulations are not amenable
to price control, as they cannot be included in the ambit of
price control based on the parameters contained in the Drug
Policy, 1994 on which the DPCO, 1995 is based and (i) in the
Honourable Allahabad High Court on process followed for
fixation of pricing norms. These petitions were decided in
favour of the Company and the matters were carried in
appeal by the Union of India to the Honourable Supreme
Court of India. The Honourable Supreme Court in its judgment
of 1 August, 2003 remanded the said writ petitions to the
Honourable Bombay High Court with directions that the Court
will have to consider the petitions afresh, having due regard
to the observations made by the Honourable Supreme Court
in its judgment. On the Union of India filing transfer petitions,
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other litigations (to the extent not provided for
(Contd.)

the Honourable Supreme Court ordered transfer of the said
petitions to the Honourable Bombay High Court to it for
being heard with the appeal filed against the Honourable
Alichabad High Court order. Subsequently, in its order of
20" July, 2016 the Honourable Supreme Court recalled its
transfer order and remanded the petitions to Honourable
Bombay High Court for hearing. While remanding the matter
to Honourable Bombay High Court, the Honourable Supreme
Court directed Cipla to deposit 50% of the overcharged
amount with the NPPA as stated in its order of 1# August, 2003
which at that point of time was ¥ 350.15 crores. Complying
with the directions passed by the Honourable Supreme Court,
Cipla has deposited an amount of ¥175.08 crores which has
been received and acknowledged by NPPA. Furthermore, the
Company has not received any further notices in these cases
post such transfer of cases to Honourable Bombay High Court.
Meanwhile, the Honourable Supreme Court vide its Order and
Judgment dated 21 October, 2016, allowed the Appeails filed
by the Government against the Judgment and Order of the
Honourable Allahabad High Court regarding basis of fixation
of retail prices. The said order was specific to fixation of retail
prices without adhering to the formula/process laid down in
DPCO, 1995. However, the grounds relating to inclusion of
certain drugs within the span of price control continues to be
sub-judice with the Honourable Bombay High Court.

The Honourable Bombay High Court had, in expectation
of NPPA filing its counter-statement on status of
each petitioner’s complionce with the 2003 and 2016
Honourable Supreme Court orders (on deposit 50%
of amount demanded), re-scheduled the hearing for
5™ June, 2019, but the same was not listed on that date.
The Company had filed amendment applications before the
Honourable Bombay High Court to incorporate the effect of
a ruling by the Honourable Supreme Court to adjust trade
margins of 16% from outstanding demands as not accrued
to the manufacturers and to re-calculate interest from date
of non-payment of demand within the time period stated
in each demand. The said amendment also places certain
additional grounds on record. The Honourable Bombay
High Court issued notice to Union of India and NPPA on
the amendment applications and set 25™ January, 2021
for further hearing but the case was not listed due to the
COVID-19 lockdown and the next date is awaited.

The Company has been legally advised that it has a
substantially strong case on the merits of the matter,
especially under the guidelines/principles of interpretation
of the Drug Policy enunciated by the Honourable Supreme
Court. Although, the decision of Honourable Supreme
Court dated 21* October, 2016 referred above was in favour
of Union of India with respect to the appeals preferred by
the Government challenging the Honourable Allahabad

(i)

High Court order, basis the facts and legal advice on
the matter sub-judice with the Honourable Bombay High
Court, no provision is considered necessary in respect of
the notices of demand received till dafe aggregating to
¥ 1,736.00 crores. It may be noted that NPPA in its public
disclosure has stated the total demand amount against the
Company in relation to the above said molecules to be ¥
3,281.31 crores (after adjusting deposit of ¥ 175.08 crores),
however, the Company has not received any further notices
beyond an aggregate amount of 1,736.00 crores.

In addition, Company had made provision of T 118.49 crores
as of 31 March, 2022 (Z 111.15 crores as of 31 March, 2021)
for products not part of the referenced writ proceedings
against total demand of ¥ 247.01 crores. Further, no new
recovery notices were received by the Company during
the year, thus not requiring any fresh cases to be filed by
the Company in that regard. Due to COVID-19, courts are
hearing only urgent cases, hence the writs that are pending
will be heard in due course.

In March 2006, the Meditab Specialities Limited, (‘the Subsidiary
Company’) acquired on lease, land admeasuring 1,232,000
sq. m. in Kerim Industrial Estate at But Khamb, Taluka Ponda,
Goa from Goa Industrial Development Corporation (GIDC)
for the setting up and development of a Special Economic
Zone (SEZ) for pharmaceutical products. Thereafter, the
Subsidiary Company entered into sub-lease of this land with
a SEZ occupier with an undertaking to provide infrastructural
facilities. Following public agitation, the State Government of
Goa brought about changes in policy regarding SEZ in the
State of Goa which had the effect of the Subsidiary Company
not pursuing its development activity and GIDC on instructions
of the State Government of Goa issued show cause for
revoking aliotment of land. The Subsidiary Company’s writ
petition on the challenge to the show cause was disposed
by the Honourable Bombay High Court stating that the State
Government of Goa was competent to alter the SEZ policy. It
was aiso held that the Subsidiary Company may apply for re-
allotment of the same land to be utilised for purpose other than
SEZ. The Subsidiary Company filed a Special Leave Petition
before the Honourable Supreme Court and in which parties
were directed to maintain status quo. Also by order dated 18"
October, 2013 the Hon'ble Supreme Court has granted the
Special Leave to Appeal to the Subsidiary Company and the
interim orders continue till the appeal is finally heard. Vide
a GO dated 30™ July, 2018, issued by the Goa Government, it
was resolved that the lands which were alotted to 7 SEZ land
owners (including the Subsidiary Company) would be taken
back and their monies refunded. In pursuance of the said GO,
the Honourable Supreme Court vide its order dated 31 July,
2018 disposed the appeals of 6 SEZ owners and the Subsidiory
Company is the sole continuing litigant. Further, vide order
dated 22™ October, 2018, the Honourable Supreme Court has
ordered that, the appeal filed by the Subsidiary Company
shall be listed for hearing in due course.
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(Contd.)

The Subsidiary Company has been legally advised that it
has good case both on facts and on law succeeding in its
appeal. The Subsidiary Company is therefore of the view
that no provision is required to be made on the amount
incurred towards cost of land and on the development of
SEZ amounting to Z10.48 crores as at 31 March, 2022 (31
March, 2021: 210.48 crores)

Note 46: Employee Benefits

Employee benefit expense of the Group includes various short-
term employee expenses, defined benefits expenses, expenses
toward defined contribution on plans and other long-term
employee benefits. Total employee benefits, including share
based payments, incurred during the year ended 31 March,
2022 and 31 March, 2021 amounted to ¥ 3,529.91 crores and
% 3,251.83 crores respectively.

Disclosure in respect of contributions to provident and other
funds as follows:

Tincrores
For the Year For the Year
Particulars ended ended
31 March, 31* March,
2022 2021
Defined contribution pians
Employees’ pension
scheme 50.28 36.51
Provident fund 18.03 19.65
Contribution for 401(k)
fund* 16.42 13.31
Others - ESIS, Labour
welfare fund, etc. 17.27 .14
| i 102.00 || 80.61 |
Defined benefit plans
Gratuity (refer table 1
below) 23.62 27.94
Provident fund (refer
table 2 below) 38.52 39.61
| H 6214 }| 67.55 |
iTotal contribution to ]
provident fund and other
fund 164.14 148.16

*The Group maintains o 401(k) ptan, pursuant to which employees may make
contributions which are not to exceed statutory limits. Employer matching
contribution are equal to 100% of employee contribution.

Note 46: Employee Benefits (Contd.)

Disclosure in respect of defined benefit plan:

a.

Description of the plan:

Retirement benefit plans of the Group include gratuity for the
Holding Company, Indian subsidiaries and provident fund
for the Holding Company. Liabilities in respect of the Gratuity
Plan are determined by an actuarial valuation, based
upon which the Holding Company and Indian subsidiaries
make contributions to the Gratuity Fund. Provident Fund is
managed by the Holding Company through trust Employees
Provident Fund (the “Provident Fund”).

Governance of the plan:

The Holding Company and India subsidiaries has set up an
income tax approved irrevocable trust fund to finance the
plan liability. The trustees of the trust fund are responsible for
the overall governance of the plan in accordance with the
provisions of the trust deed and rules in the best interests of
the plan participants. They are tasked with periodic reviews
of the solvency of the fund and play a role in the long-
term investment, risk management and funding strategy.
Further, since these funds are income tax approved, the
Company and the trustees have to ensure that they are at
all times fully compliant with the relevant provisions of the
income Tax Act, 1961 and Rules.

Investment strategy:

The Holding Company and Indian subsidiaries' investment
strategy inrespect of their funded plansisimplemented within
the framework of the applicable statutory requirements. The
plans expose these companies to a number of actuarial
risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk
and inflation risk. The companies have developed policy
guidelines for the allocation of assets to different classes
with the objective of controlling risk and maintaining the
right balance between risk and long-term returns in order to
limit the cost to these companies of the benefits provided. To
achieve this, investments are well diversified, such that the
failure of any single investment would not have a material
impact on the overall level of assets.

Table 1: Disclosures for defined benefit plans based on
actuarial reports

2022 Gratuity

(Funded Plan)

185.84

Zincrores

2021 Gratuity
(Funded Plan)

Particulars

i. Change in defined
benefit obligation
Opening defined
benefit obligation
Liability
transferred Out/
Divestments

179.52

(114) -
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2022 Gratuity
(Funded P_I'an);

Particulars

~Tincrores.

Note 46: Employee Bénefits (Contd.)

361

“

Zin crores

2021 Gratuity

Parﬁculorﬁ .

72021 Gratuity
(Funded Plan)

B 2022 Gratuity
' '(Fu'n'ded'PIan)j

(Funded Plan)

Interest.cost- 12.33 S NA iv. Expenses

" ““Current service . ] recognised in
cost 23.57 25.62 _profit or loss
Actuarial i Current service :
changes drising .. i cost 23.57 25.62
from changes Interest on defined ) ’
in demographic . . benefit obligation 12.34 11.91
assumptions (0.01) 1.34 Expected return
Actuarial . on plan assets
_changes arising (Interest income
from changes only) - (12.29) (9.59)
in financial . 5t
assumptions - (4.97) 0.82 .
Actuarial

changes arising
from changes

in experience
‘assumptions

Benefits paid
-, By z?’th
eiyear

- li. Change in fair

Expenses - .

recognised in other . i,
comprehensive '
income

Actuarial’ - : -

-changes arising

from chonges
in demographic

. value of assets assumptions (0.01) 1.34
Opening fair value L . Actuarial
of plan assets 178:75 145.48 changes arising’
Assets transferred . ' ‘from changes
Out/Divestments 038 - in financial ) -
Expected return on . ) assumptions (4:97) 0.82
plan assets . 12.29 9.59 Actuarial '
Return.on plan changes arising
assets excluding i from changes
_interest income- ) . 5.48 598 .in experience ,
Contributions by ’ assumptions (7.14) (15.16)
- employer 21.66 '33.54 Actuarial (gain)/
Benefits paid (32.70) (15.84) ‘ Ioss‘refurn on plan
Z assets, excluding
2 interest income (5.48) "(5.98)

‘ili. Amount
recognised in
balance sheet

‘Present valué of -
obligations as at

‘(185.84)‘

year end - (177.96)
Fair value. of plan ‘
" assets as at year e
end . 184.34 178.75

=

in G

GV

vi.

Actual return on
plan assets -

Expected return on

plan assets - 12.29 9.59 "

Actuarial gain/
(loss) on plan
assets ’
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Note 46: Employee Benefits (Contd.)

Zin crores
Particulars 2021 Gratuity
(GLEECRAEE (Funded Plan)
vii. Asset information
Insurer managed I l ’
funds 100% 1 100%
viii. Expected
employer's
contribution for
the next year 22.19 20.49

Theactuarial calculations used to estimate commitments and
expenses in respect of gratuity and compensated absences
[refer note 46(f)] are based on the following assumptions
which if changed, would affect the commitment's size,
funding requirements and expense:

Principal actuarial
assumptions used

Finoncial assumptions:

For the year

ended 31*
March, 2022

For the year

ended 31¢

March, 2021

Discounted rate (per 6.82% to 6.33% to
annum) 7.21% 6.87%
Expected rate of return 6.82% to 6.33% to
on plan assets 7.21% 6.87%
Expected rate of future
salary increase
- For the next 1 year 7.00% 7.00%
- Thereafter starting
from the 204/3
year 5.00% 5.00%
Demographic
assumptions:
Mortality rate (Holding Indian Indian
Company) assured lives assured lives
Mortality Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate
Mortality rate (Indian Indian Indian
Domestic Subsidiaries) assured lives assured lives
Mortality Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Attrition rate
- For Service 2 years
and below 25.00% 25.00%
- For Service 3 years
to 4 years 15.00% 15.00%
- For Service 5 years
and above 5.00% 1%to 5%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in
actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in employment market.

Note 46: Employee Benefits (Contd.)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,
while holding all other assumptions constant.

Tincrores
For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31° ended 31¢
March, 2022 March, 2021
Discount rate (1%
movement increase) (14.50) (15.37)
Discount rate (1%
movement decrease) : 16.70 - 18.09
Future salary growth
(1% movement increase) 17.05 18.46
Future salary growth
(1% movement
decrease) (14.76) (15.65)
Attrition rate (1%
movement increase) . 2.60 2.49
Attrition rate (1%
movement decrease) (2.94) (2.81)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting
the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined
benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which
is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit
obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments from the fund

Tincrores
Projected benefits As at As at
payable in future 31* March, 31" March,
years from the date of 2022 2021
reporting
1¢ following year 14.43 13.80
2" following year 12.98 15.52
3 following year 17.37 13.43
4" following year 13.45 17.69
5" following year 16.79 14.99
Sum of years 6 to 10 69.45 70.61
Sum of years 11 and
above 245.78 231.86

Average estimated future working life is 8 to 12 years
(31 March, 2021: 8 to 12 years)
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Note 46: Employee Benefits (Contd.) Note 46: Employee Benefits (Contd:)

Tin crores

e.  Table 2: The details of the Group's defined benefit plans in

respect of the owned provident fund trust for the Holding

” ;31 March,

31* March, -

l ~Company based on actuarial report - 2022 ‘202]
: . : . Zincrores Particulars -~ Provident. Provident -
‘3]“ Mdl;ch,' 3]:' March, Fund (Fl_.ll‘lded Fund (Funded
) - 2022 2021 ',j:,PIcn);, Plan)
Particulars Provident Provident . iv. Expenses ‘ '
' ARGl Fund (Funded recognised in profit
) ' . Plan) Plan) or loss
i. Change in defined - Current service cost- 38.52 .39.61
benefit obligation ) lrjferest cost 101.88 92.8]
Opening defined Expected return on . )
benefit obligation 11,2157 1,085.93 plan assefs (101.88) _(92.8)
Interest cost 101.88 92.81
Current service cost 38.52 0 39.6
- Employee T :
contribution 90.33 85.76 v. Actualreturn on . .
Liability transferred ‘ plan assets
in ) ) 25.60 - 15.06 Expected return on ‘
Benefits paid (187.68) (128.49) plan assets 92.81
= “Other experience o - Actuarial gainon - - - .
adjustment (31.03) 24.49

Habi

Change in fair
value of assets

Investment in-PSU.,

Opening fair value bonds : 515.31 513.62
of plan assets 1,232.23 1,094.00 ’ Investment in
Expected return on government -
plan assets 101.88 92.81 securities 58117 565.90
Actuarial gain (31.03) 2449 Bank s.pecicy ‘
Contributions by _ deposit 15.58 15.58
employer 128.85 125.37 Investment in other )
Transfer of plan securities 46.01 412
ossets 25.60 15.06 '.Shorf-term debt
Benefits paid (187.68) (128.49) instruments-and
Other experience related investments : - 0.01
adjustment 9.50 8.99 - Equity/insurer

managed funds/

mutual funds 121.27 93.71

in balance sheet

Present value of
obligations as at

Cash and cash

2.30

o
Eﬁ%’ﬁ n e, 155

vii. Principal-actuarial '

year end (,252.79) (,25.17) :
Fair value of plan B . assumptions used
assets as at year end 1,279.35 1,232.23 Discounted rate |
- Funded status (26.56) (17.06) (per annum) 7.21% 6.87%
Net:asset/(liab , Expected rate of -
isec return on plan _ ‘
assets (per annum) 8.10% 8.50% -
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f.

Zin crores
31* March, 31 March,
2022 2021
Particulars Provident Provident
LRI E-l Fund (Funded
Plan) Plan)
Expected rate
of future salary
increase (per annum)
- For the next 1 year 7.00% 7.00%
- Thereafter starting
from the 2" year 5.00% 5.00%
viii. Experience
adjustments
Defined benefit
obligation 1,252.79 1,215.17
Plan assets (1,279.35) (1,232.23)
Deficit/(surplus) (26.56) ' (17.06)
Experience
adjustment on plan
assets - (loss)/gain (31.03) 24.49

Compensated absences note:

The Group provides for accumulahon ot ¢compensated

absences by certain categories of its employees. These

Note 46: Share based payments (Contd.)

employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised
compensated absences and utilise them in future periods
or receive cash in lieu thereof as per the Group’s policy.
The Group records a liability for compensated absences in
the period in which the employee renders the services that
increases this entitlement. The total liability recorded by the
Group towards this obligation was ¥135.69 crores and ¥168.12
crores as at 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 202], respectively.

Cash settled share based payment:

Certain employees of the Group are eligible for share
based payment awards that are settled in cash. These
awards entitle the employees to a cash payment, on the
exercise date, subject to vesting upon satisfaction of certain
service conditions which range from one to four years. The
amount of cash payment is determined based on the price
of the Company’s share price at the time of vesting. As of
31 March, 2022, there was ¥ 6.62 crores (31 March, 2021:
% 5.63 crores) of total unrecognised compensation cost
related to unvested awards. This cost is expected to be
recognised over a weighted-average period of | years.

This scheme does not involve dealing in or subscribing to or
purchasing securities of the Company, directly or indirectly.

Note 47: Share based payments

1. Parent Company

Cipla Limited

A.

Employee stock option scheme (‘ESOS’)

The Company has implemented Employee Stock Option Scheme 2013 - A (ESOS 2013 - A") as approved by the shareholders
on 22" August, 2013. The ESOS 2013 - A Scheme covers the permanent employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and
directors (excluding promoter directors) [collectively "eligible employees']. The nomination and remuneration committee of the
Board of Cipla Limited administers the ESOS 2013 - A Scheme and grants stock options to eligible employees. Details of the
options granted during the year under the Scheme(s) are given below:

Scheme details Grant date No. of options Exercise pr.ice Vestfng Exercise period
granted (%) per option period

ESOS 2013 - A 14™ May, 2021 1,38,144 2.00 2 Year 5 years from Vesting date

ESOS 2013 - A 14™ May, 2021 25,095 2.00 1 Year Within same calendar year of vesting

ESOS 2013 - A 26™ October, 2021 9,752 2.00 2 Year 5 years from Vesting date

ESOS 2013 - A 26'™ October, 2021 9,752 2.00 1 Year 5 years from Vesting date

The options are granted at an exercise price, which is in accordance with the relevant SEBI guidelines in force, at the time of such
grants. Each option entitles the holder to exercise the right to apply for and seek allotment of one equity share of ¥ 2 each.
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Weighted averdge share price for options exercised during the year:

‘Particulars ESOS - 2013 - A
Weighted average share ;;rice ®) 926.41
Stock option activity under the scheme(s) for the year ended 31t March, 2022 is set out below:

v Weighted average Range of Weighted average
ESOS 2013 - A B No. of options exercise price )  exercise price  remaining contractual

per option (%) per option . life (years)

[Outstanding inglof/theiyear.

Granted during the year

Forfeited/cancelled during the year

Lapsed during the year

Exercnsed during the year

Exercnsoble ot the end of the year 2,56,349 2.00

Stock option activity under the scheme(s) for the'year-ended 31 March, 202T"is set out’ b'eloW:

. ) . Weighted average Range of Weighted average
ESOS 2013 - A C No. of options  exercise price (}) exercise price. remaining contractual

per option (%) per option T life (years)

Beginn yea 925,007 |,
Granted during the year ) 2,66,459

Forfeited/cancelled during the year ) 94,099
. Lapsed duringtheyear - = | ] 41,120

2,24,040

Exercnsed durmg fhe yeor

Exerasoble at the end of fhe year 3,08,586

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for éomputing weighted average fair value considering the following inputs:

Particulars : ’ ¢ 2131 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2021

Expected dividend yield (%) . o ’ S 0.35% : 1.05%
Expected volatility . ’ 29.40% . 26.67%
Risk-free interest rate ' ' . 5.34% o 5.46%
Weighted average share price (%) : ‘ 898.95 : . 569.75
Exercise price (%) . ) . 2.00 ' 2.00
. Expected life of options granted in years ' ) 4.02 : 4.45

Weighted average fair value of options (%) : ) ' T 884.67 3 542,15

Employee Stock Apprecicﬁon Rights (‘'ESAR') Scheme

The Company has implemented "Cipla Employee Stock Appreciation Righis Scheme 2021 ('ESA‘R Scheme 2021/the Scheme’)" as
. approved by the shareholders by postal ballot on 25™ March, 2021. The scheme covers the employees who are in permanent
employment, including director(s) other than independent directors of the Company and its subsidiaries [collectively "eligible
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Note 47: Share based payments (Contd.)

employees"]. The nomination and remuneration committee of the Board of Cipla Limited will administer this scheme and grant
ESARs to the eligible employees. Further, the maximum number of Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (ESARs) that may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 1,75,00,000 and the maximum number of equity shares that may be issued towards
appreciation of the ESARs to be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 33,00,000 shares of ¥ 2 each, i.e. face value. As per
the terms of the ESAR Scheme, each ESAR will be settled by the issue of shares and hence been accounted as equity settled.

Scheme No. of Exercise Vesting period Fair value at Exercise period
. Grant date  options price (%) grant date
details .
granted per option

ESAR 2021 14™ May, 2021  2,71,329 2.00 3 years graded vesting 24890 5 years from Vesting date
ESAR 2021 14" May, 2021 90,398 2.00 1Year 286.62 5 years from Vesting date
ESAR 2021 26" October, 2021 37,041 2.00 1Year 23690 5 years from Vesting date
ESAR 2021 26" October, 2021 31,970 2.00 3 years graded vesting 274.48 5 years from Vesting date

No ESARs have been exercised under the scheme during the year.

Stock option activity under the scheme(s) for the year ended 31% March, 2022 is set out below:

ESAR 2021
Weighted average Range of Weighted average
. N exercise price  exercise price remaining contractual
Particul No. of opt
articulars ©. of opfions (base price) () (base price) (%) life (years)
per option per option
[_Oufsfonding at the beginning of the year ] -1 -1l 3 -]
Granted during the year 4,30,738 916.61 913.38 - 933.54 -
Forfeited/cancelled during the year 32,362 913.38 913.38 -
jOutstanding at the end of the year I 3,98,376 916.87 (] 913.38 - 933.54 | 597|

Exercisable at the end of the year

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing weighted average fair value considering the following inputs:

Particulars ESAR 2021
Expected dividend yield (%) 0.37%
Expected volatility 28.71%
Risk-free interest rate 5.41%
Weighted average share price (%) 899.12
Exercise price () 916.61
Expected life of options granted in years 4,21
Weighted average fair value of options (3) 273.53

2. Subsidiary Company

Cipla Hegalth Limited

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Tin crores

Particulars

For the year ended
31" March, 2022

Expense arising from equity settled share based payment transactions (ESOS

and ESAR)

4.44

For the year ended
31* March, 2021

4.72
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A.

Employee stock option scheme ("ESOS’)

The Subsidiary Company had implemented "ESOS 2016", as approved by the Shareholders on 22" March, 2016. During the year, the
subsidiary company has cancelled this scheme on 25" November, 2021. During the year, there are no options granted under this scheme.
The carrying amount of the liability relating to the ESOS at 31 March, 2022 was T Nil (31 March, 2021: ¥ 6.40 crores)

The options were granted at an exercise price, which is in accordance with the relevant SEBI guidelines in force, at the time of such
grants. Each option entitles the holder to exercise the right to apply for and seek allotment of one equity share of ¥ 10 each.

The following table iliustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options

during the year:
Tincrores

As at 31% March, 2022 As at 31® March, 2021
Particulars
WAEP Number WAEP

JOutstanding at the beginning of the year 1] 20,297 1] 10.00 1] 89,774 || 10.00 |
Granted during the year - 10.00 825 10.00
Forfeited/Cancelled during the year 16,355 10.00 8,714 10.00
Extinguishment of rights during the year* 3,942 10.00 61,588 10.00

{Outstanding at the end of the year i - 10.00 {1} 20,297 || 10.00 |
Exercisable at the end of the year - 10.00 - 10.00

The following table lists the inputs to the models used for the years ended 31 ‘March, 2022 and 31* March, 2021:

Zin crores

Particulars m 31 March, 2021
Expected dividend yield (%) 0%
Expected volatility (%) 2513%
Risk free investment rate (%) : 7.08%
Exercise price at date of grant 10
Share price at date of grant Not applicable % 6,155.00
Vesting period 1 to 4 years
Exercise period At the time of
liquidity event

Model used Black Scholes

*During the year ended 31* March, 2022 and 31* March, 2021, the ESOP holders entered into a tripartite agreement with the Holding Company and Cipla
Health Limited, a Subsidiary Company wherein they agreed to extinguish their right of exercise of ESOPs vested against the total payment 6f T 4.78 crores
(31" March, 2021: T 36.01 crores) from the Holding Company. On account of this ESOP reserve amounting to ¥ 3.69 crores (31 March, 2021: ¥ 17.20 crores)
was reversed and differential amount of T1.09 crores (31" March, 2021: 218.81 crores) has been booked as capital reserve. Further payment made has been
classified as part of financing activity in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement.

Employee Stock Appreciation Rights ('ESAR') Scheme

The Subsidiary Company has implemented "Cipla Employee Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme 2021 (ESAR Scheme 2021/the Scheme”)”
as approved by the shareholders on ¥ September, 2021. The Scheme covers all the employees who are in permanent employment,
including director(s) other than independent directors of the Company and employee who is a Promoter or a person who belongs to
the Promoter Group [collectively "eligible employees®]. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board (NRC’) administers
this scheme and grants ESARs to the eligible employees. Further, the maximum number of Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (ESARS’)
that may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 1,02,800 and the maximum number of equity shares that may be issued
towards appreciation of the ESARs to be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 60,700 of 2 10 each, i.e. face value. As per the
terms of the ESAR Scheme, each ESAR can be settled by the issue of shares or through cash. Based on management estimate these
have been accounted as equity settled. NRC is entitled to determine the vesting schedule for ESAR as the NRC deems fit. ESARs thot
are not exercised within the applicable exercise period will automatically lapse.

Scheme details Grant date No. of options Exercise pr.lce Vesf!ng Fair value at Exercise period
granted (%) per option  period grant date

ESAR Scheme 2021 1 September 2021 28,344.00 10.00 1to 4 8,334.50 At time of liquidity

Years event

ESAR Scheme 2021 1¥ March 2022 301.00 10.00 lto 4 8,334.50 At time of liquidity
. . Years event
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As at 31 March, 2022

Weighted Range of § Weighted average
) average ) R -
Particulars . . . exercise price remaining
No. of options | exercise price . ’ .,
X (base priee) (3) contractual life
(base price) () er option (years)
per option P P years
[Outstanding at the beginning of the year I =11 -1 -13 -1
Granted during the year 28,645 16,316.00 16,316.00 -
Forfeited/Cancelled during the year 2,714 16,316.00 16,316.00 -
|Qutstanding at the end of the year H 25,9311 1 16,316.001 | 16,316.00! ] 1.77|

Exercisable at the end of the year

The following table lists the inputs to the models used for the years ended 31¥ March, 2022.

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2022

Expected dividend yield (%) 0%
Expected volatility (%) 65.00%
Risk free investment rate (%) 514%
Exercise price at date of grant ¥16,316.00
Share price at date of grant $8,334.25
Vesting period 3.58 years
Exercise period At time of liquidity

event

Model used

Black Scholes

The effect of share based payment transactions on the entity's profit for the period and earnings per share is presented below:

Particulars

31 March, 2021

31* March, 2022

Profit after tax as reported (Z in crores) 2,516.75 2,404.87
Share based payment expense (% in crores)* 2412 19.54
Earnings per share adjusted

Basic (3) 31.50 30.07
Diluted (%) 31.47 30.03

*includes ¥ Nil crores (31 March, 2021: ¥ 0.04 crores) pertaining to Jay Precision Pharmaceuticals Private limited.

Note 48: Related party disclosures

Information on related party transactions as required by
Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures for the year ended
31" March, 2022

A. Associates
Stempeutics Research Private Limited
Avenue Therapeutics Inc.
Brandmed (Pty) Limited
AMPSolar Power Systems Private Limited
GoApptiv Private Limited (Acquisition of 21.85% and
associate from 27 July, 2020)
Iconphygital Private Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary of
GoApptiv Private Limited)
Clean Max Auriga Power LLP (acquired 33% stake effective
from 14 December, 2021)

C. Non-executive Chairman

Note 48: Related party disclosures (Contd.)

AMP Energy Green Eleven Private Limited (acquired 32.49%
on fully diluted basis from 8" February, 2022)

B. Key Management personnel
Ms Samina Hamied - Executive Vice-Chairperson

Mr Umang Vohra - Managing Director and Global Chief
Executive Officer

Mr Kedar Upadhye - Global Chief Financial Officer (Resigned
w.e.f. close of business hours on 3¢ May, 2022)

and Non-executive Vice-
Chairman Dr Y K Hamied, Chairman

Mr M K Hamied, Vice-Chairman
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D.

Non executive Directors
Mr Ashok Sinha

Mr Adil Zainulbhai

Ms Punita Lal

Ms Naina Lal Kidwai (Resigned w.e.f. close of business hours
on 31 March, 2022)

Dr Peter Mugyenyi

Mr S Radhakrishnan

Mr Robert Stewart (w.e.f. 14" May, 2021)
Mr P R Ramesh (w.e.f. 1¢t July, 2021)

Entities over which the Company is able to exercise
significant influence/control

Cipla Foundation

Cipla Cancer & AIDS Foundation

Cipla Employees Stock Option Trust (De-registered)
Cipla Health Employees Stock Option Trust

Chest Research Foundation (formerly known as Hamied
Foundation)

Post-employment benefit trusts
Cipla Limited Employees Provident Fund
Cipla Limited Employees Gratuity Fund

Goldencross Pharma Private Limited Employees Group
Gratuity Fund

Meditab Specialities Limited Employees Comprehensive
Gratuity Scheme

Limited

Medispray Laboratories Private Employees

Comprehensive Gratuity Scheme
Cipla Biotec Private Limited Employees Gratuity Fund

Sitec Labs Private Limited Employees Group Gratuity
Scheme

Cipla Health Limited Employees Gratuity scheme

Jay Precision Pharmaceuticals Employees Group Gratuity
Trust

Note 48: Related party disclosures (Contd.)

For the year

Zin crores

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31 March, 31* March,
2022 2021
Clean Max Auriga Power
LLP 6.75 -
AMP Energy Green
Eleven Private Limited 0.75 -
| fL 7.51 || 1.80 |
. Investment in Compulsory Convertible Debentures of
Associates
AMP Energy Green
Eleven Private Limited 6.75 -
l I 6.75 || - i

. Investment in Compulsory Convertible Preference Share

of Associates

GoApptiv Private Limited

(refer note 6) - 7.20
AMPSolar Power Systems
Private Limited 1.16

| [ 116 || 7.20 |

. Remuneration to Key Management Personnel and

Directors
Short-term employee
benefits 2573 19.62
Post-empioyment
benefits* 0.51 0.5}
Commission to directors 13.79 11.46
Sitting fee 1.36 0.98
Share based payments
expense 4.47 5.23

| 1] 45.86 |] 37.80 |

*Expenses towards gratuity, compensated absences and premium paid for
Group health insurance has not been considered in above information as a
separate actuarial valuation/premium paid are not available.

For the year

Zin crores

For the year

Particulars ended ended
Disclosure in respect of related parties 31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021
During the year, the following transactions were carried out ¢ wibution to provident fund and other fund
with the related parties in the ordinary course of business: Cipla Health Limited
Zincrores .
— Employees Gratuity
For the year For the year scheme 0.38 -
Particulars " ended “ ended Cipla Limited Employees
31 March, 31¥ March, Gratuity Fund 20.00 2810
2022 2021 Cipla Limited Employees
A. Investment in equity shares of Associates Provident Fund 38.52 39.64
AMPSolar Power Systems Medispray
Private Limited (refer Laboratories Private
note 6) 0.01 Limited Employees
GoApptiv Private Limited Comprehensive Gratuity
(refer note 6) - 1.80 Scheme - 1.53
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Note 48: Related party disclosures (Contd.)

Tin crores Zincrores
For the year For the year For the year For the year
X ended ended . ended ended
Particulars 31 March, 31 March,  orheulars 31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Meditab Specialities P. Contribution payable to provident/gratuity fund
Limited Employees Cipla Limited Employees
Comprehensive Gratuity Provident fund 10.95 1.02
Scheme - 1.20 Cipla Health Limited
Sitec Labs Private Limited Employees Gratuity
- Employees Group scheme 0.96 0.95
Gratuity Scheme - ©o198” Meditab Specialities - : .
Goldencross Pharma Limited Employees
Private Limited Comprehensive Gratuity
Employees Group Scheme 0.22 -
Gratuity Fund - 0.80 Cipla Limited Employees
I il 58.90 || 73.25 | Gratuity fund - 4.26
F. Service Charges and reimbursement paid Sitec Labs Private Limited
GoApptiv Private Limited 3790 15.34 Employees Group
Stempeutics Research Gratuity Scheme 013 0.08
Private Limited 1.05 1.16 Goldencross Pharma
i i 38.95 || 16.50 | Private Limited
G. Donations given Employees Group
Cipla foundation 55.76 33.19 Gratuity Fund 0.21 0.2
] H 5576 11 33.19 | Medispray
H. Rent Received Laboratories Private
Dr Y K Hamied (% 20,040/- Limited Employees
in both the years) 0.00 0.00 Comprehensive Gratuity
L 1 0.00 || 0.00 | Scheme 0.10 0.22
I. Interest Income whf o 1257 ]| 16.65 |
Brandmed (Pty) Limited 0.02 - . Advances receivable from gratuity fund
| 1 0.02 || - Cipla Limited Employees
J. Purchase of assets Gratuity fund 9.30 -
Stempeuvutics Research Sitec Labs Private Limited
Private Limited - 2.00 Employees Group
| H -1 2.00 | Gratuity Scheme - n
K. Freight charges paid Goldencross Pharma
Stempeutics Research Private Limited
Private Limited 0.02 - Employees Group
| [ 0.02 |] -1 Gratuity Fund - 0.04
L. Reimbursement of operating/other expenses Cipla Biotec Private
GoApptiv Private Limited - 0.65 Limited Employees
| H -l 0.65 | Gratuity Fund 0.01 0.01
M. Electricity charges paid Meditab Specialities
AMPSolar Power Systems Limited Employees
Private Limited 1593 2.42 Comprehensive Gratuity
] [ 15.93 i1 2.42 | Scheme - 0.01
N. Payable to Key Medispray
Management Personnel Laboratories Private
and Directors Limited Employees
(Performance Bonus and Comprehensive Gratuity
Commission) [ 2216 17.72 Scheme 3 012
O. Dividend Paid to Key ' ‘ L. 931 .29
Management Personnel —

and Directors 108.49 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 48: Related party disclosures (Contd.)

"~ Tincrores

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
a
v 31 March, 31 March,
2022 2021
R. Payable to associates and others ‘
GoApptiv Private Limited 1.70

0.29

Stempeutics Research
Private Limited
Ci Io Foundation

S Puyoble towards acquisition of stake in ossoc:afe
Brandmed (Pty) Limited

T. Purchase of goods

Brandmed (Pty).Limited 0.77 499
Stempeutics Research
Private Limited 0.46 -
R T D23 | 4991
. Loan given/receivable
Brandmed (Pty) Limited 2.61 -
b e ]

Note 49: Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
expenditure '

The Group meets the criteria specified under Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and has formed a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee to monitor the CSR activities
implemented as per the CSR Policy of the Group. The Group
spendé in each financial year at least 2% of its average net
profit for the immediately preceding three financial years as
per provisions of Section 135 of the Act'and in compliance of
its CSR policy. The funds allocated are utilised thro_ug'h the year
on the activities which are specified in Schedule VIl of the Act.
Key focus areas for CSR activities include Health, Education,
Skilling, Environmental Sustainability, Disaster Response, Rural
" development projecié, Research and Development and any
other ccfivity permissible under Schedule VIl of the Act.

Zin crores
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March, 31* March,
2022 2021
A) Amount required to
be spent by the Group - .
during the year 55.43 45.23
B) Amount of expenditure
* incurred on construction/
acquisition of assets - -
'C) Amount of expenditure
incurred on purposes.
other-than (B) above 55.76 45.27

Note 1.9: Corporate social responsibility (CSR)
expenditure (Contd..)

Zin crores

For the year For the year

Particulars ended ended
) 31 March, 31* March,
2022 2021
D) Shortfall at the end of )
the year - -
-E) Total of previous years '
default : - -
F) Details of related party ‘
transactions * 55.76 33.19
G) Provision movement

during the year: )
Opening balance ) ) - -

Addition during the year 55.76

Uhl«sed durmg the year (55.43)

—
V 7 .33’
#This includes contribution to Cipla Foundation which is ‘a trust, with the
main objective of working across focus areas of Health, Education, Skilling,

Environmental Susrolnoblllty & Dlscsrer Response and COVID 19 rellef
projects.

The Group does not have any ongoing projects as at 31# March,
2022 and 31 March, 2021.

The Group did not set-off any excess CSR amount spent during
the year 2020-21 against current year’s CSR obligation. The
Company will be setting off the excess spend of ¥ 0.33 crores
during the year 2021-22 against the next year's CSR obligation.

Note 50: Reclassification note

The figures for the corresponding previous year have been
regrouped/reclassified - wherever necesscry, to make them
comparable.

Note 51: Subsequent events

There c}e no other subsequent events that occurred after the
reporting date.

‘Note 52: Impact of Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employeé
benefits during employment and post-employment -benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the
Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will
assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will
record any relotgd impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

ANofé 53: Restructuring operations

The board at its meeting held on 26™ October, 2021 decided not
to proceed with the draft scheme of arrangement as approved
by the Board in its. meeting held on 29™ January, 2021.
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Subsequently, the Board at its meeting held on 25" January,
2022 considered and approved the transfer of the India based
US business undertaking to CPLS for a consideration of ¥ 1,400
crores and the Consumer Business Undertaking to CHL for
a consideration of ¥ 80 crores as a going concern on a slump
sale basis through a Business Transfer Agreement (“BTA”). The
final consideration is subject to the adjustments as on the date
of transfer as per the terms of BTA. The Company is currently
in the process of completing the regulatory and legal process
for transfer as on 31 March. 2022. Since the transactions are
with parties under common control, there is no impact on the
consolidated financial for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Note 54: Unforeseeable losses

The Group has a process whereby periodically ail long-term
contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for
material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Group did not
have any long-term contracts (including derivative contracts)
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. Long-
term derivative contract related to interest rate swaps are
accounted, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS.

Note 55: Additional disclosure with respect to
amendment to Schedule 111

a. The entities included in group, covered under the Act, do
not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has
been initiated or pending against them for holding any
Benami property.

b. The cntitics included in group, covered under the Act, do
not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the
books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

Note 55: Additional disclosure with respect to
amendment to Schedule lil (Contd.)

.  The entitics included in group, covercd under the Act, has
not been declured u wilful defauiter by any bank or financiul
institution or other lender (as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank
of India.

d.  The enlities included in group, covered under the Act, du
not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be
registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) heyond the
statutory period

e. The entities included in group, covered under the Act,
have nul huded or invested in Crypto Curtency or Virfuul
Currency during the financial year.

f. The entities included in group, covered under the Act, has
not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

(@) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
cntities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries

g. The entities included in group, covered under the Act, have
nol enfered into any scheme of arrangemenl which lus
an accounting impact on the current or previous financial
year.

h. The entities included in group, covered under the Act, have
complied with the number of layers prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

i.  Details of transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies

Act, 1956 as of and for the year ended 315 March, 2022:

Zincrores

Nature of
transactions

Sr.  Name of Struck off Company
no. Transactions

Transactions
during the year

Balance Relationship with the
outstanding Struck off company

1 FEMTO | CARE PVT LTD Professional fee

0.00* - Vendor- Non Related

*Denote transaction amount less than R 1 lac

The entitics included in group, covered under the Act, has not invested or advanced or loaned funds to any other person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend in other persons or entities identified in any manner whulsuever by or on behull of the gioup

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
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Note 56: Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM"). The CODM is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, who assesses the financial performance and position of
the Group and makes strategic decisions. The Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

| Pharmaceuticals - This segment develops, manufactures, sells and distributes generic or branded generic medicines as well as
Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (“API”).
2 New ventures - This includes the operations of the Company, a consumer healthcare, Biosimilars and speciality business.

The CODM reviews revenue and gross profit as the performance indicator, and does not review the total assets and liabilities for
each reportable segment.

The measurement of each segment’s revenues, expenses and assets is consistent with the accounting policies that are used in
preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Zin crores

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2022 31* March, 2021

Segment wise revenue and results
Segment revenues:

a) Pharmaceuticals 21,351.27 18,878.24
b) New ventures 531.51 401.27
Total 21,882.78 19,279.51
Less: Inter segment revenue 119.44 119.92
{Total Income from Operations B 3] 21,763.34 | } 19,159.59 |

Segment results:
Profit/(loss) before tax and interest from each segment

a) Pharmaceuticals 3943.73 3,633.71
b) New ventures (161.99) (182.95)
Total 3,781.74 3,450.76
Less: Finance cost 106.35 160.70
1Profit (+)/loss (<) before exceptional items and tax ] 3,675.39 |} 3,290.06 |
Less: Exceptional items - New ventures (refer note 44A) 182.12 -
Total profit/(loss) before tax 1 3,493.27 |} ~3,290.06 |

Segment assets and liabilities

As some of the assets and liabilities are deployed interchangeably across segments, it is not practically possible to allocate those
assets and liabilities to each segment. Hence, the details of assets and liabilities have not been disclosed in the above table.

The Management also evaluates the Group’s revenue performance based on geographical segments. The Group’s geographical
segments are as follows:

1 India

2 United States of America
3 South Africa

4 Rest of the world

The geographical segments derives their revenues from the sale of pharmaceuticals products (generics, speciality) and milestone
payments. The Management reviews revenue as the performance indicator, and does not review the total assets and liabilities for
each reportable segment.

Analysis of Revenue (including other operating revenue) (by customer's location)

Tincrores
Year India United States of America South Africa Rest of the World Total
2022 9,827.54 4,431.35 2,63295 4,871.50 21,763.34
2021 7,735.73 4,091.40 2,303.00 5,029.46 19,159.59

Analysis of non-current assets (excluding investment in associates, income tax and deferred tax assets and financial assets)
(by assets location)

Zincrores
Year India United States of America South Africa Rest of the World Total
2022 4,779.92 2,95711 2,027.46 903.93 10,668.42

2021 4,999.37 2,852.03 1,982.71 805.87 10,639.98
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Note 57: Additional information as required, pursuant to Para 2 under Schedule lll of the Companies
Act, 2013 of the enterprises consolidated as Subsidiaries/Associates

Tin crores
Net Assets (Total Assets Owners’ share in profit Owners' share in other Owners’ share in total
less Total Liabilities) or loss comprehensive income comprehensive income
As % of As % of
Name of the entity As % of As % of consolidated consolidated
consclidated Amount consolidated Amount other Amount totai Amount
net assets profit or loss comprehensive comprehensive
Income income

Parent Company
Cipla Limited 106.61% 22,513.55 17.53% 2,957.93 1.62% 6.0 102.44% 2,964.03
Subslidiaries

Indian

Goldencross Pharma Limited 0.83% 175.04 0.53% 13.23 0.08% 0.30 0.47% 13.53
Meditab Specialities Limited 1.81% 383.07 9.75% 245.38 0.02% 0.06 8.48% 245.44
Jay Precision Pharmaceuticats

Private Limited 0.71% 149.59 1.20% 30.25 0.02% 0.08 1.05% 30.33
Medispray Laboratories Private

Limited 0.90% 189.96 2.49% 62.70 0.15% 0.58 2.19% 63.28
Sitec tabs Limited 0.52% 109.89 0.39% 9.69 (0.14%) (0.54) 0.32% 9.15

Cipla Pharma and Life Sciences
Limited (formerly known as Cipla

BioTec Limited) 0.80% 168.37 3.31% 83.22 0.00% 0.01 2.88% 83.23
Cipla Heaith Limited 0.53% n.is (1.23%) (30.89) 0.01% 0.02 (1.07%) (30.87)
Ciplo Digital Health Limited 0.00% 0.30 (0.01%) (0.20) 0.00% - - (0.20)
Cipla Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.16% 33.60 (0.04%) (0.90) 0.00% - (0.03%) (0.90)
Foreign

Cipla Medpro South Africa (Pty)

Limited (0.59%) (125.01) 1.63% an (0.37%) (1.40) 1.37% 39.71
Cipla Kenya Limited 0.01% 2.59 0.01% 0.32 0.00% - 0.01% 0.32
Cipla Medpro Holdings (Pty) Limited 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Cipta Dibcare (Pty) Limited 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Cipla-Medpro (Pty) Limited 2.29% 484.53 1.49% 37.38 0.00% - 1.29% 37.38
Cipla-Medpro Distribution Centre

(Pty) Limited (0.01%) (2.81) (0.03%) (0.70) 0.00% - (0.02%) (0.70)
Cipla Medpro Botswana (Pty)

Limited 0.00% 0.00 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Cipla Select (Pty) Limited (formerly

known as Cipla OLTP (Pty) Limited) (0.04%) (9.48) 0.38% 9.60 0.00% - 0.33% 9.60
Medpro Pharmaceutica (Pty) Limited 1.40% 295.61 3.34% 84.07 0.00% - 29% 84.07
Mirren (Pty) Limited 0.10% 20.97 (1.00%) (25.09) 0.00% - (0.87%) (25.09)

Cipla Medpro Manufacturing (Pty)
Limited (formerly known as Cipla

Life Sciences (Pty) Limited) 0.65% 137.56 0.00% 0.01 0.00% - 0.00% 0.0
tnyanga trading 386 (Pty) Limited 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
Cipla Biotec South Africa (Pty)

Limited 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
Cipla Holding B.V. 0.42% 88.24 0.05% 1.33 0.00% - 0.05% 1.33
Cipla (EV) Limited 24.79% 5,234.55 1.12% 287 1.40% 5.28 1.16% 33.45
Saba Investment Limited 1.27% 267.22 0.10% 2.50 0.00% - 0.09% 2.50
Cipla Australia Pty Limited 0.20% L.71 (1.58%) (39.68) 0.00% - (1.37%) (39.68)
Meditab Holdings Limited 2.33% 491.82 (0.03%) (0.74) 25.99% 97.93 3.36% 97.19
Cipla USA Inc. 1.32% 278.07 3.58% 90.18 0.00% - 3.92% 90.18
Cipla Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 0.02% 4.05 0.01% 0.36 0.00% - 0.01% 0.36
Cipla Europe NV 0.32% 68.55 0.07% 1.65 0.00% - 0.06% 1.65

Cipta Quality Chemical Industries
Limited 1.60% 338.88 2.00% 50.39 0.00% - 1.74% 50.39
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Note 57: Additional information as required, pursuant to Para 2 under Schedule 1l of the Companies
Act, 2013 of the enterprises consolidated as Subsidiaries/Associates (Contd.)

T in crores

Net Assets (Total Assets

Owners’ share In profit

Owners' share In other

Owners' share in total

less Total Liabilities) or loss comprehensive income comprehensive income
As % of As % of
Name of the entity As % of As % of consolidated consolidated
consolidated Amount consolidated Amount other Amount total Amount
net assets profit or loss comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Breathe Free Lanka (Private)
Limited 0.04% 8.25 0.17% 4.26 0.00% - 0.15% 4.26
Cipla Medica Pharmaceutical and
Chemical Industries Limited (0.06%) M.64) (0.71%) (17.81) 0.00% - (0.62%) (17.81)
Cipla Gulf FZ-LLC 0.1% 23.98 (0.01%) (0.15) 0.00% - (0.01%) (0.15)
Cipla Brasil Importadora e
Distribuidora de Medicamentos
Ltda. 0.09% 19.00 (0.01%) (0.29) 0.00% - (0.01%) 0.29)
Cipla Maroc SA 0.33% 70.30 0.34% 8.57 0.00% - 0.30% 8.57
InvaGen Pharmaceuticals Inc. 14.64% 3,091.06 (13.67%) (344.15) 2.66% 10.04 (1.55%) (334.01)
Cipla Middle East Pharmaceuticals
FZ-LLC 0.02% 4.86 (0.09%) (2.34) 0.00% - (0.08%) (2.34)
Cipla Philippines Inc, 0.00% 0.5 (0.00%) (0.10) 0.00% - (0.00%) (0.10)
Cipla Algérie 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Cipla Colombia SAS 0.08% 17.24 0.15% 3.8} 0.00% - 0.13% 3.81
Cipla (Jiangsu) Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd 0.95% 201.30 (0.58%) (14.50) 0.00% - (0.50%) (14.50)
Cipla (China) Pharmaceutical
Co., Lid 0.06% 13.47 0.01% 0.36 0.00% - 0.01% 0.36
Exelan Pharmaceuticals Inc. 0.55% nzn 1.09% 27.54 0.00% - 0.95% 27.54
Cipla Technologies LLC 0.86% 182.62 (1.04%) (26.16) 0.00% - (0.90%) (26.16)
Madison Pharmaceuticals Inc. 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Cipla Therapeutics Inc. 0.02% 4.22 (1.17%) (29.56) 0.00% - (1.02%) (29.56)
Cipla Health Employees Stock
Option Trust 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Cipla Employee Stock Option Trust 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Subtotal 35,193.89 3,260.76 118.46 3,379.23
Inter-company Elimination and
Consolidation Adjustments (68.18%)  (14,398.02) (27.87%) (701.29) 70.39% 265.21 (15.07%) (436.08)
Non-controlling Interest in
Subsidiaries 1.31% 275.69 1.19%) (29.90) (1.82%) (6.87) (1.27%) (36.77)
Associates
AMPSolar Power Systems Private
Limited 0.00% 0.80 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Avenue Therapeutics, Inc. 0.00% - (0.46%) (1.57) 0.00% - (0.40%) (11.57)
Brandmed (Pty) Limited 0.13% 26.98 (0.09%) (2.35) 0.00% - (0.08%) (2.35)
GoApptiv Private Limited 0.05% 10.74 0.04% 110 0.00% - 0.04% 110
AMP Energy Green Eleven Private
Limited 0.00% 0.61 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Stempeutics Research Private
Limited 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Clean Mox Auriga Power LLP 0.03% 6.68 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
|Grand Total 1 i1 2,n7.381] i1 2567581 | 376.80f] |} 2,893.55]

Note: Net assets and share in profit or loss for the Parent Company, subsidiaries, associates and other consolidating entities are
as per the standaione financial statements of the respective entities.

B 2 PNV
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Note 58: Authorisation of financial statements

The Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors on

10* May, 2022.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants Umang Vohra

Firm Reg. No.: 001076N/N500013 Managing Director and
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Partner Interim Global Chief Financial Officer
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